
 

 

 
 

Members: Lee Baker (Chair), Derek Perry (Vice-Chair), Simon Coles, 
Hugh Davies, Caroline Ellis, Martin Hill, Janet Lloyd, 
Steven Pugsley, Vivienne Stock-Williams, Andrew Sully and 
Terry Venner 

 
 

Agenda 

1. Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. Minutes of the previous meeting of the Audit, 
Governance and Standards Committee  

(Pages 5 - 12) 

 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting of the 
Committee. 
 

 

3. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive and note any declarations of disclosable 
pecuniary or prejudicial or personal interests in respect of 
any matters included on the agenda for consideration at this 
meeting. 
 
(The personal interests of Councillors and Clerks of 
Somerset County Council, Town or Parish Councils and 
other Local Authorities will automatically be recorded in the 
minutes.) 
 

 

4. Public Participation   

 The Chair to advise the Committee of any items on which 
members of the public have requested to speak and advise 
those members of the public present of the details of the 
Council’s public participation scheme. 
 
For those members of the public who have submitted any 
questions or statements, please note, a three minute time 
limit applies to each speaker and you will be asked to speak 
before Councillors debate the issue. 

 

SWT Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee 
 
Thursday, 17th December, 2020, 
6.15 pm 
 
SWT VIRTUAL MEETING WEBCAST 
LINK 
 
 

 

https://somersetwestandtaunton.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://somersetwestandtaunton.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 

 
Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic 
Due to the Government guidance on measures to reduce the 
transmission of coronavirus (COVID-19), we will holding 
meetings in a virtual manner which will be live webcast on 
our website. Members of the public will still be able to register 
to speak and ask questions, which will then be read out by 
the Governance and Democracy Case Manager during 
Public Question Time and will either be answered by the 
Chair of the Committee, or the relevant Portfolio Holder, or 
be followed up with a written response. 
 

5. Audit, Governance and Standards Committee Forward 
Plan  

(Pages 13 - 14) 

 To receive items and review the Forward Plan. 
 

 

6. Annual Governance Statement 2019/20  (Pages 15 - 44) 

7. External Audit Findings Report  (Pages 45 - 82) 

8. Assessment of Going Concern Status  (Pages 83 - 90) 

9. Approval of Statement of Accounts 2019/20  (Pages 91 - 234) 

 

 
JAMES HASSETT 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 



 

 

Please note that this meeting will be recorded. You should be aware that the Council 
is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act 2018. Data collected during the 
recording will be retained in accordance with the Council’s policy. Therefore unless 
you are advised otherwise, by taking part in the Council Meeting during Public 
Participation you are consenting to being recorded and to the possible use of the 
sound recording for access via the website or for training purposes. If you have any 
queries regarding this please contact the officer as detailed above.  
 
Following Government guidance on measures to reduce the transmission of 
coronavirus (COVID-19), we will be live webcasting our committee meetings and you 
are welcome to view and listen to the discussion. The link to each webcast will be 
available on the meeting webpage, but you can also access them on the Somerset 
West and Taunton webcasting website. 
 
If you would like to ask a question or speak at a meeting, you will need to submit 
your request to a member of the Governance Team in advance of the meeting. You 
can request to speak at a Council meeting by emailing your full name, the agenda 
item and your question to the Governance Team using 
governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk   
 
Any requests need to be received by 4pm on the day that provides 2 clear working 
days before the meeting (excluding the day of the meeting itself). For example, if the 
meeting is due to take place on a Tuesday, requests need to be received by 4pm on 
the Thursday prior to the meeting. 
 
The Governance and Democracy Case Manager will take the details of your 
question or speech and will distribute them to the Committee prior to the meeting. 
The Chair will then invite you to speak at the beginning of the meeting under the 
agenda item Public Question Time, but speaking is limited to three minutes per 
person in an overall period of 15 minutes and you can only speak to the Committee 
once.  If there are a group of people attending to speak about a particular item then a 
representative should be chosen to speak on behalf of the group. 
 
Please see below for Temporary Measures during Coronavirus Pandemic and the 
changes we are making to public participation:- 
Due to the Government guidance on measures to reduce the transmission of 
coronavirus (COVID-19), we will holding meetings in a virtual manner which will be 
live webcast on our website. Members of the public will still be able to register to 
speak and ask questions, which will then be read out by the Governance and 
Democracy Case Manager during Public Question Time and will be answered by the 
Portfolio Holder or followed up with a written response. 
 
Full Council, Executive, and Committee agendas, reports and minutes are available 
on our website: www.somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk  
For further information about the meeting, please contact the Governance and 
Democracy Team via email: governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk  
If you would like an agenda, a report or the minutes of a meeting translated into 
another language or into Braille, large print, audio tape or CD, please email: 
governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk 

https://somersetwestandtaunton.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://somersetwestandtaunton.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
mailto:governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk
http://www.somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk/
mailto:governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk
mailto:governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk




 
 

 
SWT Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, 7 12 2020 

 

SWT Audit, Governance and Standards Committee - 7 December 2020 
 

Present: Councillor Lee Baker (Chair)  

 Councillors Derek Perry, Simon Coles, Hugh Davies, Caroline Ellis, 
Steven Pugsley, Terry Venner, Sue Buller, Danny Wedderkopp and 
Hazel Prior-Sankey 

Officers: Paul Fitzgerald, Clare Rendell, Alastair Woodland, Amy Tregellas, Richard 
Doyle, Andrew Randell, James Barrah, Ian Candlish, Alison North, Stuart 
Noyce, Richard Sealy, Andrew Pritchard and Adam Evans 

Also 
Present: 

Councillors John Hassall, Francesca Smith, Ross Henley, 
Sarah Wakefield, Loretta Whetlor and Mike Rigby 

 
(The meeting commenced at Time Not Specified) 

 

1.   Apologies  
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Hill, Sully, Lloyd and Stock-Williams. 
 
Councillors Buller, Prior-Sankey and D Wedderkopp attended as substitutes. 
 

2.   Minutes of the previous meeting of the Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee  
 
(Minutes of the meeting of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee held 
on 21 September 2020 circulated with the agenda) 
 
Proposed by Councillor Coles and seconded by Councillor Pugsley 
 
Resolved that the minutes of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 
held on 21 September be confirmed as a correct record. 
 

3.   Declarations of Interest  
 
Members present at the meeting declared the following personal interests in their 
capacity as a Councillor or Clerk of a County, Town or Parish Council or any 
other Local Authority:- 
 

Name Minute No. Description of 
Interest 

Reason Action Taken 

Cllr L Baker All Items Cheddon 
Fitzpaine & 
Taunton Charter 
Trustee 

Personal Spoke and Voted 

Cllr N Cavill All Items West Monkton Personal Spoke and Voted 

Cllr S Coles All Items SCC & Taunton 
Charter Trustee 

Personal Spoke and Voted 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
 

 
 
SWT Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, 7 12 2020 

 

Cllr H Davies All Items SCC Personal Spoke and Voted 

Cllr C Ellis All Items Taunton Charter 
Trustee 

Personal Spoke and Voted 

Cllr D Perry All Items Taunton Charter 
Trustee 

Personal Spoke and Voted 

Cllr H Prior-
Sankey 

All Items SCC & Taunton 
Charter Trustee 

Personal Spoke and Voted 

Cllr T Venner All Items Minehead Personal Spoke and Voted 

Cllr D 
Wedderkopp 

All Items Taunton Charter 
Trustee 

Personal Spoke and Voted 

 

4.   Public Participation  
 
No members of the public had requested to speak on any item on the agenda. 
 

5.   Audit, Governance and Standards Committee Forward Plan  
 
(Copy of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee Forward Plan, 
circulated with the agenda). 
 
Councillors were reminded that if they had an item they wanted to add to the 
agenda, that they should send their requests to the Governance Team. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Coles and Seconded by Councillor Perry. 
 
Resolved that the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee Forward Plan 
be noted. 
 

6.   SWAP Internal Audit - Progress Report 2020-21  
 
Alastair Woodland introduced the report. The 2020-21 Annual Internal Audit Plan is to 
provide independent and objective assurance on SWT Internal Control Environment. 
This work will support the Annual Governance Statement. 
 
This report summarises the work of the Council’s Internal Audit Service and provided 
details of any new significant weaknesses identified during internal audit work completed 
since the last report to the committee in September 2020.   
  
A schedule of audits completed during the period, detailing their respective assurance 
opinion rating, the number of recommendations and the respective priority rankings of 
these. 
 
The Internal Audit Progress Report for 2020-21 was contained within the SWAP Report 
in Appendix A.   
  
Appendix A set out a number of areas such as the internal Audit Work Programme 
progress, the SWT Plan Performance. The Summary of work Plan and Priority 
recommendations were also considered. 
 
During the debate the following comments and questions were raised:- 

Page 6



 
 

 
 
SWT Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, 7 12 2020 

 

 

 Further information was requested in relation to the investigations set out in the 
report. Due to the sensitivity of this information it was agreed to be provided to 
the committee following the meeting 

 Some areas had not been concluded and resolved following the previous update 
in respect of the delivery of the transformation programme, concerns were raised 
over the lack of progress being made. 

 A completed status for the DLO audit was questioned and when this would be 
available. An officer had attended the committee to answer questions around this. 
It was considered that Open contractor software would cease to be used from 
April and work was underway to ensure all clients are clear on pricing and billing 
strategy. 

 An up to date procurement strategy was overdue, the details around any delays 
were questioned.  

 
Resolved that the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee:- noted progress made 
in delivery of the 2020-21 internal audit plan and significant findings since the previous 
update in September 2020.   

 

7.   Summary of Level 1 and 2 Internal Audit Actions  
 
The Council has engaged the South West Audit Partnership (SWAP) to carry out its 
Internal Audit functions; checking the adequacy of controls and procedures across the 
whole range of Council services.    
  
At the start of each financial year an audit plan is agreed between SWAP and the 
Council which identifies the areas of highest potential organisational and operational risk 
within the Council.  
  
When an audit takes place a report is provided to the service manager concerned which 
gives an audit conclusion and opinion.  
  
Any control or procedural weaknesses are identified within an action plan appended to 
the audit report.  
  
All findings will be allocated one of 3 priority ratings as set out:  
   
Priority 1 Findings that are fundamental to the integrity of the service’s business 
processes and require the immediate attention of management  
Priority 2 Important findings that need to be resolved by management  
Priority 3 Finding that requires attention  
  
Each finding within the action plan contains a target implementation date which has been 
agreed between SWAP and the service manager concerned.  
  
All priority 1and 2 recommendations are captured in a register to ensure progress 
against the recommendations can be tracked and progress reported to the Audit, 
Governance and Standards Committee.  
  
This report gives the Committee a progress update on all priority 1 and 2 audit actions, 
including those where the agreed remedial action is overdue.   
  
A summary of the priority 1 and 2 actions was provided in Appendix A. 
 

Page 7



 
 

 
 
SWT Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, 7 12 2020 

 

Appendix A set out the Update on Priority 1 and 2 Audit Recommendations 
 
During the debate the following comments and questions were raised:- 
 
 

 E5 and Open Contractor systems were considered. Covid-19 had delayed 
progress with the process redesign and replacement of these systems. This was 
ongoing but the aim of completing and implementing the replacement would be 
achieved in the New Year. 

 The transformation process should have brought in systems to resolve the 
processes of payments and transactions, it was considered if further work was 
required to address this. 

 Tracking transactions through systems was not an easy fix but the team had 
tracked progress and were working through this. 

 Progress in business continuity planning was discussed following the experience 
of the pandemic. 

 Business Continuity plans and escalating high risk issues were referred to Gold 
as the pandemic was ongoing, risks and issues from these plans would be 
distributed. 

 Further details in the financial actions would be updated in the next report. 
Revised targets had been set out and resources had been adaptable to Covid-19 
grant schemes being implemented to communities. 
 
 
Resolved that the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee reviewed the 
overdue actions contained in the report and noted progress to date. 

 

8.   Financial Control and Reporting Procedures  
 
The Finance Business Partner introduced the report.  
 
The purpose of the report was to provide members of the Committee with an update 
regarding financial reporting arrangements and progress addressing audit 
recommendations from key control reports 
 
Effective financial controls are among the key elements of the corporate governance 
framework and business control environment. A number of key control audits were 
undertaken as part of the 2019/20 audit plan. The testing largely focussed on the first 69 
months of last year, where the Council’s controls and processes were particularly 
susceptible to the impact of organisational disruption, including a high number of staff 
changes and the transition of systems and procedures to the new Council which was 
formed on 1 April 2019. The audits undertaken reported a range of risks including some 
weaknesses in the control environment, with the internal auditor reporting only ‘partial 
assurance’.  
 
The auditor’s partial assurance definition is: “In relation to the areas reviewed and the 
controls found to be in place, some key risks are not well managed and systems require 
the introduction or improvement of internal controls to ensure the achievement of 
objectives.”  
 
The financial key controls audit assurance and number of audit recommendations for 
each area is summarised as a table in the report:  
 
During the consideration of the item the following comments and questions were raised:- 

Page 8



 
 

 
 
SWT Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, 7 12 2020 

 

 

 The committee thanked officers in the Finance Team for their hard work and 
congratulated them for their reports and changes implemented to the formatting. 

 It was questioned if streamlining had led to less rigorous checks to invoices being 
paid. 

 The banking contract was discussed and consideration given of the renewal of 
the banking arrangements which were considered overdue. 

 It was questioned if attendance of training for budget holders should be 
mandatory. Officer attendance to budget holder training was strongly 
encouraged. 
 

 
Resolved that the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee reviewed and 
noted the progress in improving financial control and reporting arrangements. 

  

 

9.   Treasury Management Update - 30th September 2020  
 
The Finance Business Partner introduced the report. 
 
The purpose of the report provide Members with an update on the Treasury 
Management activity of the Council for the first six months of 2020/21. It focuses on a 
review of the Council’s borrowing and investment activities. 
 
The Council has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 
Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice (the CIPFA Code) which 
requires the Council to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports each 
year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals. These reports are 
required to be adequately scrutinised by committee before being recommended to the 
Council. This role is undertaken by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee.  
  
The Council’s treasury management strategy for 2020/21 was approved at a meeting of 
the Council on 19th February 2020. The Authority has borrowed and invested substantial 
sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested 
funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates.  The successful identification, 
monitoring and control of risk remains central to the Council’s treasury management 
strategy.  
  
The 2017 Prudential Code includes a requirement for local authorities to provide a 
Capital Strategy, a summary document approved by full Council covering capital 
expenditure and financing, treasury management and non-treasury investments.  The 
Council’s Capital Strategy, complying with CIPFA’s requirement, was also approved by 
full Council on 19th February 2020. 
 
The Council has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 
Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice (the CIPFA Code) which 
requires the Council to approve treasury management semi-annual and annual reports.  
  
The Council’s treasury management strategy for 2020/21 was approved at the Full 
Council meeting on 19th February 2020. The Council has invested substantial sums of 
money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds 
and the revenue effect of changing interest rates.  The successful identification, 
monitoring and control of risk remains central to the Council’s treasury management 
strategy.  

Page 9



 
 

 
 
SWT Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, 7 12 2020 

 

 
The 2017 Prudential Code includes a requirement for local authorities to provide a 
Capital Strategy, a summary document approved by full Council covering capital 
expenditure and financing, treasury management and non-treasury investments.  The 
Council’s Capital Strategy, complying with CIPFA’s requirement, was also approved by 
full Council on 19th February 2020. 
 
During the debate the following comments and questions were raised. 
 

 The committee commended the AA ratings and levels of funding in the various 
sections. The Finance Team were thanked for their reports. 
 
Resolved that the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee noted the 
Treasury Management position as at 30th September 2020 (Appendix A attached 
to this report. 

 

10.   Landlord Health and Safety Property Compliance Update Report  
 
The Assistant Director for Housing, Property and Communities introduced and  
presented the item. 
 
This report provided an updated position for the main landlord health and safety property 
compliance disciplines. Understandably, the Covid-19 pandemic has significantly 
impacted our ability to progress with a number of the required actions since the last 
update provided to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee on 7th September 
2020.  In particular, limitations within resource (both internally, and for contractors) has 
led to challenges in undertaking the necessary works. Obtaining access from some 
vulnerable tenants who are shielding or are anxious about allowing people into their 
homes during the second lock down continues to create difficulties in maintaining 
compliance in some areas.  However, we are continuing with all compliance activities.         
 
The information within this report summarises the current compliance of Somerset West 
and Taunton Council in relation to the following six key areas:   
  
Asbestos management  
Electrical safety 
Fire safety  
Gas safety  
Lift and Stair-lift management  
Water management (Legionella)  
 
Each compliance area is monitored separately as defined by properties contained within 
either the Council’s Housing Revenue Account (HRA) or General Fund (GF) accounts. 
HRA Blocks refer to all communal area(s) within the block (including any meeting halls), 
HRA Commercial refers to non-residential properties (e.g. shops or offices), HRA 
Dwellings refers to the individual property (e.g. house, bungalow, flat, etc.) and GF 
Property refers to the entire building.  
  
The report identified:  
Somerset West and Taunton Councils current compliance status (as at 25th November 
2020)  
Comparative performance from the previous report submitted on 7th September 2020 
wherever possible.   
 

Page 10



 
 

 
 
SWT Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, 7 12 2020 

 

Table properties have changed since the last report following a validation process of 
required compliance activities, and the separation of properties for ease of servicing and 
reporting.   
 
Achievements and successes since the last report.  
Realignment of audit categories to revised work streams / programmes of work. Issues 
adversely affecting compliance and action being taken.  
Regulations / legislation which affects the way Somerset West and Taunton Council 
manages its compliance.  
 
Risk ratings and timescales:  
Somerset West and Taunton Council will review and where suitable use the ratings and 
timescales suggested by its approved contractors when receiving an inspection report. 
Where no timescales are given by the contractor, Somerset West and Taunton Council 
timescales as set out in its relevant policies will be adopted. Hazards deemed as urgent 
or as emergency works will be actioned as soon as reasonably practicable. This may 
include restricting access to areas immediately until the hazard can be removed.  
Somerset West and Taunton Council may at times review hazards and change their 
priority if the original priority does not reflect the current use of the building or if there has 
been additional measures put in place that reduces the overall risk. 
 
During the debate the following comments and questions were raised:- 
 

 Electrical testing in relation to HRA properties were questioned. 

 It was examined if Flook House was a General Fund or HRA property. 

 Percentages set out on page 104 was considered. Asbestos surveys were 
discussed and if delays to these following the Covid-19 pandemic were expected.  

 Sympathy around the Covid-19 sensitivities of residents were recognised where 
planned works on HRA properties were to be undertaken. 

 A new tranche of Asbestos surveys were underway. A previous tranche was still 
held from 2018. These were always conducted before any major works were 
undertaken on properties. 

 Replacement of Fire Doors were ongoing throughout the housing stock although 
a shortage of these had been experienced. 

 Legionella testing was considered on HRA properties. Water risk assessments on 
shared water systems were undertaken. Individual dwellings would be tested 
alongside other checks such as gas safety by the compliance team. 

 There was overlap between the testing programmes. Some communal areas did 
vary across the area in terms of the testing required such as electrical and water 
testing.  

 Councillors had reported ongoing issues around furniture and waste in communal 
areas and how estates officers monitored this. There were particular issues in 
instances of a lease holder who had been reported in several instances. Estate 
officers were aware of block inspections and were proactive in reporting any 
issues encountered whilst these. 

 
 
Resolved that the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee noted the contents of 
the report and progress being made in relation to landlord property safety compliance. 

 

11.   Access to Information - Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
Resolved that the press and public be excluded during consideration of agenda 
item 16 on the grounds that, if the press and public were present during the item, 

Page 11



 
 

 
 
SWT Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, 7 12 2020 

 

there would be likely to be a disclosure to them of exempt information of the class 
specified in Paragraph 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended as follows: The items contained information that could release 
confidential information that would reveal the identity of an individual.  It was 
therefore agreed that after consideration of all the circumstances of the case, the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 
 

12.   Monitoring Officer Update  
 
The Monitoring Officer provided an update in relation to recent complaints considered by 
the standards sub-committee and the numbers of complaints that had been received in 
relation to local Councillors.  
 
A training session had been undertaken on Zoom for Somerset West and Taunton 
Councillors. 
 
A meeting of group leaders would be arranged in relation to complaints around conduct 
with Officers.  
 
A further update of a number of Casual Vacancies from Parish Councils was reported. 
 
Resolved that the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee noted the update from 
the Monitoring Officer. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

(The Meeting ended at Time Not Specified) 
 
 

Page 12



AUDIT, GOVERNANCE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE
Meeting Date Draft Agenda Items Lead Officer
17 December 2020 Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 Amy Tregellas
Special Meeting External Findings Report Jackson Murray/Aditi Chandramouli
Report Deadline Going Concern Assessment Paul Fitzgerald
07 December 2020 Statement of Accounts 2019/20 Paul Fitzgerald

01 February 2021 Risk Management Strategy and Update Amy Tregellas
Changes to the Constitution Amy Tregellas
Local Code of Corporate Governance Amy Tregellas
Fraud Update Report Amy Tregellas

08 March 2021 Grant Thornton External Audit - Progress Report Jackson Murray/Aditi Chandramouli
Report Deadline Grant Thornton External Audit - Audit Plan for 2020/21 Accounts Jackson Murray/Aditi Chandramouli
24 February 2021 Grant Thornton External Audit - Grant Certification Report 2019/20 Jackson Murray/Aditi Chandramouli

Grant Thornton External Audit - Annual Audit Letter 2019/20 Jackson Murray/Aditi Chandramouli
SWAP Internal Audit - Progress Report 2020/21 Alastair Woodland
SWAP Internal Audit - Audit Plan and Charter 2021/22 Alastair Woodland
Audit Findings Action Plan Progress Report Richard Doyle
Annual Governance Statement Action Plan Update Amy Tregellas
Effectiveness of Internal Audit Amy Tregellas
Landlord Compliance Report James Barrah
Chair's Annual Report Chair of Committee
Monitoring Officer Report (standing item) Amy Tregellas

June 2021 External Audit Fees 2021/22 Paul Fitzgerald
Report Deadline Grant Thornton External Audit - Progress Report Jackson Murray/Aditi Chandramouli
TBC SWAP Internal Audit - Audit Plan 2020/21 Outturn Alastair Woodland

SWAP Internal Audit - Annual Audit Opinion 2020/21 Alastair Woodland
Treasury Management 2020/21 Annual Report Steve Plenty

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 5



Draft Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 Amy Tregellas
Audit Findings Action Plan Progress Report Richard Doyle
Monitoring Officer Report (standing item) Amy Tregellas

01 July 2021 Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 Amy Tregellas
Report Deadline Grant Thornton External Audit - Audit Findings Report 2020/21 Jackson Murray/Aditi Chandramouli
TBC Assessment of Going Concern Status Paul Fitzgerald

Approval of Statement of Accounts 2020/21 Paul Fitzgerald

P
age 14



Report Number: SWT 106/20 

Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee – 17 
December 2020 
 

Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 
 

This matter is the responsibility of the Leader of the Council, Cllr Federica 
Smith-Roberts 
 
Report Author:  Amy Tregellas, Governance Manager  
 
1 Executive Summary / Purpose of the Report  
 
1.1 To present the Committee with the final Annual Governance Statement 

2019/20 (Appendix A) and accompanying Action Plan (Appendix B). 
 
2 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Committee approves the final Annual Governance Statement and 

Action Plan for 2019/20. 
 

3 Risk Assessment (if appropriate) 
 
3.1 Failure to have robust governance arrangements in place could impact on the 

Council’s control environment and ability to operate in an economic, efficient 
and effective manner.  This could lead to recommendations being made by 
Internal and External Audit. 

 
4 Background and Full details of the Report 
 
4.1 The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is a statutory document which 

provides assurance on the governance arrangements and control 
environment within the Council. 

 
4.2 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 set out that ‘a relevant authority 

must, each financial year: (a) conduct a review of the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control; and (b) prepare an annual governance statement 

 
4.3 The Statement is prepared in accordance with the Chartered Institute of 

Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)/Society of Local Authority Chief 
Executives (SOLACE) guidance titled ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government: Guidance Notes for English Authorities and Framework.’  

 
 4.4 The Framework defines the principles that should underpin governance as: 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical 
values, and respecting the rule of law 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 

environmental benefits 
D. Determining the intervention necessary to optimise the achievement of the 

intended outcomes 
E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it 
F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and 

strong public financial management 
G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit, to 

deliver effective accountability 
 
4.5 The Annual Governance Statement includes an Action Plan to address any 

governance issues identified as a result of the review of the effectiveness of 
the system of internal control.  Details of the Council’s Governance 
Framework is included as part of the Annual Governance Statement 
(Appendix A). 

 
4.6 In order to ensure that the actions are being delivered it is important that the 

Committee review progress against the Action Plan, and update reports will 
be brought to the Committee in December 2020 and March 2021.     

 
4.7 The final version of the Annual Governance Statement is presented to you for 

approval – following the External Audit process.  
 

5 Links to Corporate Strategy 
 

5.1 Having a robust, effective and efficient governance framework in place is a 
fundamental element of being a ‘well managed’ council and avoiding 
recommendations from Internal and External Auditors. 
 

6 Finance / Resource Implications 
 

6.1 None arising from this report 
 

7 Legal  Implications (if any) 
 

7.1 None arising from this report 
 

8 Climate and Sustainability Implications (if any) 
 

8.1 None arising from this report 
 

9 Safeguarding and/or Community Safety Implications (if any) 
 

9.1 None arising from this report 
 

10 Equality and Diversity Implications (if any) 
 

10.1 None arising from this report 

Page 16



 
11 Social Value Implications (if any) 

 
11.1 None arising from this report 

 
12 Partnership Implications (if any) 

 
12.1 None arising from this report 

 
13 Health and Wellbeing Implications (if any) 

 
13.1 None arising from this report 

 
14 Asset Management Implications (if any) 

 
14.1 None arising from this report 

 
15 Data Protection Implications (if any) 

 
15.1 None arising from this report 
 
16 Consultation Implications (if any) 

 
16.1 None arising from this report 
  
 
Democratic Path:   
 

 Audit, Governance and Standards Committee – Yes   
 

 Cabinet/Executive  – No 
 

 Full Council – No 
 
 
Reporting Frequency:    Annually 
                                       
List of Appendices (delete if not applicable) 
 

Appendix A Annual Governance Statement  

Appendix B Action Plan 

 
Contact Officers 
 

Name Amy Tregellas 

Direct Dial 01823 785034 

Email a.tregellas@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk 

 

Page 17

mailto:a.tregellas@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk




 

Annual Governance Statement 
(2019/2020) 
 
 

 

 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 This is the first Annual Governance Statement for Somerset West and 

Taunton Council. 
 
1.2 Everything the Council does is focused around delivering our ambitious vision 

for Somerset West and Taunton and to ensure that we deliver the best 
possible services and outcomes for our Community whilst providing good 
value for our stakeholders 

 
1.3 This statement provides an overview of how the Council’s governance 

arrangements operate.  
 
1.4 Corporate governance refers to the processes by which organisations are 

directed, controlled, led and held to account. It is also about culture and 
values - the way that Councillors and employees think and act. 

 
1.5 The Council’s corporate governance arrangements aim to ensure that it does 

the right things in the right way for the right people in a way that is timely, 
inclusive, open, honest and accountable. 

 
1.6 This statement describes the extent to which the Council, has, for the year 

ending 31st March 2020, complied with its Governance Code and the 
requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. It also describes 
how the effectiveness of the governance arrangements have been monitored 
and evaluated during the year and sets out any changes planned for the 
2020-2021 period. 

 
1.7 The Statement has been prepared in accordance with guidance produced in 

2016 by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE). 

 
2.0 Key elements of governance 
 
2.1 Somerset West and Taunton Council is responsible for ensuring that its 

business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards. It is 
also responsible for ensuring that public money is safeguarded, properly 
accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. It also has a 
duty to continuously improve the way that it functions, having regard to 
effectiveness, quality, service availability, fairness, sustainability, efficiently 
and innovation. 

 

Page 19



2.2 To meet these responsibilities, the Council acknowledges that it has a duty to 
have in place sound and proper arrangements for the governance of its 
affairs, including a reliable system of internal control, and for reviewing the 
effectiveness of those arrangements. 

 
2.3 The key elements of the Council’s governance framework are highlighted in 

Appendix A. 
 
2.4 The Governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture 

and values by which the Council is directed and controlled, and through which 
it is accountable to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the 
Council to monitor the achievement of the strategic themes and expected 
outcomes as set out in our Corporate Strategy. 

 
2.5 The Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance, which was last reviewed 

and approved in March 2020. 
 
2.6 The document included a section on actions for 2020/21 to strengthen the 

Council’s governance arrangements.  These actions have been included in 
the Action Plan which can be found at Appendix B.  

 
 

Our commitment to good governance is made across the following core 
principles: 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and 
respecting the rule of law 

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental 
benefits 

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the 
intended outcomes 

E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and 
the individuals within it 

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 
public financial management 

G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 
effective accountability 

 

Page 20



3.0 Evidence based opinion 
 
3.1 Some of the key pillars of the Council’s governance framework are: 
 
3.2 Corporate Strategy & Business Planning 
 
3.2.1 The Council’s Corporate Strategy for 2020-24 contains the four priority 

strategic themes and outcomes, as follows:   
 

 
 
 
3.2.2 The Corporate Strategy helps us to focus our resources and drive 

improvement, and sets out where we will focus our energies and our 
increasingly limited resources and how we will measure our success.  

 
3.2.3 An annual plan has been produced which focuses on what the Council has 

delivered in the 2019/20 year and also to outline the key priorities and areas 
of focus for the 2020/21 financial year.   

 
3.2.4 Directors are currently working on producing Business Plans for their 

directorate. Once this work has been completed it will be rolled out across the 
organisation.  

 
3.2.5 A number of recommended actions are included within the Action Plan to 

strengthen and improve the Council’s governance arrangements in this area 
 
3.3 Evaluating Performance 
 
3.3.1 The Business Intelligence and Performance Manager is working with each 

Director to draw up a Directorate Performance Scorecard.  Once this work 
has been completed it will be rolled out across the organisation. 

Page 21



 
3.3.2 Two Performance Reports went before Members in 2019/20. 
 
3.3.3 There are a number of actions relating to Performance Management within 

the Action Plan (attached as Appendix B), which will strengthen the Council’s 
arrangements in respect of Performance Management.   

 
3.3.4 A Performance Framework has been drafted.  An Improvement, Performance 

and Risk Board has been set up and this involves the Senior Management 
Team, Assistant Directors and other appropriate officers meeting monthly to 
consider performance amongst other things.  

 
3.4 Managing Risk 
 
3.4.1 The management of risk is key to achieving what is set out in the Corporate 

Strategy and to ensuring that we meet all of our responsibilities.  
 
3.4.2 Our Risk and Opportunity Management Strategy is fundamental to the system 

of internal control and forms part of a sound business operating model. It 
involves an ongoing process to identify risks and to prioritise them according 
to likelihood and impact.  

 
3.4.3 The Key Business Risk Register is reviewed and challenged by the Senior  

Management Team on a regular basis, and new and emerging risks are 
added to the Register.    

 
3.4.4 All members and managers are responsible for ensuring that risk implications 

are considered in the decisions they take. This is especially important in 
meeting the Council’s financial challenges. 

 
3.4.5 In 2020/21, the Key Business register will be reviewed and challenged by 

Members as part of the Performance and Risk Report that will go before 
Committee on a quarterly basis.  This is to ensure that, as far as possible all 
significant risks have been identified and that the controls manage the risks 
efficiently, effectively and economically. 

 
3.4.6 There are a number of actions relating to Risk Management within the Action 

Plan (attached as Appendix B), which will strengthen the Council’s 
governance arrangements in respect of Risk Management.   

 
3.4.7 The South West Audit Partnership have recently completed a Health Check 

review of the Council’s Risk Management arrangements and have confirmed 
that the items in the Action Plan are appropriate actions to strengthen our 
governance arrangements. 

 
3.4.8 As outlined above, an Improvement, Performance and Risk Board has been 

set up and this also considers risk including the key business risks.  
 
 
 

Page 22



3.5 Financial Management 
 
3.5.1 The Assistant Director for Finance is responsible for the proper administration 

of the Council’s financial affairs, as required by Section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, and our financial management arrangements are 
compliant with the governance requirements set out in the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy’s ‘Statement on the Role of the Chief 
Financial Officer in Local Government’ (2016).  

 
3.5.2 The Medium Term Financial Plan sets out the Council’s strategic approach to 

the management of its finances and outlines some of the financial issues that 
we will face over the next three years.  

 
3.5.3 Our Treasury Management arrangements, where the Council invests and 

borrows funds to meet its operating requirements, follow professional practice 
and are subject to regular review.  

 
3.5.4 The Reserves Strategy enables the Council to meet its statutory requirements 

and sets out the different types of reserve, how they may be used and the 
monitoring arrangements.  

 
3.5.5 Budget monitoring reports have been taken to Committees on a regular basis 

in 2019/20 and have set out any variances.   
 
3.5.6 All members and officers are responsible for ensuring that financial 

implications are considered in the decisions they take. 
 
3.5.7 The Action Plan includes actions relating to strengthening the Council’s 

financial arrangements as well as delivering on actions arising from Internal 
Audit reports. 

 
3.6 Climate Emergency 
 
3.6.1 The Council declared a Climate Emergency in March 2019. 
 
3.6.2 The Council’s Corporate Strategy includes the priority strategic theme of ‘Our 

Environment and Economy’ and has the objective of: 
 

 
 
3.6.3 The Council has set up a Members Working Group on Climate Change and 

officers are working with this Group on the Somerset West and Taunton 
Carbon Neutrality and Climate Resilience Plan.  This document will set out the 
actions that the Council will deliver in terms of Climate Change. 

 
3.6.4 The Action Plan has now been drafted and officers are now working on the 

delivery of the actions. 

Page 23



 
3.6.5 Member representatives are on Countywide Groups working on the Somerset 

Climate Change Strategy. 
 
3.6.6 All members and officers are responsible for ensuring that climate change 

implications are considered in the decisions they take. 
 
3.7 Decision Making and Responsibilities 
 
3.7.1 The Council consists of 59 elected Members, with an Executive consisting of 

the Leader and nine Portfolio Holders who are supported and held to account 
by the Scrutiny Committee.  

 
3.7.2 Our Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made 

and the procedures for ensuring that the Council is efficient, transparent and 
accountable to local people. It contains the basic rules governing the 
Council’s business, and a section on responsibility for functions, which 
includes a list of functions which may be exercised by officers. It also contains 
the rules, protocols and codes of practice under which the Council, its 
Members and officers operate.  

 
3.7.3 The Articles and Terms of Reference within the Council’s Constitution clearly 

define the roles and responsibilities of:  

 Full Council  

 The Cabinet  

 Scrutiny Committee  

 Audit, Governance and Standards Committee  

 Planning Committee 

 Licensing Committee 
 
3.7.4 The Constitution is updated at least annually to take account of changing 

circumstances.  A Member Working Group has been set up to review the 
Constitution and any recommendations for change will be made to the Audit, 
Governance and Standards Committee and then Full Council. 

 
3.7.5 The Constitution sets out the functions of key governance officers, including 

the statutory posts of ‘Head of Paid Service’ (Chief Executive) , ‘Monitoring 
Officer’ (Governance Manager) and ‘Section 151 Officer’ (Strategic Financial 
Advisor and S151 Officer) and explains the role of these officers in ensuring 
that processes are in place for enabling the Council to meet its statutory 
obligations and also for providing advice to Members, officers and committees 
on staff management, financial, legal and ethical governance issues. 

 
3.8 Openness and Transparency 
 
3.8.1 Article three of the Council’s Constitution sets out citizens’ rights in respect of: 

(a) Voting and petitions; 
(b) Information; 
(c) Public Participation; and 
(d) Complaints  

Page 24



 
3.8.2 A number of petitions have been presented to the Council in 2019/20. 
 
3.8.3 Agendas and papers for all Committee meetings are published at least five 

clear working days before the meeting and members of the public are able to 
participate in meetings through Public Question Time. 

 
3.9 Ethical Behaviour and Conduct 
 
3.9.1 Our Codes of Conduct for Members and for Officers set out the standards of 

conduct and behaviour that are required. They are regularly reviewed and 
updated as necessary and both groups are regularly reminded of the 
requirements.  

 
3.9.2 These include the need for Members to register personal interests and the 

requirements for employees concerning gifts and hospitality, outside 
commitments and personal interests. 

 
3.9.3 The Council also has an Audit, Governance and Standards Committee which 

is responsible for promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by 
Councillors. 

 
3.9.4 An Audit of ethical behaviour and conduct is currently taking place and this 

includes a survey which has gone out to Officers and Members. 
 
3.10 Member Training and Development 
 
3.10.1 Following the District Council elections in May 2019, a programme of 

Induction Training was rolled out for all Councillors. 
 
3.10.2 All Councillors have been invited to have a one to one session to talk about 

personal development so that any training and development needs can be 
identified.  A Member Training Plan will then be produced.  

 
3.10.3 Regular Member Briefings are held to keep them updated on matters of 

importance. 
 
3.11 Equality 
 
3.11.1 The Council is committed to delivering equality and improving the quality of 

life for the people of the District. We have nine Corporate Equality Objectives 
for 2019-2023, which are: 

 

Page 25



 
 
3.11.2 In order to meet these objectives, the Council has a Corporate Equalities 

Action Plan, which sets out what we are already doing to support each 
objective as well as actions we will take to deliver against the equality 
objectives.  

 
3.11.3 Any new Council policy, proposal or service, or any change to these that 

affects people must be the subject of an Equality Impact Assessment to 
ensure that equality issues have been consciously considered throughout the 
decision making processes. 

 
3.11.4 All members and officers are responsible for ensuring that equality 

implications are considered in the decisions they take. 
 
3.12 Procurement of goods and services 
 
3.12.1 The Council recognises the value of considering different service delivery 

options in delivering our Council Plan. The effective commissioning and 
procurement of goods, works and services is therefore of strategic importance 
to our operations, while robust contract management helps to provide value 
for money and ensure that outcomes and outputs are delivered.  

 
3.12.2 Operational procedures for tendering, contract letting, contract management 

and the use of consultants are included in the Contract Procedure Rules 
which form part of the Council’s Financial Regulations. 

 
3.13 Whistleblowing 
 
3.13.1 People who work for or with the Council are often the first to realise that there 

may be something wrong within the Council. However, they may feel unable 
to express their concerns for various reasons, including the fear of 
victimisation.  

Page 26



 
3.13.2 The Council has a Whistleblowing Policy that advises staff and others who 

work for the Council how to raise concerns about activities in the workplace. 
Full details are provided on the Council’s website. 

 
3.14 Counter Fraud 
 
3.14.1 We recognise that as well as causing financial loss, fraud and corruption also 

detrimentally impact service provision and morale, and undermine confidence 
in the Council’s governance and that of public bodies generally.  

 
3.14.2 The Council has an Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy which adopts a 

zero tolerance approach to fraud and corruption.  
 
3.15 Audit and Audit Assurances 
 
3.15.1 South West Audit Partnership (SWAP) are the Council’s Internal Auditors.   
 
3.15.2 During the 2019/20 financial year, SWAP have carried out a number of Audits 

across the Council and given their opinion on the level of assurance as well 
as risk and priority in terms of taking action in terms of any recommendations, 
as follows: 

 

 
  
3.15.3 SWAP report regularly to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, 

highlighting any areas of concern. 
 
3.15.4 Any overdue Priority one recommendations are also reported to the Audit 

Committee. 
 
3.15.5 As well as delivering the Audit programme in 2019/20, SWAP carried out a 

review of the Transformation Programme, focusing on lessons learnt, that was 
carried out by Taunton Deane and West Somerset District Councils.  This 
report was discussed by a joint Scrutiny and Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee and then Executive in early 2020. 

Page 27



 
 
4.0 New and Emerging issues since March 2020 
 
4.1 The Council has taken action to play its part in dealing with the Coronavirus 

Pandemic. 
 
4.2 The Council’s continuing priorities during the Coronavirus outbreak are to:  

 Preserve critical services; 

 Safeguard the public; and  

 Ensure our most vulnerable residents are supported.  
 
4.3 Regular weekly meetings take place to discuss Risks, Actions, Issues and 

Decisions and these have been recorded in one document.  Resources have 
been diverted to focus on delivering the priorities above. 

 
4.4 The Council website has a Coronavirus information and advice page for 

members of the public and weekly newsletters have been going out to District 
Councillors, Town and Parish Councils, the Business Sector and the 
Voluntary and Community Sectors.  Officers have also been kept up to date 
with regular internal communications and a staff page on the Sharepoint site. 

 
4.5 Since the end of April, the Council has held virtual Committee meetings to 

ensure that the business of the Council can continue.  These meetings are 
live streamed so that members of the public can watch at home. 

 
5.0 Significant governance issues 
 
5.1 At the current time, there are no significant governance issues but a number 

of recommendations for improvement are set out in Appendix B. The action 
plan details the governance issues that have been identified, the proposed 
action, the responsible officer and the target date for completion. 

 
5.2 The work of Internal Audit identified 6 systems that were classed as giving 

partial or no assurance – Payroll, Information Management Project, Bank 
Arrangements, Treasury Management, Main Accounting System and Debtors. 

 

5.3 Three follow up audits were carried out in 2019/20 due to partial or no 
assurance for these areas in 2018/19 – Fire Safety Management, Supplier 
Resilience and Bereavement Services.   

 
5.4 The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee will continue to review 

progress against any audit recommendations classed as Priority 1 or 2.  
 
6.0 Conclusion 
 
6.1 Currently we can provide partial assurance that the Somerset West and 

Taunton Council’s governance arrangements are fit for purpose.  
 

Page 28



6.2 However, addressing the issues set out in the Action Plan (Appendix B) will 
bring the Council’s arrangements up to being substantially fit for purpose. 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
…………………………………………. 
 

 
 
…………………………………………… 

James Hassett Cllr Federica Smith-Roberts 
Chief Executive Officer Leader of the Council 
Date: Date: 

 
 

Page 29



APPENDIX A - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 
 

 
Corporate Governance comprises the systems and processes, cultures and values, by which local government bodies are directed 
and controlled and through which they account to, engage with and, where appropriate, lead their communities 

Key Documents: Annual 
Review/Production: 
 

 Annual Governance 
Statement 

 Annual Statement of 
Accounts 

 Business Plans 

 Committee report 
procedure 

 Constitution 

 Corporate Plan 
Performance Report 

 Corporate Risk Register 

 Delegations from/to 
Senior Management 
Team 

 Equality Information 

 Medium Term Financial 
Plan 

 Members Allowances 
Scheme 

 PSIAS Checklist 

 Treasury Management 
Strategy 

 Annual Investment 
Strategy 

Key Documents: Ad-hoc 
Review/Production: 
 

 Corporate Strategy 2019-2023 

 Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Policy 

 Business Continuity Plans 

 Community Engagement 
Framework 

 Declarations of Independence 

 Financial Regulations 

 Contract Procedure Rules 

 Health and Safety Policies 

 Information Governance 
Framework 

 Member/Officer Relations 
Protocol 

 Members’ Code of Conduct 

 Officer Employment Procedure 
Rules 

 Officers’ Code of Conduct 

 Record of Decisions 

 Risk & Opportunity 
Management Policy 

 Whistleblowing Policy 
 

Contributory Processes/ Regulatory 
Monitoring: 
 

 Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee 

 Budget Monitoring Process 

 Corporate Governance Officer Group 

 Corporate Health & Safety Committee 
and processes 

 Corporate Intranet 

 Council Tax leaflet 

 Customer feedback process 

 External Audit 

 Joint Independent Remuneration Process 

 Internal Audit 

 Job Descriptions 

 Job Evaluation Process 

 Law & Governance 

 Member Training Scheme 

 Monitoring Officer 

 Partnership Arrangements 

 Schedule of Council meetings 

 Scrutiny Framework 

 Staff Induction 

  
 

P
age 30



Appendix B – Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 
 

Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 
(plus update) 

Corporate Governance 

Now that the Council 
has been operating for 
12 months the 
Constitution is due to 
be reviewed 

A Member Working Group is set up to work 
with the Monitoring Officer to review and 
update the Constitution including the Terms 
of Reference, Council Procedure Rules, 
Financial Regulations, Contract Standing 
Orders, Members’ Code of Conduct, Officers’ 
Code of Conduct and Member Officer 
Protocol 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

31/12/20 
A member Working Group 
has been set up but has not 
yet met.  This work will 
commence in January 2021 
so as to link in with the work 
of the Council Governance 
Arrangements Working Group  

The procedure for 
dealing with 
complaints about 
Councillors needs to 
be reviewed and 
updated 
 

Review and update the procedure for dealing 
with complaints about Councillors 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

31/10/20 
Revised date: 31/03/21 
This will be reviewed through 
the Constitution Working 
Group 

The information on the 
Council website 
relating to complaints 
about Councillors 
needs to be reviewed 
and updated 
 

Review and update the information on the 
Council website in respect of complaints 
about Councillors 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

30/09/20 
The website has been 
reviewed as per the current 
arrangements.  If this 
changes following the work on 
the Constitution it will be 
revisited again. 
 

P
age 31



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 
(plus update) 

The Officer Scheme of 
Delegation is as up to 
date as it can be but 
needs to be amended 
following the finalising 
of the staff alignment 
exercise 
 

Review and update the Officer Scheme of 
Delegation following the staff alignment into 
the new Directorates 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

Completed 31/07/20 and 
ongoing 
 

Corporate Strategy and Business Planning 

The Corporate Plan is 
high level and 
aspirational 

Produce an Annual Plan which sits below the 
Corporate Strategy and sets out what the 
Council will do in the next 12 months 
 

Director for Internal 
Operations 

30/06/20 
Completed 

There is currently no 
‘golden thread’ in 
terms of Corporate and 
Business Planning and 
Individual appraisals 

Produce Directorate/Service Business Plans 
which link to the Corporate Strategy  
 
Ensure that the staff appraisal process 
includes the ‘golden thread’ so that staff can 
see how they link to the achievement of the 
Council’s objectives 
 
Relaunch of Performance Management in 
September.  Tracking and quality checking 
will be carried out by the People Business 
Partners 
 

Director for Internal 
Operations 

30/09/20 
Directorate Plans are in the 
process of being drafted 
which link to the Corporate 
Strategy. 
The Performance 
Management process was 
relaunched in September. 

Staff are not aware of 
what the Corporate 
objectives are 

Ensure that staff are reminded of the 
Corporate Priorities on a regular basis 
 

Director for Internal 
Operations 

30/06/20 and ongoing 
Covered in the CEO team 
talks in week commencing 
22/06/20 

P
age 32



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 
(plus update) 

The Council’s doesn’t 
yet have a vision and 
mission statement 
 

Develop a vision and mission statement for 
the Council  

Senior Management 
Team 

31/07/20 
Completed - Mission 
statement is ‘Public Service 
Excellence’ 

No annual report is 
produced setting out 
how the Council has 
performed against the 
Corporate Strategy 
objectives 
 

At the end of each year produce an annual 
report setting out the Council’s achievements 
against the Annual Corporate Plan targets 

Director for Internal 
Operations 

31/07/20 
Complete – draft annual plan 
for 2020/21 includes a look 
back to 2019/20 

Performance Management 

The Council’s 
Performance 
Management 
framework needs to be 
documented 

Document the Performance Management 
Framework 

Business 
Intelligence and 
Performance 
Manager 

30/09/20 
Agreed by the Corporate 
Performance Management 
Board on 30/07/20 

The Council doesn’t 
currently have a Data 
Quality Policy 
 

Draft a Data Quality Policy Business 
Intelligence and 
Performance 
Manager 

30/10/20 
Revised target date of end 
February 2021 – due to 
Business Intelligence doing a 
lot of work on Covid 

Performance 
Reporting needs to be 
improved 

Produce a Performance Scorecard for each 
Directorate 
 

Business 
Intelligence and 
Performance 
Manager 

30/06/20 
Revised target date of end 
January 2021.  Nearing 
completion of the Score cards 
produced and in ongoing 
development with Directors 

P
age 33



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 
(plus update) 

Reporting on 
performance, risk and 
finances needs to be 
improved 

Ensure that Senior Management Team 
receive monthly reporting on Performance 
Indicators, key business risks, budget 
monitoring and progress against internal audit 
recommendations 
 

Business 
Intelligence and 
Performance 
Manager 

Monthly from 31/05/20 
Completed – monthly 
Performance Management 
Board meetings set up and 
sequenced with the 
Committee cycle.  Covers 
risk, finance, programmes, 
audit actions, performance, 
people and H&S 
 

Reporting on 
performance, risk and 
finances needs to be 
improved 

Ensure that there is quarterly reporting to the 
Executive on Performance Indicators, key 
business risks and budget monitoring and 
progress against internal audit 
recommendations 
 

Business 
Intelligence and 
Performance 
Manager 

Quarterly from 30/06/20 
Now timetabled and ready for 
reporting from September 

Reporting on 
performance, risk and 
finances needs to be 
improved 

Ensure that there is half yearly reporting to 
the Scrutiny Committee and for them to 
complete an in-depth review of performance 
indicators, key business risks and budget 
monitoring 
 

Business 
Intelligence and 
Performance 
Manager 

Half yearly in September and 
February 
Quarterly reports have gone 
to Scrutiny Committee and 
the Executive 

Only overdue priority 1  
Audit 
recommendations are 
reported to the Audit, 
Governance and 
Standards Committee 
 
 

Ensure that the progress against all Internal 
Audit recommendations classed as level 1 or 
2 are reported to the Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee on a quarterly basis 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

Quarterly from 30/06/20 
On track – first report taken 
on 08/06/20 and scheduled 
for remainder of the year 

P
age 34



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 
(plus update) 

 

Risk Management 

The Corporate Risk 
Register is currently 
not reported to 
Members 
 

Ensure that the any risks scoring 15 or above 
are reported to the Members on a quarterly 
basis as part of the Performance and Risk 
Report 
 

Director of Internal 
Operations 

Quarterly from 30/09/20 
On track to meet this target 
 

The level and detail of 
risks captured at 
operational and 
service level is weak 
 

Service risk assessments need to be 
produced and held in a central repository 
 
Any service risks scoring 15 or more should 
be included as part of the key business risk 
register 
 

Director of Internal 
Operations 

31/12/20 
 

Health and Safety risks 
need to be linked to 
the Corporate Risk 
Register  
 

Ensure that Health and Safety risks are 
identified and held in a central repository 
 
Any H&S risks scoring 15 or more should be 
included as part of the key business risk 
register 
 

Health and Safety 
Officer 

30/09/20 

Project risks need to 
be linked to the 
Corporate Risk 
Register 
 

Ensure that Project risks are identified and 
held in a central repository 
 
Any Project risks scoring 15 or more should 
be included as part of the key business risk 
register 
 

Director of Internal 
Operations 

30/09/20 

P
age 35



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 
(plus update) 

Staff have not received 
risk management 
training recently 
 

Run a number of training sessions for officers 
on Risk Management, ensuring it aligns to the 
Risk and Opportunity Management Strategy 

Director of Internal 
Operations 

30/09/20 

Risk language used 
throughout the Council 
is not consistent in all 
areas, nor is the 
method of risk 
assessment or scoring 

Internal comms to get the key messages 
about risk assessment and management 
across to staff 
 
Carry our risk assessment training for officers 
that carry out service risk assessments 
 

Director of Internal 
Operations 

30/09/20 

There isn’t effective 
challenge from 
Members on how well 
Risk Management is 
working within the 
organisation 
 

Run a number of Risk Management training 
sessions for Members 
 
 

Director of Internal 
Operations 

30/09/20 

Openness and Transparency 

The information on 
public participation on 
the website is hard to 
find and is basic 

Review and update the information on the 
Council website relating to public participation 
and getting involved in local democracy 
including how decisions are made at 
Committee (especially for Planning) 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

31/08/20 
Public participation to be 
discussed as part of the work 
of Constitution Working Group 

Currently we do not 
publish the feedback 
from complaints on the 
website 

‘You said, we did’ on the website to 
demonstrate what we have changed as a 
result of complaints and feedback 
 

Assistant Director 
for Customer 

30/09/20 

P
age 36



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 
(plus update) 

Currently this is 
confusing for Members 
of the public and we 
need to change our 
approach in favour of 
transparency 

Give a better explanation re public interest 
test v confidential session. Use better wording 
on agendas and at Committees. Give more 
information on the website 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
 
 

31/08/20 

There is currently no 
performance data 
published on the 
website 

Set up a page on the website on performance 
and ensure that the quarterly reports are 
available for the public to see 
 

Business 
Intelligence and 
Performance 
Manager 

31/12/20 

Information relating to 
accessing information 
is currently not in one 
place on the website or 
easy to find 

Set up a page on the website called ‘Access 
to Information’. This to include Data 
Protection information including Privacy 
Statements, Freedom of Information including 
disclosure log, publication scheme and 
transparency code requirements 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

30/09/20 

We do not currently 
publish our responses 
to FOI requests 

Publish a Freedom of Information Disclosure 
log on the website 
 

Assistant Director 
for Customer 

30/09/20 

We do not currently 
video record or live 
stream our Committee 
meetings 
 
 
 

Video record and live stream Committee 
meetings from the start of the new Municipal 
Year 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 
 

31/05/20 
Completed 

Member Training and Development 

P
age 37



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 
(plus update) 

Ethical awareness 
needs to be improved 

Ethical awareness training for Councillors at 
least twice a year 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

31/07/20 and 31/03/21 

Need to get feedback 
from Members on 
training and 
development that we 
currently offer 

Invite all Members in for a one to one session 
to get their feedback on how things have 
been for them since the May 2019 elections 
and also to discuss their training and 
development needs 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

30/09/20 
Some were completed prior to 
lockdown but the rest will be 
carried out via Zoom 
 

We do not currently 
have a training policy 
for Councillors 

Produce a training policy for Councillors 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

30/09/20 

We don’t currently 
have a Members 
training plan 

Feed the information from the Members 
training and development requirements into a 
Member training plan and use this to source 
future training 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

30/10/20 

We don’t currently 
have a group set up to 
focus on training and 
development 
 

Set up a Member Development Group to 
focus on training and development 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

31/07/20 

We don’t currently 
have the Member 
Development Charter 

Apply for the Member Development Charter 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

31/03/21 

Don’t currently record 
Members feedback  

Carry out an annual survey to all Members 
asking for their views on their working 
relationships with officers 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

31/12/20 

Ethical Standards 

P
age 38



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 
(plus update) 

Ethical awareness 
needs to be improved 

Monitoring Officer to send quarterly updates 
to Officers and members reminding them to 
declare any interests and gifts & hospitality 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

Quarterly from 30/06/20 

Ethical awareness 
needs to be improved 
 
 

Quarterly ethical update newsletter for 
Councillors 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

Quarterly from 30/06/20 
 
 

Member Communications 

Member 
communication could 
be improved – officer 
to member and 
member to member 

Set up a Member Working Group to focus on 
IT and Communications 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

31/07/20 

Members are not 
currently getting 
feedback from reps on 
outside bodies 

Continue to send the weekly newsletter for 
Members and include sections on local ward 
matters and updates from outside bodies 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

31/07/20 
Expand and change the focus 
of the SWT newsletter 

Policies and Procedures 

Policies are in need of 
review and update 

Review and update the: 
Whistleblowing Policy 
Anti-Bribery Policy 
Anti-Fraud Strategy 
Anti-Money Laundering Policy 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

31/01/21 

The Complaints 
process needs to be 
reviewed in 
accordance with new 
Directorate Structure 

Review complaints process - do we want to 
go back to a two stage process with the first 
stage being the Service Manager and second 
stage being Assistant Director 
 

Assistant Director 
for Customer 

30/09/20 

P
age 39



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 
(plus update) 

We do not currently 
have an up to date 
Communications 
Strategy 
 

Need to draft a Communications Strategy 
 

Director of Internal 
Operations 

31/12/20 

Contracts and Partnership Working 

We do not currently 
have an up to date 
Procurement Strategy 
 

Need to draft a Procurement Strategy  
 

Strategic 
Procurement 
Specialist 

30/09/20 

The Contracts Register 
is out of date 

Ensure that the Contract Register is reviewed 
and updated 
 

Strategic 
Procurement 
Specialist 

30/09/20 

We do not currently 
have a register of 
Partnerships 

Ensure that we have a Partnership register 
 

Strategic 
Procurement 
Specialist 

31/12/20 

Regular contract 
management is 
needed 

Contract management - need to ensure that 
we have performance measures and SLAs in 
place to ensure contracts deliver 
 

Strategic 
Procurement 
Specialist 

30/09/20 

The SHAPE Legal 
contract needs to be 
reviewed and updated 
 

Review the partnership arrangements with 
SHAPE Legal 
 

Governance 
Manager and 
Monitoring Officer 

31/12/20 

Officers need to have 
training in the 
procurement process 

Training for officers on the procurement 
process 
 

Strategic 
Procurement 
Specialist 

31/10/20 

People Management 

The Council doesn’t 
currently have a 

Develop a People/Workforce strategy 
 

HR Business 
Partner 

31/12/20 

P
age 40



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 
(plus update) 

People/Workforce 
Strategy that aligns 
with the Corporate 
Strategy and MTFP 
 

HR Policies and 
procedures are out of 
date 

Ensure that all HR policies and procedures 
have been updated to be relevant for SWT 
 

HR Business 
Partner 

31/03/21 

Job descriptions are 
generic 

Job descriptions to be updated to include job 
related person specifications and wording to 
make it clear that all staff are responsible for 
Health and Safety, FOI and Complaints 
 

HR Business 
Partner 

31/12/20 

There needs to be a 
Corporate Training 
plan 
 

Produce an overarching training and 
development plan focusing on mandatory 
training, CPD training and other training  
 

HR Business 
Partner 

30/09/20 

The Induction process 
needs to be improved 

Review and update the Induction process for 
officers and focus on basic things that all 
officers need to know and tailored induction 
for items that are more job specific. 
 

HR Business 
Partner 

30/09/20 
 

We currently do not 
have a corporate 
appraisal process 
(forming the ‘golden 
thread’) 

Appraisals - have a corporate approach and 
ensure that they focus on the Councils values 
and behavioural framework as well as tasks 

HR Business 
Partner 

30/09/20 

Survey staff to get a 
picture as to how staff 
are feeling 

Carry out annual staff survey and then 
communicate to staff what actions will be 
taken as a result of the feedback 

HR Business 
Partner 

31/12/20 
First survey completed Oct 
19 

P
age 41



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 
(plus update) 

 

Community Engagement 

We don’t currently 
have an up to date 
Community 
Engagement Strategy 

Draft a Community Engagement Strategy to 
include the type of issues that we will 
meaningfully consult on or involve 
communities, individual citizens and service 
users.  
 

Director for Housing 
and Communities 

31/03/21 

We do not currently 
publish feedback on 
consultation on the 
website 

When we carry out consultation need to 
ensure that the results of the consultation are 
published on the website along with how this 
has been taken into account by the Council 
 

Director of Internal 
Operations 

As soon as we carry out 
consultation 

We do not currently 
ask the public for their 
views on the Council 
 

Carry out an annual customer survey 
 

Director of Internal 
Operations 

31/03/21 

Project Management 

Our current processes 
and procedures for 
managing projects 
needs to be improved 

Review the processes and procedures in 
place to manage projects including a robust 
business case, performance measures, risk 
assessment and logs and benefits realisation 
 

Director of Internal 
Operations 

30/09/20 

Project Management 
needs to be led 
corporately by a 
dedicated officer 
 

Ensure that the Project Management Office 
(PMO) function is delivered at a Corporate 
level 
 

Director of Internal 
Operations 

30/09/20 
There is a Corporate PMO 
role within the structure 

Finance 

P
age 42



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 
(plus update) 

The structures on E5 
are out of date 

Ensure that the way the finance system is set 
up aligns with the new Directorates structure 
 

Assistant Director 
for Finance 

31/07/20 

Budget monitoring 
does not currently go 
before Members on a 
quarterly basis 
 

Ensure that budget monitoring reports go 
before Members on a quarterly basis 

Assistant Director 
for Finance 

Quarterly from 30/09/20 

The MTFP needs to be 
amended as a result of 
Coronavirus 

Ensure that the MTFP is reviewed and 
updated to take account of the reduced 
income streams and potential increase in 
expenditure 
 

Assistant Director 
for Finance 

31/05/20 
MTFP being regularly 
reviewed by SMT and 
reports to Members in 
September 20 

Internal Audit Reports 

The Payroll Audit 
Report only gives 
partial assurance  
 

Ensure that recommendations set out in the 
report are delivered within the timescales set 
out 

Director for Internal 
Operations 

As per timescales in the 
report 

The Information 
Management Project 
Audit Report only gives 
partial assurance 
 

Ensure that recommendations set out in the 
report are delivered within the timescales set 
out 

Director for Internal 
Operations 

As per timescales in the 
report 

The Banking 
Arrangements Audit 
Report only gives 
partial assurance 
 

Ensure that recommendations set out in the 
report are delivered within the timescales set 
out 

Assistant Director 
for Finance 

As per timescales in the 
report 

P
age 43



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

Deadline 
(plus update) 

The Treasury 
Management Audit 
Report only gives 
partial assurance 
 

Ensure that recommendations set out in the 
report are delivered within the timescales set 
out 

Assistant Director 
for Finance 

As per timescales in the 
report 

The Main Accounting 
System  Audit Report 
only gives partial 
assurance 
 

Ensure that recommendations set out in the 
report are delivered within the timescales set 
out 

Assistant Director 
for Finance 

As per timescales in the 
report 

The Debtors Audit 
Report only gives 
partial assurance 
 

Ensure that recommendations set out in the 
report are delivered within the timescales set 
out 

Assistant Director 
for Customer 

As per timescales in the 
report 

IT Policies and Procedures 

IT Policies and 
Procedures need to be 
reviewed in light of the 
change to working 
arrangements 

To carry out a review of all IT Policies and 
Procedures 

IT Manager End March 2021 

 

P
age 44



Somerset West and Taunton Council  

 

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee  

 

17 December 2020 

 

Somerset West and Taunton District Council Audit Findings Report 2019/20 

 

This matter is the responsibility of Executive Councillor Henley, Corporate 

Resources  

 

Report Author: Martin Henwood, Corporate Finance Advisor  

 

1  Executive Summary  

 

1.1 This short covering report introduces the annual report of our external auditor 

Grant Thornton UK LLP outlining their findings from the audit of the 2019/20 

Statement of Accounts for Somerset West and Taunton Council (SWTC), and of 

the arrangements in place to secure Value for Money.  

 

1.2  A progress report and sector update was provided to the Audit Governance and 

Standards Committee on 7 September 2020. It was confirmed at that stage that 

significant delays had occurred due to coronavirus and that the deadline for 

completion of audit had moved to 30 November 2020 in updated Accounts and 

Audit Regulations.   

 

1.3  The audit is work in progress and Grant Thornton have indicated at this stage 

their intent to provide an unqualified opinion in respect of the accounts and value 

for money conclusion, however this will be confirmed verbally at the meeting 

when audit testing is expected to be substantially completed. 

 

2 Recommendations  

 

2.1  The Committee is recommended to note the Audit Findings Report in respect of 

SWT’s Statement of Accounts 2019/20.  

 

2.2  The Committee is recommended to note the Auditor’s Opinion in relation to the 

Statement of Accounts and Value for Money Conclusion 

 

3. Background and Full details of the Report  

 

3.1  The 2019/20 Unaudited Draft Statement of Accounts for SWT was signed off by 

the Council’s S151 Officer in 13 August 2020 – within the updated statutory 

deadline of 31 August due to Coronavirus.  

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



3.2  The accounts are subject to independent review by the Council’s appointed 

external auditor – Grant Thornton UK LLP.  The updated deadline for this was 

30 November 2020, and a notice has been included on the Council’s website 

indicating this date has not been met and that the audited accounts will be 

published as soon as is practicable.   

 

3.3 As with Authorities nationally the delay has arisen due to a combination of 
factors, including  

 the increased assurance work that auditors are required to carry out 
nationally with respect to pensions and asset valuations,  

 the impact of Covid-19 on both the complexity of the audit and pace at 
which it can be completed, and  

 in addition for SWTC, the inherent complexity of the Council’s 2019/20 
statement of accounts as the Council’s first year of operation. 

3.4 The Council is continuing to work closely with the audit team as they complete 
their work. In line with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Council has 
published a set of draft accounts. The Council will publish a final set of accounts 
as soon as the audit is concluded, and the signed Audit Report issued. This 
work is now substantially complete and the draft Audit Findings Report is 
included within this item. 

3.5 This situation has occurred for the majority of Councils.  As at 30 November 

2020 there were 265 of 485 Councils (55%) whose accounts remained to be 

signed off by their external auditors.  This compares to the 43% unsigned at 31 

July 2019 which was last year’s deadline (pre-COVID). 

 

3.6 Grant Thornton has indicated their intention to issue an “unqualified opinion” for 

the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts for SWT, subject to completing their work, 

thus agreeing that the accounts provide a true and fair view of the Council’s 

financial position and performance.  

 

3.7 The auditor has also reviewed the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, and provides a formal 

Opinion through their Value for Money Conclusion. Grant Thornton is satisfied 

“the Council had proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources”.  

 

4  Links to Corporate Aims / Priorities  

 

4.1 This report links to the Council’s aim of achieving financial stability.  

 

5  Finance / Resource Implications  

 

5.1  The auditors’ report has identified adjustments that have been made to the 

Unaudited Statement of Accounts and these are itemised at Appendix C of the 

Grant Thornton Audit Findings Report.   

Page 46



 

 

5.2  It is worth noting that the external auditors are under significant pressure from 

the Financial Reporting Council in relation to property valuations.  A 

consequence of this is that there is significantly more rigour being applied in the 

audits of property assets, including engaging qualified Valuers to assist in the 

audit of property assets on occasions.  These requirements have impacted on 

the creation of the new Balance Sheet, where significant evidence is required to 

prove ownership and value of historic assets has been an onerous task for all 

parties.  

 

5.3 As this is the first set of accounts for the Council, there are no comparative 

figures for previous years, in line with required presentation.  The new Balance 

Sheet of the Council as at 1 April 2019 is included at Note 4 within the 

Statement of Accounts, based on assets, liabilities and reserves transferred to 

SWTC on that date from Taunton Deane Borough Council and West Somerset 

Council.  

 

6  Legal Implications  

 

6.1  The Council has a statutory duty to produce financial statements.  

 

Democratic Path: 

 Audit Governance and Standards Committee – 17 December 2020  

 

Reporting Frequency: Annually 

 

 

 

Contact Officers 

 

Name Martin Henwood 

Email m.henwood@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk  

 

Name Steve Plenty 

Direct Dial 01984 600173 

Email s.plenty@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk  

 

Name Paul Fitzgerald 

Direct Dial 01823 217557 

Email p.fitzgerald@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk  

 

Page 47

mailto:m.henwood@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk
mailto:s.plenty@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk
mailto:p.fitzgerald@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk




© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

The Audit Findings
for Somerset West and Taunton Council

Year ended 31 March 2020

08 December 2020

P
age 49



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

2

Contents

Section Page

1. Headlines 3

2. Financial statements 5

3. Value for money 17

4. Independence and ethics 21

Appendices

A. Action plan                                                                                                                  22

B. Follow up of prior year recommendations                                                                                      24

C. Audit adjustments                                                                                                            25

D. Fees                                                                                                                         28      

E. Audit opinion 30

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing 
our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify 
control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible 
improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in 
part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this 
report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is 
available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

Your key Grant Thornton 
team members are:

Jackson Murray

Key Audit Partner

T:  0117 305 7859

E: Jackson.Murray@uk.gt.com

Aditi Chandramouli

Manager

T: 0117 305 7643

E: Aditi.Chandramouli@uk.gt.com

Liam Royle

Assistant Manager

T: 0117 305 7687

E: Liam.C.Royle@uk.gt.com

P
age 50



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

3

This table summarises the key findings and other matters arising from the statutory audit of Somerset West and Taunton Council (‘the Council’) and the preparation of the Council's
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 for those charged with governance.

Financial
Statements

Under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) and the
National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'),
we are required to report whether, in our opinion, the Council's
financial statements:

• give  a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Council and its income and expenditure for the year; and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the 
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority 
accounting and prepared in accordance with the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014.

We are also required to report whether other information 
published together with the audited financial statements 
(including the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and 
Narrative Report), is materially consistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.

Our audit work was completed remotely during July to December 2020. Our findings are summarised 
on pages 5 to 16. We have identified 4 adjustments to the financial statements that have resulted in a 
£1.049m adjustment to the Council’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Audit 
adjustments are detailed in Appendix C. We have also raised recommendations for management as 
a result of our audit work in Appendix A. Our follow up of recommendations from the prior year audits 
of the predecessor Councils are detailed in Appendix B.

Our work remains in progress and there are no matters of which we are aware that would require 
modification of our audit opinion (Appendix E) or material changes to the financial statements, 
subject to the outstanding matters set out on page 5 of this report.

We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial statements is 
consistent with our knowledge of your organisation. 

Our anticipated audit report opinion will be unqualified including an Emphasis of Matter paragraph in 
relation to material uncertainties with regards to the valuation of land and buildings, Council 
Dwellings and investment properties and the valuation of investment properties held on behalf of the 
Council by the Somerset Pension Fund – refer to pages 8 and 9 for further detail. As explained on 
pages 8 and 9, this is a national issue related to the Covid-19 pandemic and the Council’s valuers 
followed national guidance from RICS in their valuations.

Value for 
Money 
arrangements

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice
('the Code'), we are required to report if, in our opinion, the
Council has made proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources ('the value
for money (VFM) conclusion’).

We have completed our risk based review of the Council’s value for money arrangements. We have 
concluded that Somerset West and Taunton Council has proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We have updated our VfM risk assessment to document our understanding of your arrangements to 
ensure critical business continuity in the current environment. We have not identified any new VfM 
risks in relation to Covid-19.

We therefore anticipate issuing an unqualified value for money conclusion, as detailed in Appendix E. 
Our findings are summarised on pages 17 to 20.

Headlines

Headlines

P
age 51



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

4

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during these unprecedented times. Our audit was 
completed remotely, which was a new approach for both the audit team and your finance team. Covid-19 and the pressures resulting from this have meant that we received a set of 
financial statements later than originally anticipated. The timeliness and quality of working papers require improvement, and a recommendation has been raised in Appendix A. The 
audit was completed in three phases in July, September and November/December, with outstanding matters to be resolved by your finance team in the intervening periods. We have 
identified some matters which were raised in September and October which are currently unresolved. This, along with the difficulties caused by remote auditing have led the audit of 
the financial statements to be further behind than expected at this stage.

Covid-19 The outbreak of the Covid-19 coronavirus pandemic has had a 
significant impact on the normal operations of the Council. The 
Council has dealt with the administration of grants to businesses, 
staff re-deployment, closure of car parks, the provision of critical 
services during lockdown, and then the additional challenges of 
reopening services under new government guidelines amongst 
other challenges.

Councils were still required to prepare financial statements in 
accordance with the relevant accounting standards and the Code 
of Audit Practice, albeit to an extended deadline for the preparation 
of the financial statements up to 31 August 2020. 

The updated target date for audited financial statements was 30 
November 2020. Whilst this date was not achieved, the Council 
complied with the relevant legislation by including a notice on its 
website that stated the audit had not been completed due to the 
increased assurance work that auditors are required to carry out 
nationally with respect to pensions and asset valuations, the 
impact of Covid-19 on both the complexity of the audit and pace at 
which it can be completed, and the inherent complexity of the 
Council’s 2019/20 statement of accounts as the Council’s first year 
of operation. 

We updated our audit risk assessment to consider the impact of the pandemic on our audit 
and issued an audit plan addendum on 15 April 2020. In that addendum we reported an 
additional financial statement risk in respect of Covid-19 and further detail on the work 
completed is set out on page 7.

Restrictions on non-essential travel have meant both Council and audit staff have had to work 
remotely, requiring remote accessing of financial systems, video calling, and verifying the 
completeness and accuracy of information produced by the entity through screensharing.

We started our audit on 27 July 2020. The Council provided an initial draft set of primary 
statements to the audit team on 31 July 2020, and the final draft financial statements were 
provided on 7 August 2020, in advance of the revised national deadline, however later than 
we had originally planned. The majority of the supporting working papers had not been 
received by 17 August 2020. This has led to significant delays in completing the audit work to 
the agreed timescales.

As expected, the finance team has been stretched throughout lockdown, producing the 
accounts and dealing with audit queries, alongside the “day job” and the requirements of 
additional government returns, and internal reporting. Due to the challenges in producing a 
full set of draft financial statements and the supporting working papers we agreed with the 
Council that we would complete some of our sampling work but return to complete the audit 
from w/c 23 November 2020. We experienced some challenges with supporting working 
papers, for example in relation to debtors and creditors, and held a number of discussions 
with officers throughout the audit to ensure that we received the information that we required 
to complete the audit.

Statutory duties The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Act’) also
requires us to:

• report to you if we have applied any of the additional powers
and duties ascribed to us under the Act; and

• To certify the closure of the audit.

We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties 

We have completed the majority of work under the Code and expect to be able to certify the 
completion of the audit when we give our audit opinion.

Headlines

Headlines

P
age 52



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

5

Overview of the scope of our audit

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising from the audit that are 
significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial 
reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 and the Code 
of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). Its contents have been discussed with management. 

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) and the Code, which is directed towards forming and expressing 
an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the 
oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial statements does not 
relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the 
preparation of the financial statements.

Audit approach

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and is 
risk based, and in particular included:

• an evaluation of the Council's internal controls environment, including its IT systems and 
controls; and

• substantive testing on significant transactions and material account balances, including 
the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks.

As previously noted, we issued an addendum to our audit plan, as communicated to you on 
15 April 2020, to reflect an additional financial statements level significant risk relating to the 
Covid-19 pandemic.

Financial statements 

Audit approach

Conclusion

Our audit of your financial statements is underway, and subject to outstanding testing 
below being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion following the Audit, 
Governance and Standards Committee meeting on 17 December 2020, as detailed in 
Appendix E. The outstanding items referred to above include:

• audit procedures around significant risk areas including valuation of property, plant and 
equipment and the net pension liability;

• testing of a sample of journals to supporting evidence in order to address the risk of 
management override of controls;

• substantive audit testing in relation to income, expenditure, debtors, creditors, grants 
and employee remuneration;

• testing of the rights and obligations of opening property, plant and equipment balances;

• testing of investments and borrowings balances;

• review and testing of disclosure notes, such as financial instruments and capital 
expenditure and financing; 

• review of the Collection Fund and Housing Revenue Account;

• receipt and review of management representation letter; and

• receipt and review of the final set of financial statements.

P
age 53



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

6

Our approach to materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure 
requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. 

Materiality levels  remain the same as reported in our audit plan.

Financial statements 

Council Amount (£) Qualitative factors considered 

Materiality for the financial statements 1.74m This equates to 1.5% of your 2019/20 forecast gross expenditure for the year. This was determined 
as the appropriate benchmark for determining materiality. 1.5% has been deemed an appropriate 
percentage to use in setting materiality, due to this being the Council’s first set of financial 
statements to be audited.

This is consistent with the value reported in our Audit Plan in March 2020.

Performance materiality 1.30m This equates to 75% of materiality.

This is consistent with the value reported in our Audit Plan in March 2020.

Trivial matters 87k ISA 260 (UK) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken 
individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria. We have 
determined this to be 5% of materiality.

This is consistent with that reported in our Audit Plan in March 2020.

Materiality for senior officers’ remuneration 14k Senior Officers’ Remuneration is a balance which require a lower materiality due to its sensitive 
nature.

This is consistent with that reported in our Audit Plan in March 2020.

Materiality

P
age 54



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

7

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Auditor commentary

Covid– 19

The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led to 
unprecedented uncertainty for all organisations, requiring urgent 
business continuity arrangements to be implemented. We expected 
current circumstances would have an impact on the production and audit 
of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, including 
and not limited to:

• remote working arrangements and redeployment of staff to critical 
front line duties may impact on the quality and timing of the 
production of the financial statements, and the evidence we can 
obtain through physical observation;

• volatility of financial and property markets will increase the 
uncertainty of assumptions applied by management to asset 
valuation and receivable recovery estimates, and the reliability of 
evidence we can obtain to corroborate management estimates;

• financial uncertainty will require management to reconsider financial 
forecasts supporting their going concern assessment and whether 
material uncertainties for a period of at least 12 months from the 
anticipated date of approval of the audited financial statements have 
arisen; and 

• disclosures within the financial statements could require significant 
revision to reflect the unprecedented situation and its impact on the 
preparation of the financial statements as at 31 March 2020 in 
accordance with IAS1, particularly in relation to material 
uncertainties.

We therefore identified the global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus as a 
significant risk.

We:

• worked with management to understand the implications the response to the Covid-19 pandemic had on 
the Council’s ability to prepare the financial statements and update financial forecasts and assessed the 
implications on our audit approach. As previously noted, we received draft financial statements in advance 
of the revised national timetable but later than originally planned;

• liaised with other audit suppliers, regulators and government departments to co-ordinate practical cross 
sector responses to issues as and when they arose. An example is in respect of the material valuation 
uncertainty disclosed by the Council’s valuation experts in respect of land and buildings and investment 
properties as well as pension fund property investments;

• evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements in light of the Covid-19 pandemic;

• evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence using alternative approaches could be obtained for the 
purposes of our audit whilst working remotely;

• evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence could be obtained to corroborate significant management 
estimates such as asset valuations and recovery of receivable balances; and

• evaluated management’s assumptions that underpin the revised financial forecasts and the impact on 
management’s going concern assessment.

Findings

We received the draft financial statements, and supporting working papers later than originally planned, as set 
out previously in this report. We continue to liaise with management and the finance team to obtain the 
evidence required in order for our testing to be completed.

Material valuation uncertainties have been disclosed by the Council’s valuation experts in respect of land and 
buildings and investment properties, as well as pension fund investment properties. This is a national issue 
related to the Covid-19 pandemic and the Council followed national guidance from RICS in its valuations. Our 
opinion includes an emphasis of matter as a result.

The revenue cycle includes fraudulent transactions (rebutted)

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue 
may be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.

We rebutted the risk at the planning stage of our audit. No circumstances arose that indicated we would need 
to reconsider this judgement.

Financial statements 

Significant audit risks

P
age 55



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

8

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Auditor commentary

Management over-ride of controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-
rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of 
management over-ride of controls is 
present in all entities.
We therefore identified management 
override of control, in particular journals, 
management estimates and 
transactions outside the course of 
business as a significant risk.

We:

• evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals;

• analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting high risk and unusual journals;

• gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied made by management and considered their 
reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence; and 

• evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions. 

Findings

We have not currently identified any matters in relation to management override of controls, however our substantive testing of journals posted 
during the year and after year end as part of the accounts production process is not yet complete. We will provide members with a verbal update on 
any findings arising from this significant risk at the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee.

Valuation of land and buildings

The Authority revalues its land and 
buildings on a rolling five-yearly basis. 
This valuation represents a significant 
estimate by management in the financial 
statements due to the size of the 
numbers involved and the sensitivity of 
This estimate to changes in key 
assumptions.

Additionally, management will need to 
ensure the carrying value in the 
Authority financial statements is not 
materially different from the current 
value or the fair value (for surplus 
assets) at the financial statements date, 
given a rolling programme is used.

The Authority also has investment 
properties which must be valued 
annually at 31 March.

We therefore identified valuation of land 
and buildings, including investment 
properties and surplus assets, as a 
significant risk.

We:

• evaluated management’s processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimates, the instructions issued to valuation experts and the 
scope of their work;

• evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation experts;

• wrote to the valuers to confirm the basis on which the valuations were carried out;

• selected a sample of in-year valuations to test;

• tested the sampled revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the Council’s asset register; 

• challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuers for the sampled assets to assess completeness and consistency with our 
understanding; and

• evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and how management has satisfied themselves 
that these are not materially different to current value at year end.

Findings

Our audit work in relation to the valuation of land and buildings, and investment properties is currently underway. The Council’s finance team and 
audit team identified that the Council’s investment property balance, and correspondingly the financing and investment income in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement were overstated by £1.049m.

We have identified material balances of £6.198m which have been misclassified between property, plant and equipment, and investment 
properties. The balance sheet will be adjusted for these misclassifications. We have considered the impact of this error on the opening balances, as 
some of the misclassifications also existed in the predecessor entities’ financial statements. The Council have agreed to amend opening balances.

Management’s expert has disclosed a material uncertainty with regards to the valuations of land, buildings, dwellings, investment properties and 
surplus assets. This will result in the audit report including an emphasis of matter as previously noted.

Financial statements

Significant audit risks

P
age 56



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

9

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Auditor commentary

Valuation of the pension fund net liability

The Authority's pension fund net liability, as 
reflected in its balance sheet as the net defined 
benefit liability, represents a significant estimate in 
the financial statements.

The pension fund net liability is considered a 
significant estimate due to the size of the numbers 
involved and the sensitivity of the estimate to 
changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the Authority’s 
pension fund net liability as a significant risk.

We:

• gained an understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure that the Council’s pension fund 
net liability is not materially misstated and evaluated the design of the associated controls; 

• evaluated the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an actuary) for this estimate and the scope of the 
actuary’s work;

• assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Council’s pension fund valuation;

• assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Council to the actuary to estimate the liability; 

• tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to the core financial statements with 
the actuarial report from the actuary; and

• undertook procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the report of the consulting 
actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performed additional procedures suggested within the report. 

Findings

Our audit work in relation to the valuation of the pension fund net liability is currently underway. We have written to the actuary to 
get additional information around material experience items and the duration of liabilities. 

Somerset Pension Fund has disclosed a material uncertainty with regards to the valuations of property funds included within the 
pension assets. A corresponding material uncertainty is required to be disclosed in the Council’s financial statements as its share of 
these property funds is material. This will result in the audit report including an emphasis of matter, highlighting this material 
uncertainty.

Completeness of opening balances

On 1 April 2019, Taunton Deane Borough Council 
and West Somerset District Council demised, and 
Somerset West and Taunton Council was formed.

The existing ledger data from the old Authorities 
was combined to form the opening balances for 
Somerset West and Taunton Council. There is a 
risk that the opening balances may be incomplete 
or inaccurate.

We:

• reviewed the process for transferring balances from the legacy organisations to the new Authority; and

• mapped the closing balances from the 2018/19 general ledgers to the opening position of the new Authority at 1 April 2019 to
ensure the accuracy and completeness of the financial information, ensuring the appropriate treatment of any intra-organisation
transactions.

Findings

As part of our completeness review, we identified some account codes beginning with ‘X’ which contained opening balances which 
had not formed part of the new Council’s opening balances. We discussed this with your finance team and identified that these were 
disclosure account codes which are cleared to nil at year end and do not impact upon opening balances. We consider this to be
appropriate. 

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of the completeness of opening balances. 

Financial statements

Significant audit risks

P
age 57



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

10

Financial statements

This section provides commentary on new issues and risks which were identified during the course of the audit that were not previously communicated in the Audit Plan and a 
summary of any significant control deficiencies identified during the year.

Issue Commentary Auditor view

IFRS 16 implementation has been delayed by one 
year

Although the implementation of IFRS 16 has been 
delayed to 1 April 2021, audited bodies still need to 
include disclosure in their 2019/2020 statements to 
comply with the requirement of IAS 8 para 31. As a 
minimum, we would expect audited bodies to disclose 
the title of the standard, the date of initial application 
and the nature of the changes in accounting policy for 
leases

Note 2 of the draft financial statements identifies that an 
estimated impact of this standard will need to be reported in 
the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts, and that the authority is 
continuing to assess the potential impact. At the time of 
writing, it was not possible to estimate the likely impact as 
the Council are still in the process of identifying the lease 
arrangements most likely to be affected. 

We have reviewed the disclosures within the financial 
statements and consider these to be in line with IAS 8 para 
31.

Subsequent to the production of the financial statements, 
CIPFA/LASAAC have also confirmed that IFRS 16 will be 
deferred for another additional year.

Significant findings – other issues

P
age 58



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

11

Financial statements

Accounting area Summary of management’s policy Auditor commentary Assessment

Land and Buildings –
Council Housing -
£296.9m

The Council owns 5,741 dwellings and is required to 
revalue these properties in accordance with DCLG’s 
Stock Valuation for Resource Accounting guidance. 
The guidance requires the use of beacon 
methodology, in which a detailed valuation of 
representative property types is then applied to similar 
properties. The Council has engaged Wilks Head and 
Eve to complete the valuation of these properties. The 
year end valuation of Council Housing was £296.9m, 
a net increase of £10.5m from 2018/19 (£286.4m). 

From our review of management’s processes and assumptions for the 
calculation of the estimate, no issues were identified in regard to the valuation 
basis. We have challenged management’s expert on the use of an index to 
undertake the valuations of some properties in year.

We evaluated the assumptions made by management in undertaking the 
valuation of Council dwellings by using comparable indices, and raised follow 
up queries where variances above our tolerable threshold were identified. 
These are currently being reviewed by the audit team.

Management’s expert has reported the valuation of Council Dwellings on the 
basis of material valuation uncertainty due to Covid-19, and we have asked 
management to include this material uncertainty within the financial statements

Our audit work in this area is currently underway, and we will provide members 
with a verbal update at the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee.

In progress

Investment Properties 
- £14m

Management have used Wilks Head and Eve to 
undertake the valuation of their portfolio of investment 
properties. The valuer has disclosed the valuations on 
the basis of material valuation uncertainty. The 
investment properties are classified as Level 3 
investments within the financial statements. The total 
year end valuation of investment properties was 
£14m, a net decrease of £7.7m from 2018/19 
(£21.7m). The large decrease is due to a 
reclassification in year.

We evaluated the assumptions made by management in undertaking the 
valuation of investment properties by using comparable indices, and raised 
follow up queries where variances above our tolerable threshold were 
identified. Our testing in this area is currently underway 

Management’s expert has reported a material uncertainty in relation to the 
valuation of investment properties due to Covid-19, and we asked the Council 
to include appropriate disclosures to reflect this in the statement of accounts.

The finance team and the audit team identified that the investment properties 
balance had been overstated by £1m and requested that management make 
an adjustment to correct this in the final version of the financial statements. 
Whilst this does not represent a material adjustment, the Council have agreed 
to amend the accounts to correct this.

We also identified that reclassifications of £6.2m between property, plant and 
equipment and investment properties have been incorrectly made whereby 
they should have been made in the previous year, or the basis of 
reclassification is incorrect

In progress

Significant findings – key estimates and judgements

P
age 59



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

12

Financial statements

Accounting
area Summary of management’s policy Auditor commentary Assessment

Land and 
Buildings –
Other -
£99.1m

Other land and buildings comprises specialised assets, which are 
required to be valued at depreciated replacement cost (DRC) at 
year end, reflecting the cost of a modern equivalent asset 
necessary to deliver the same service provision. Other land and 
buildings which are not specialised in nature are required to be 
valued at existing use in value (EUV) at year end. The Council has 
engaged Wilks Head and Eve to complete the valuation of 
properties as at 31 March 2020 on a five yearly cyclical basis. 
50% of total assets were revalued during 2019/20. 

In line with RICS guidance, the Council’s valuer disclosed a 
material uncertainty in the valuation of the Council’s land and 
buildings at 31 March 2020 as a result of Covid-19. The Council 
has included disclosures on this issue in Note 4.

The valuation of properties valued by the valuer has resulted in a 
net decrease of £8.5m. Management have considered the year 
end value of non-valued properties to determine whether there 
has been a material change in the total value of these properties. 
The audit team are in the process of discussing this assessment 
with management. The total year end valuation of ‘Other land and 
buildings’ was £99.1m, a net increase of £10.9m from 2018/19 
(£88.2m). The large increase is due to reclassifications from other 
asset classes.

Our work in relation to the valuation of land and buildings is underway.

We evaluated the assumptions made by management in undertaking the 
valuation of Land and Buildings by using comparable indices, and raised follow 
up queries where variances above our tolerable threshold were identified. 

Management’s expert has reported a material uncertainty in relation to the 
valuation of land and buildings due to Covid-19, and the Council has included 
appropriate disclosures to reflect this in the statement of accounts.

In progress

Significant findings – key estimates and judgements

P
age 60



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

13

Financial statements

Accounting area Summary of management’s policy Auditor commentary Assessment

Net pension 
liability – £111.9m

The Council’s net pension liability at 31 
March 2020 is £111.9m (PY £105.7m) 
comprising Local Government defined 
benefit pension scheme. The Council 
uses Barnett Waddingham to provide 
actuarial valuations of the Council’s 
assets and liabilities derived from this 
scheme. A full actuarial valuation is 
required every three years. 

Somerset Pension Fund have disclosed 
a material uncertainty in relation to their 
property funds in their financial 
statements. We have requested that the 
Council include disclosures on this 
issue in Note 4.

The latest full actuarial valuation was 
completed in 2019. A roll forward  
approach is used in intervening periods 
which utilises key assumptions such as 
life expectancy, discount rates, salary 
growth and investment return .Given the 
significant value of the net pension fund 
liability, small changes in assumptions 
can result in significant valuation 
movements. There has been a £0.7m 
net actuarial gain during 2019/20.

Our audit work in relation to the valuation of the net pension liability is currently underway.

We have undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions 
made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any 
additional procedures suggested within the report. 

Somerset Pension Fund have disclosed a material uncertainty in relation to their property funds 
in their financial statements. As the Council’s share of the property assets is material, we 
recommended that the Council include a corresponding material uncertainty within their financial 
statements. 

We have made enquiries of the actuary in relation the McCloud/Sargeant judgments, duration of 
liabilities and the material experience items recognised in year. We currently await their 
response. We will also make enquiries of the actuary around the salary growth assessment, as 
set out in the table below.

Inprogress

Assessment

 We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious  

 We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

Assumption Actuary 
Value

PwC range Assessment

Discount rate 2.35% 2.35% 

Pension increase rate 1.90% 1.85% - 1.95% 

Salary growth 2.50% Scheme and employer 
specific, typically 2.85 –
2.95%



Life expectancy – Males 
currently aged 45 / 65

23.3/24.7 21.4-23.3/22.8-24.7 

Life expectancy – Females 
currently aged 45 / 65

24.7/26.2 23.7-24.7/25.2-26.2 

Significant findings – key estimates and judgements

P
age 61



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

14

Going concern commentary Auditor commentary

Management's assessment process

• Management have prepared a paper which contains a review of the financial position as at 31 
March 2020 alongside an assessment of the ability of the Council to continue operating for the 
foreseeable future.

• Management have also prepared a cash flow forecast from April 2020 to December 2021.
• Management have considered the impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s ability to continue as a 

going concern, and have factored this into their medium term financial planning.
• In making their assessment, management have considered the Council’s reserves, liquidity, 

capital expenditure as well as assumptions about income and expenditure over the next few 
years.

• Management’s assessment of the use of the going concern basis of 
accounting is appropriate.

• The cashflow projections and medium term financial planning projections are 
based on prudent assumptions about future income

• We consider that the medium term financial planning projections are based on 
prudent assumptions about future income and expenditure.

Work performed
• We have reviewed management’s assessment and cashflow projections in arriving at the 

conclusion that the Council is a going concern, and reviewed the disclosures in the narrative 
report and financial statements.

• We have also reviewed the Medium Term Financial Plan to 2025-26 and the 2020-21 Budget and 
are satisfied that the Going Concern basis is appropriate for the 2019-20 financial statements.

• We have not identified a material uncertainty in relation to management’s 
assessment of the use of the going concern basis of accounting. We consider 
this to be appropriate.

• The disclosures in the accounts require amendment to include the going 
concern basis of accounting within the accounting policies.

Concluding comments

Overall we are satisfied with management adopting the going concern basis of accounting, having reviewed management’s going concern assessment and cash flow projections to 
December 2021.

Financial statements

Our responsibility

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK) 570). 

Significant findings – going concern

P
age 62



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

15

Financial statements

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.

Issue Auditor commentary

Matters in relation to fraud We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee and we have not been made aware of 
any incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures. 

Matters in relation to related 
parties

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed.

Matters in relation to laws and 
regulations

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not identified any 
incidences from our audit work.

Written representations A letter of representation has been requested from the Council which is included in the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee papers. 

Confirmation requests from third 
parties 

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests for the Council’s bank and investment balances. This permission 
was granted and the requests were sent. 4 of these requests are currently outstanding.

We requested permission from management to send confirmation requests to the pension fund auditor. This permission was granted and the 
requests were sent. We have received the assurances from the pension fund auditor.

We requested permission from management to send requests to the Council’s two valuers. This permission was granted and the requests were 
sent. We received responses from one valuer involved and we have completed our audit procedures in relation to this request. We are still 
awaiting a response from the Council’s other valuer.

Disclosures Our identified disclosure and misclassification errors are reported in Appendix C.

Audit evidence and explanations We obtained difficulties in obtaining working papers and audit evidence to the required standard. Delays were also experienced in receiving the 
Council’s draft financial statements in line with agreed timescales due to the finance team being stretched throughout lockdown. We continue to 
engage with the finance team to obtain the required evidence required to complete our audit in a timely manner.

Other matters for communication

P
age 63



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

16

Financial statements

Issue Commentary

Other information We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial statements (including the 
Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report), is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

No inconsistencies have been identified. We plan to issue an unmodified opinion in this respect – see Appendix E

Matters on which we report by 
exception

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a numbers of areas:

• if the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is misleading 
or inconsistent with the other information of which we are aware from our audit

• if we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties

We have nothing to report on these matters

Specified procedures for Whole 
of Government Accounts 

We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation pack 
under WGA group audit instructions. 

Work is not required as the Council does not exceed the threshold set for full audit procedures by the NAO.

Certification of the closure of the 
audit

We are unable to certify the closure of the 2019-20 audit of Somerset West and Taunton Council in the audit report, due to the outstanding 
objection in relation to Taunton Deane Borough Council’s 2018-19 accounts. 

Other responsibilities under the Code

P
age 64



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

17

Value for Money

Risk assessment 

We carried out an initial risk assessment in February 2020 and identified a significant 
risk in respect of the Medium Term Financial Position, including the Commercial 
Strategy. We communicated these risks to you in our Audit Plan in March 2020

We have continued our review of relevant documents up to the date of giving our report, 
and have not identified any further significant risks where we need to perform further 
work.

We carried out further work only in respect of the significant risks we identified from our 
initial and ongoing risk assessment. Where our consideration of the significant risks 
determined that arrangements were not operating effectively, we have used the 
examples of proper arrangements from AGN 03 to explain the gaps in proper 
arrangements that we have reported in our VFM conclusion.

Background to our VFM approach

We are required to satisfy ourselves that the Council has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as 
the Value for Money (VFM) conclusion. 

We are required to carry out sufficient work to satisfy ourselves that proper arrangements 
are in place at the Council. In carrying out this work, we are required to follow the NAO's 
Auditor Guidance Note 3 (AGN 03) issued in April 2020. AGN 03 identifies one single 
criterion for auditors to evaluate: 

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Informed 
decision 
making

Value for 
Money 

arrangements 
criteria

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

Working 
with partners 
& other third 

parties

Value for Money

P
age 65



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

18

Our work

AGN 03 requires us to disclose our views on significant qualitative aspects of the Council's 
arrangements for delivering economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

We have focused our work on the significant risks that we identified in the Council's 
arrangements. In arriving at our conclusion, our main considerations were:

• Medium Term Financial Planning and the need to identify further savings in the medium 
term to balance the budget; and

• future plans to bridge the budget gap, considering the impact of Covid-19 on medium 
term finances. 

We have set out more detail on the risks we identified, the results of the work we 
performed, and the conclusions we drew from this work on pages 19 and 20.

Overall conclusion

Based on the work we performed to address the significant risks, we are satisfied that the 
Council had proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources. 

The text of our report, which confirms this can be found at Appendix E.

Recommendations for improvement

We discussed findings arising from our work with management and have agreed 
recommendations for improvement.

Our recommendations and management's response to these can be found in the 
Action Plan at Appendix A

Significant difficulties in undertaking our work

We did not identify any significant difficulties in undertaking our work on your 
arrangements which we wish to draw to your attention.

Significant matters discussed with management

There were no matters where no other evidence was available or matters of such 
significance to our conclusion or that we required written representation from 
management or those charged with governance. 

Value for Money

Value for Money

P
age 66



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

19

Key findings

We set out below our key findings against the significant risks we identified through our initial risk assessment and further risks identified through our ongoing review of documents. 

Significant risk Findings

Medium Term Financial Position

We reported in our audit plan in March 
2020 that the Authority set a budget in 
February 2019 with a balanced financial 
plan for 2019/20. This plan includes 
savings through transformation, and 
states that there would be a budget 
deficit of £2.1m per year by 2023/24 
without these savings.

We identified that we would review the 
latest version of the Authority’s medium 
term financial plan (MTFP), and the 
assumptions that underpin the MTFP 
including proposed savings, to ensure 
that these are appropriate.

The Authority is also implementing a 
capital investment strategy designed to
deliver income to support medium term 
finances. We will consider the 
governance surrounding this strategy, 
including the decision making processes 
and the risk management 
considerations that support the strategy.

Our detailed review of the assumptions underpinning the MTFP concludes that they are satisfactory and reasonable. 

The 2019/20 outturn position was an underspend of £1.8m against the profiled budget which represents a positive variance of 8.2% against 
the net budget. The budget monitoring report to the end of November 2019 forecasted an overall net overspend of £36k. The previous 
forecast as at Month 6 was a net overspend of £0.8m largely caused due to additional staffing costs of £0.7m, which was approved via a 
supplementary budget increase in December 2019. The reason for the underspend is largely due to a number of one-off savings on 
planning, homelessness, council tax collection, insurance, leisure, and transformation costs. The 2019-20 Capital Outturn shows a 
significant underspend of £3.6m, which is caused in large part due to timing delays on capital projects which will be carried forward into 
2020-21.

Savings are monitored by finance on a regular basis. Savings are built into base budgets, and are therefore monitored through the variances 
reported in quarterly revenue budget monitoring. The Authority set a balanced budget for the 2020/21 financial year, with a Council Tax 
increase of £5 for Band D properties being agreed. Significant savings targets are included within the 2021/22 and 2022/23 budgets, which 
includes income from investment properties in line with the Commercial Strategy, savings from modernisation, as well as reliance on 
reserves. 

In the medium term, the Senior Management Team and the s151 Officer has considered ways in which to create some flexibility around the 
savings targets and income within the next few years. As a result, there has been a review of the capital programme and this has been 
reduced by removing some legacy schemes for which firm commitments don’t exist. Additionally, the s151 Officer is also looking at funding 
growth and regeneration capital spend funded through borrowing. The Council are considering a re-fresh of their MRP policy as a result of 
this which will be completed as part of annual 2021-22 budgeting. The s151 Officer has also obtained approval to transfer £3.9m of New 
Homes Bonus reserve to General Reserves in 2020-21, noting alternative financing for relevant capital schemes through Community 
Infrastructure Levy and borrowing. The impact of this is that £3.9m has been released immediately and £0.9m will be released in future 
years. 

The current MTFP runs to 2025/26 with annual savings required by 2025/26 of £6.3m. The MTFP is based on detailed modelling 
assumptions, which we have reviewed as part of our detailed value for money work. An update to the financial Strategy was taken to 
Executive Committee in October 2020, and focuses on an update to the financial plan for the 2020-21 to 2022-23 financial years. This 
includes the impact of Covid-19 on Council Tax and NDR income in future years, and addresses the ways in which risks can be mitigated. 
This includes the use of reserves. The gap in the MTFP over the next few years represents a significant challenge to the Council, and the 
use of reserves to bridge the gap is unsustainable. However, the Council has used methods as set out above in relation to the capital 
programme and commercial strategy in the short to medium term, which will relieve some of the pressure on the use of reserves.

Value for Money

Value for Money

P
age 67



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

20

Key findings

We set out below our key findings against the significant risks we identified through our initial risk assessment and further risks identified through our ongoing review of documents. 

Significant risk Findings

Medium Term Financial Position

We reported in our audit plan in March 
2020 that the Authority set a budget in 
February 2019 with a balanced financial 
plan for 2019/20. This plan includes 
savings through transformation, and 
states that there would be a budget 
deficit of £2.057m per year by 2023/24 
without these savings.

We identified that we would review the 
latest version of the Authority’s medium 
term financial plan, and the assumptions 
that underpin the MTFP including 
proposed savings, to ensure that these 
are appropriate.

The Authority is also implementing a 
capital investment strategy designed to
deliver income to support medium term 
finances. We will consider the 
governance surrounding this strategy, 
including the decision making processes 
and the risk management 
considerations that support the strategy.

The Council formally adopted a Commercial Strategy in December 2019. The strategy identified that part of the Council’s drive towards 
financial sustainability would now include identifying new opportunities to generate income and investment in projects which provide good 
financial returns, in order to fund local authority services where other funding continues to fall significantly. Income from investment property 
has been budgeted at £2.9m from 2020-21 and has been built into the medium term financial plan. 

We have considered the strategy within the current climate, and have also reviewed the arrangements in place to monitor existing
investments, and processes for identifying new investments. The governance processes around the Strategy have also been reviewed. 

To mitigate against the risk of this new strategy, an investment risk reserve was set up in 2019-20, which has a balance of £3.5m. This has 
been reallocated from other reserves. The aim of this reserve is to include a buffer against any delays in opportunities or, deals falling 
through at the last minute which could impact on the income in that particular year. Optimism bias has also  been built into the MTFP as 
management are aware that there are some risks around rate at which assets can be purchased, as well as yield and financing 
arrangements. This has been built in for 3 years with the intention that any additional income would be transferred to the investment risk 
reserve to provide protection against potential lower income in future years. 

From a review of the governance processes followed, we are satisfied that the governance arrangements included within the commercial 
strategy have been appropriately followed. The Council’s strategy shows that diversification of the market, in terms of the size of property, 
geographical location, and sector have been clearly considered. 

The Council intends to rely on borrowing to fund the initial purchase of commercial properties. On 25 November 2020, at the Spending 
Review announcement, the Treasury published its response to a consultation on changes to PWLB lending terms. The government said that 
before borrowing from the facility, councils will now be expected to demonstrate their capital plans do not include any plans to buy assets 
purely to produce a yield. There is likely to be a significant impact as a result of this on the Council, and we discussed this with the s151 
Officer. The Council are exploring what this means for their investment strategy. We would recommend that the Council continue to review 
their commercial investment strategy in light of this announcement and consider alternative sources of funding. 

Conclusion: The Council’s MTFP is derived from a robust process and is based on reasonable planning assumptions. The gap in the MTFP 
over the next few years represents a significant challenge to the Council, and the use of reserves to bridge the gap is unsustainable. The 
Council has considered this and processes to generate savings in the medium term, such as through the commercial strategy have been 
considered. The Council’s governance processes in relation to the Commercial Strategy are being followed appropriately, however the 
impact of the Spending Review could have an impact on the Strategy. The Council should continue to monitor the position in light of this 
announcement. We have raised two recommendations as a result of this in Appendix A. 

Value for Money

Value for Money

P
age 68



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

21

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 
statements.

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in May 2020 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical 
requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix D.

Audit and Non-audit services

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The following non-audit services were identified.

These services are consistent with the Council’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. All services have been reported to and approved by the Section 151 Officer 
and Audit, Governance and Standards Committee. None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees. 

Independence and ethics

Independence and ethics

Fees £ Threats identified Safeguards

Audit related

Certification of housing 
capital receipts return

5,000 Self-Interest (because this is a 
recurring fee)

Self review (because GT 
provides audit services)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the 
combined fees for this work is £23,500 in comparison to the planned fee for the audit of £60,500 and in 
particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no 
contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

To mitigate against the self review threat , the timing of certification work is done after the audit has completed, 
materiality of the amounts involved to our opinion and unlikelihood of material errors arising and the Council has 
informed management who will decide whether to amend returns for our findings and agree the accuracy of our 
reports on grants.

Certification of Housing 
Benefit subsidy claim 

18,500

P
age 69



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

22

We have identified 4 recommendations for the Council as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our recommendations with management and we will 
report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2020/21 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the 
course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing standards.

Controls

 High – Significant effect on control system

 Medium – Effect on control system

 Low – Best practice

Appendix A

Assessment Issue and risk Recommendations


Medium

Medium Term Financial Plan

The Council’s medium term financial plan includes reliance on 
reserves in the medium term to bridge the budget gap. Whilst an 
adequate level of resources exists in the medium term, the Council 
should continue to monitor this and replenish reserves, or find 
alternative forms of savings to bridge the budget gap.

Management should continue to monitor the medium term financial plan and the reliance on 
reserves to bridge the budget gap.

Management response

Agreed. Savings plans will continue to be developed for the short-medium term. 
Management is mindful of the proposed implementation of unitary structure for local 
government in Somerset which if approved will provide longer term opportunities for 
savings.


Medium

Commercial Strategy

The Council’s Commercial Strategy is a key strategy within its 
medium term financial planning, and involves the use of income 
from investment properties to generate savings. The Spending 
Review in November 2020 announced that councils will now be 
expected to demonstrate their capital plans do not include any 
borrowing to buy assets purely to produce a yield. This may impact 
upon the Council’s ability to fulfil it’s Commercial Strategy.

Management should continue to review the impact of this announcement on the 
commercial strategy, and consider alternative sources of funding as appropriate.

Management response

Agreed. The Council can access a variety of sources for debt and does so as part of the 
capital and treasury management plans. The S151 Officer will investigate further alternative 
sources of long term funding if PWLB cannot be used.


Medium

Counter fraud reporting

It was identified that there was no formal counter fraud reporting at 
the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee.

We recommend that management introduce counter fraud reporting regularly at the Audit, 
Governance and Standards Committee.

Management response

Agreed. An annual fraud update report is included in the Audit Governance and Standards 
Committee Forward Plan for March 2021.

Action plan

P
age 70



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

23

Controls

 High – Significant effect on control system

 Medium – Effect on control system

 Low – Best practice

Appendix A

Assessment Issue and risk Recommendations


Medium

Quality of working papers and audit evidence

We identified that the quality of working papers, such as creditors 
and debtors listings, were not to the required standard. Additionally, 
we identified that sample evidence provided in relation to areas such 
as capital additions and REFCUS were not based on appropriate 
third part evidence. This has resulted in delays in the audit process.

We recommend that the Council make improvements to the quality of the working papers 
identified and provide training to employees around the quality of audit evidence to be 
provided. 

Management response

Agreed. We have engaged additional temporary capacity within the finance service, with 
objectives including delivering improvements in the preparation and delivery of financial 
reporting. This will include building on learning from the challenges faced and ensuring 
working papers are produced in line with standards clarified through this year’s audit.

Action plan (continued)

P
age 71



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

24

We identified the following issues in the audit of the predecessor Councils’ 2018/19 financial statements, which resulted in 5 recommendations being reported in our 2018/19 Audit 
Findings Reports. We have followed up on the implementation of our recommendations and note that one recommendation has not been addressed, and has also been raised as a 
recommendation in the current year in the Action Plan.

Appendix B

Assessment Issue and risk previously communicated Update on actions taken to address the issue

 Taunton Deane and West Somerset: The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan is 
dependent on savings to be realised from the transformation programme. The 
programme has incurred higher costs than originally anticipated. The Council should 
continue to monitor the transformation costs finances as any further increases could 
impact the medium term financial planning, and reserves.

Through discussion with management, we are satisfied that the Council has 
been monitoring transformation costs in their medium term financial plan.

 Taunton Deane: During the course of the audit, it was identified that the Council did not 
undertake a formal bank reconciliation for the General Imprest (Creditors) bank 
account. The audit team undertook additional procedures in order to gain assurance 
over the bank balance as at 31 March 2019. The risk of not undertaking bank 
reconciliations could be that there might be material variances between the bank and 
the ledger, therefore the financial statements

During 2019/20 regular monthly reconciliations of the Creditors Account was 
undertaken as part of monthly control procedures.

X Taunton Deane: During the course of our audit work we encountered a number of
problems obtaining supporting evidence in relation to payroll supporting documentation, 
transaction level reports for debtors and creditors, supporting information to prove the 
completeness of journals and working papers in relation to a number of areas in the 
financial statements. This led to difficulty undertaking audit procedures.

We encountered difficulties in obtaining working papers and audit evidence 
during the 2019-20 audit. An updated recommendation has been raised in 
relation to this in Appendix A.

 Taunton Deane: Our testing of Members disclosures of interest found that a proportion 
of requests had not been returned as at September 2019. Whilst each meeting will 
require Members to declare interests, we recommend that as there is also a formal 
process in place for Members to declare any interests, that this process is followed.

Although a similar process for collating Members disclosures was kept in place, 
the return of forms is now co-ordinated by the Monitoring Officer and other 
members of the Governance and Democracy Team, who have more regular 
contact with Members through the committee process. Regular reminders were 
also given at Council Meetings where outstanding forms were chased.

 West Somerset: We identified that the calculation of the provision for Council Tax and 
NNDR bad debt were not based on specific factors. Specifically, a 30% provision was 
provided for debts between 2 and 6 years old, which we do not consider to be prudent.  
Using specific factors as used by Taunton Deane Council, our re-calculated provision 
for Council Tax is £142k and for NNDR is £151k. The overall difference between the 
provisions made by the Council and our assessment is £119k.

For Somerset West and Taunton Council calculations were revised based on an 
average percentage of the former Councils, rounding the percentage up to the 
nearest 5%.. We have reviewed the bad debt provisions for 2019-20 and can see 
an increase in these, which is in line with the recommendation.

Follow up of prior year recommendations

Assessment

 Action completed

X Not yet addressed

P
age 72



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

25

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. 

Impact of adjusted misstatements

All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year ending 31 March 2020.  

Detail
Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement £‘000 Statement of Financial Position £’ 000
Impact on total net 
expenditure £’000

Investment properties within the Balance Sheet have been overstated by 
£1.049m. The corresponding adjustment is that Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure has also been overstated.

Dr Financing and Investment Income 
£1,049

Cr Investment Properties £1,049 £1,049

The categorisation of the bad debt provision has been incorrectly 
recorded in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, with 
the impact of understating the HRA Expenditure directorate, and 
overstating Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure by £332k.

Dr HRA Expenditure £332

Cr Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure £332

£0 £0

The movement in reserves statement requires an adjustment between 
capital grants unapplied and the capital adjustment account of £403k.

£0 Dr Capital Grants Unapplied £403

Cr Capital Adjustment Account  £403 

£0

Property, plant and equipment, and investment properties have been 
incorrectly classified, and will require reclassification between the 
categories of £6.198m.

Dr Property, Plant and Equipment £6,198 

Cr Investment Properties £6,198

Overall impact £1,049 £1,049 £1,049

Appendix C

Audit adjustments

P
age 73



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

26

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. 

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements. 

Disclosure 
omission Detail Auditor recommendations Adjusted?

Rental Income from 
Investment 
property

Note 15 identifies rental income from investment property as £2.4m, however this 
should be corrected to £0.5m.

We recommend that management correct this 
disclosure note TBC

Revaluation year 
table

The table currently identifies that land and buildings valued in 2019-20 are £49.3m, 
and land and buildings valued in 2018-19 are £12.8m. Both figures need to be 
adjusted by £0.7m to £49.9m and £12.1m respectively.

We recommend that management correct this 
disclosure note TBC

Material valuation 
uncertainty

Note 4 currently reports a material uncertainty in relation to land and buildings. This 
needs to be expanded to include investment properties and council dwellings. 
Additionally, Somerset Pension Fund’s IAS19 report identifies a material uncertainty in 
relation to pension fund property investments. As the Council’s share of these funds is 
material, a corresponding uncertainty is required to be disclosed in Note 4.

We recommend that management update this 
disclosure note

TBC

Contingent 
liabilities

The contingent liabilities note currently does not include the Derby Teaching Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust & Ors v Aylesbury Vale District Council judgment. This 
judgment has been allowed an appeal and could impact NNDR payments.

We recommend that management include this 
judgment within the contingent liabilities note. TBC

Notes to the 
Balance Sheet

The Notes to the Balance Sheet note which shows the opening balances as at 1 April 
2019 on the Balance Sheet is currently included within the primary statements. This 
should be moved to be within the ‘Notes to the Financial Statements’ section.

We recommend that management move the 
placement of  this disclosure note TBC

Classification of 
investment 
properties

Investment properties are shown as being valued as Level 3 investments. These have 
been valued as Level 2 investments.

We recommend that management update the 
corresponding disclosure notes to refer to Level 2 
rather than Level 3 valuations.

TBC

Going concern The accounting policies do not make reference to the going concern basis of 
accounting in preparing the financial statements

We recommend that management add a disclosure 
in around the going concern basis of accounting

TBC

Salary increases The salary growth assumption per the actuary’s report is 2.5%, but this has been 
stated as 2.9% in the financial statements

We recommend that management correct the 
disclosure misstatement

TBC

Appendix C

Audit adjustments

P
age 74



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

27

Impact of prior year unadjusted misstatements

The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the prior year audit which had not been made within the final set of 2018/19 financial statements. 

Detail
Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement £‘000
Statement of Financial 

Position £’ 000

Impact on total
net expenditure 

£’000 Reason for not adjusting

Our internal actuary has reviewed the impact of GMP 
equalisation judgement. For councils using Barnett 
Waddingham the impact is a potential overstatement of the 
net pension liability of 0.15% equating to £24k for West 
Somerset District Council, and £134k for Taunton Deane 
Borough Council. The Councils considered that the impact 
of GMP equalisation is not material to the Statement of 
Accounts. Based on our review of this area we concur with 
this view.

£0 £158k £0 In the prior year, the total impact 
on the net pension liability was 
below performance materiality. 
In the current year, this has 
been appropriately accounted 
for within the IAS19 actuary 
report.

As part of the McCloud ruling the Councils have undertaken 
a materiality review and identified that there is an 
understatement in the estimated impact on total liabilities as 
at 31 March 2019 at Taunton Deane Borough Council of 
£61k. The revised report showed that there was no impact 
of the McCloud judgment at West Somerset District Council.

£0 (£61k) £0 In the prior year, the total impact 
on the net pension liability was 
below performance materiality. 
In the current year, this has 
been appropriately accounted 
for within the IAS19 actuary 
report.

Overall impact £0 £97k £0

Appendix C

Audit adjustments

P
age 75



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

28

We confirm below our fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

The fees reconcile to the financial statements. 

*Over the past six months the current Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on all of our lives, both at work and at home. The impact of Covid-19 on the audit of the financial 
statements for 2019/20 has been multifaceted. This includes:

• Revisiting planning - we have needed to revisit our planning and refresh risk assessments, materiality and testing levels. This has resulted in the identification of a significant risk at 
the financial statements level in respect of Covid-19 necessitating the issuing of an addendum to our original audit plan as well as additional work on areas such as going concern and 
disclosures in accordance with IAS1 particularly in respect to material uncertainties. 

• Management’s assumptions and estimates - there is increased uncertainty over many estimates including property, pension and other investment valuations. Many of these valuations 
are impacted by the reduction in economic activity and we are required to understand and challenge the assumptions applied by management. There are similar challenges for 
management and ourselves on areas such as credit loss allowances, financial guarantees, and other provisions. We will be including an Emphasis of Matter in the Audit Report in 
respect of the material uncertainty on property values.

• Financial resilience assessment – we have been required to consider the financial resilience of audited bodies. Our experience to date indicates that Covid-19 has impacted on the 
financial resilience of all local government bodies. This has increased the amount of work that we need to undertake on the sustainable resource deployment element of the VFM 
criteria necessitating enhanced and more detailed reporting in our ISA260. 

• Remote working – the most significant impact in terms of delivery is the move to remote working. We, as other auditors, have experienced delays and inefficiencies as a result of 
remote working, including the delays in receiving accounts and delays in responses. These are understandable and arise from the availability of the relevant information and/or the 
availability of key staff (due to shielding or other additional Covid-19 related demands). In many instances the delays are caused by our inability to sit with an officer to discuss a query 
or working paper. Gaining an understanding via Microsoft Teams or phone is more time-consuming.

We have been discussing this issue with PSAA over the last few months and note these issues are similar to those experienced in the commercial sector and NHS. In both sectors there 
has been a recognition that audits will take longer with commercial audit deadlines being extended by 4 months and NHS deadline by a month. The FRC has also issued guidance to 
companies and auditors setting out its expectation that audit standards remain high and of additional work needed across all audits. The link attached https://www.frc.org.uk/covid-19-
guidance-and-advice (see guidance for auditors) sets out the expectations of the FRC. Our experience identifies average time increases of circa 25%.

As such, we are yet to be in a position to confirm our final fee for the 2019/20 audit. We have also experienced delays during our audit, and will consider any additional costs as we 
conclude the audit and discuss these with the s151 Officer before taking any proposed fee variances to PSAA Ltd. We will report our final fee via the Annual Audit Letter. 

Audit fees Proposed fee Final fee

Council Audit (excluding VAT) 60,500 TBC* 

Appendix D

Fees

P
age 76



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

29

** Our work on the Council’s claims has yet to be concluded and as such our final fee cannot yet be confirmed. We will report the findings of our work and the final fees upon completion 
of these engagements.

Appendix D

Non-audit fees for other services Proposed fee Final fee

Certification of housing capital receipts return £5,000 TBC** 

Certification of Housing Benefit subsidy claim 18,500 TBC**

Fees

P
age 77



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

30

We anticipate we will provide the Group with an unmodified audit report

DRAFT Independent auditor’s report to the members of Somerset West and Taunton 
Council

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Somerset West and Taunton Council (the 
‘Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash 
Flow Statement, the Housing (HRA) Income and Expenditure Account, the Statement of 
Movement on the HRA Balance, the Collection Fund and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The notes to the financial statements 
include the Notes to the Balance Sheet, EFA, Notes to the Core Statements, Policies and 
Judgements, Notes to the Housing Revenue Account Statement and Notes to the Collection 
Fund Statement. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 
is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2019/20.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2020 and 
of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on 
local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs 
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We 
are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.

Appendix E

Audit opinion

The impact of macro-economic uncertainties on our audit 

Our audit of the financial statements requires us to obtain an understanding of all 
relevant uncertainties, including those arising as a consequence of the effects of macro-
economic uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit. All audits assess and challenge 
the reasonableness of estimates made by the Assistant Director – Finance (S151 
Officer) and the related disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis 
of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the 
future economic environment and the Authority’s future operational arrangements.

Covid-19 and Brexit are amongst the most significant economic events currently faced 
by the UK, and at the date of this report their effects are subject to unprecedented levels 
of uncertainty, with the full range of possible outcomes and their impacts unknown. We 
applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to these uncertainties when 
assessing the Authority’s future operational arrangements. However, no audit should be 
expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible future implications for an 
authority associated with these particular events.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 
ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

• the Assistant Director – Finance (S151 Officer)’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

• the Assistant Director – Finance (S151 Officer) has not disclosed in the financial 
statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about 
the Authority’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a 
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are 
authorised for issue.

P
age 78



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

31

We anticipate we will provide the Group with an unmodified audit report

In our evaluation of the Assistant Director – Finance (S151 Officer)’s conclusions, and in 
accordance with the expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local 
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 that the Authority’s financial statements 
shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the risks associated with the 
Authority’s operating activities, including effects arising from macro-economic uncertainties 
such as Covid-19 and Brexit. We analysed how those risks might affect the Authority’s 
financial resources or ability to continue operations over the period of at least twelve months 
from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. In accordance with the 
above, we have nothing to report in these respects. 

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may 
result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they 
were made, the absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a 
guarantee that the Authority will continue in operation.

Emphasis of Matter – effects of Covid-19 on the valuation of land and buildings and 
property investments

We draw attention to Note 4 of the financial statements, which describes the effects of the 
Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation of the Authority’s land and buildings, Council Dwellings, 
investment properties and the Authority’s share of the pension fund’s property investments as 
at 31 March 2020. As, disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements, [the outbreak of Covid-
19 has impacted global financial markets and market activity has been impacted. A material 
valuation uncertainty was therefore disclosed in [both] the Authority’s property valuer’s report 
[and the pension fund’s property valuation reports]]. Our opinion is not modified in respect of 
this matter.

.

Appendix E

Audit opinion

Other information

The Assistant Director – Finance (S151 Officer) is responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts 
and the Annual Governance Statement, other than the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the 
other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge of the Authority obtained in 
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine 
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of 
Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the 
Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to 
consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the 
‘delivering good governance in Local Government Framework 2016 Edition’ published 
by CIPFA and SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we 
are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual 
Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily 
addressed by internal controls. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

P
age 79



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

32

We anticipate we will provide the Group with an unmodified audit report

Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Authority gained through our work in relation to the 
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources, the other information published together with the financial statements in the 
Statement of Accounts and the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for 
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

 we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local 
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the 
audit; or

 we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is 
contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in 
the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or; 

 we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

 we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

.

Appendix E

Audit opinion

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Assistant Director – Finance (S151 Officer) and Those 
Charged with Governance for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the 
Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and 
to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  In 
this authority, that officer is the Assistant Director – Finance (S151 Officer). The Assistant Director 
– Finance (S151 Officer) is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which 
includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20, for 
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Assistant 
Director – Finance (S151 Officer) determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Assistant Director – Finance (S151 Officer) is 
responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless there is an intention by government that the services provided by the Authority will no 
longer be provided. 

The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those 
charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting 
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on 
the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report.

P
age 80



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

33

We anticipate we will provide the Group with an unmodified audit report

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Conclusion on the Authority’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

Conclusion 

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the 
Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2020, we are satisfied that the Authority put in place 
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 
for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Responsibilities of the Authority 

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and 
governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be 
satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we 
considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard 
to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 
2020, as to whether in all significant respects the Authority had proper arrangements to ensure 
it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable 
outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this 
criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying 
ourselves whether the Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk 
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the 
Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources.

Appendix E

Audit opinion

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Certificate

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Delay in certification of 
completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for the Authority for 
the year ended 31 March 2020 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed our 
consideration of an objection brought to our attention by a local authority elector in 
relation to the 2018-19 Taunton Deane Borough Council financial statements, under 
Section 27 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We are satisfied that this 
matter does not have a material effect on the financial statements or on our conclusion 
on the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020. 

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance 
with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 
43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by 
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that 
we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to 
them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and 
the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions 
we have formed.

P
age 81



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Somerset West and Taunton Council  |  2019/20

Public

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 
firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 82



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
Audit, Governance and Standards Committee – 17 December 
2020  

 
Assessment of Going Concern Status – Somerset West and Taunton 
Council 
   
 
This matter is the responsibility of Councillor Henley, Corporate Resources  
 
Report Author:  Paul Fitzgerald, Assistant Director – Finance (S151 Officer) 
 
 
1 Purpose of the Report  

1.1 To inform the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee of the Assistant Director 
Finance and S151 Officer’s assessment of Somerset West and Taunton Council as a 
“going concern” for the purposes of producing their Statement of Accounts for 2019/20. 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 Members review and note the assessment made of the Council’s status as a “going 
concern” as a basis for preparing their 2019/20 Statement of Accounts. 

3 Risk Assessment 

3.1 There is a presumption that as a local authority the Council is a going concern. However, 
for the purposes of preparing the accounts the assessment is important as if the 
assessment for financial reporting purposes is the Council is not a going concern, this 
places ongoing service delivery, and asset and liability valuations at risk. This is 
mitigated through effective governance and financial control. 

4 Background and Full details of the Report 

4.1 The concept of a “going concern” assumes that an authority, its functions and services 
will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. This assumption 
underpins the accounts drawn up under the Local Authority Code of Accounting Practice 
(the Code) and is made because local authorities carry out functions essential to the 
local community and are themselves revenue-raising bodies (with limits on their 
revenue-raising powers arising only at the discretion of central government). If an 
authority were in financial difficulty, the prospects are thus that alternative arrangements 
might be made by central government either for the continuation of the services it 
provides or for assistance with the recovery of a deficit over more than one financial 
year. 

4.2 The Code also confirms that transfers of services under combinations of public sector 
bodies (such as local government reorganisation) do not negate the presumption that 
the financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. 

4.3 If the assessment determined that the Council is not a “going concern”, particular care Page 83

Agenda Item 8



would be needed in the valuation of assets, as inventories and property, plant and 
equipment may not be realisable at their book values and provisions may be needed for 
closure costs or redundancies. An inability to apply the going concern concept would 
potentially have a fundamental impact on the financial statements. 

4.4 The council is required to compile the Statement of Accounts in accordance with the 
current Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (hereafter referred to as the 
Code) as published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA). In accordance with the Code the Statement of Accounts have been prepared 
assuming that the council will continue to operate in the foreseeable future and that they 
are able to do so within the current and anticipated resources available. By this, it is 
meant that the council will realise its assets and settle its obligations in the normal course 
of business. 

4.3 The main factors which underpin this assessment are:  

 The Council’s current financial position;  

 The Council’s projected financial position; 

 The Council’s governance arrangements;  

 The regulatory and control environment applicable to the Council as a local 
authority. 

 

5 Current Position 

5.1 2019/20 is the first year of operation for Somerset West and Taunton Council, with the 
local authority functions and associated assets, liabilities, rights and obligations having 
transferred from the predecessor authorities on 1 April 2019. The Shadow Council set a 
balanced budget for 2019/20, and as shown below the General Fund reported a 
significant underspend for the year and the Housing Revenue Account came in on 
budget.  

5.2 Financial risks during the year were influenced largely by the new Council bedding in 
and the organisation’s management and workforce focussing on stabilising and 
improvement following the major changes arising through the transformation programme 
in the previous two years. During 2019/20 four new Director posts were added to the 
structure, and the leadership team has worked through a process of reshaping the 
organisation structure to align with four new directorates. Staff capacity has been 
increased to stabilise and manage service standards following the period of disruption, 
and this higher cost base has been added into the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 
estimates to establish an up to date assessment of baseline costs for financial planning 
purposes.  

5.3 The financial risk environment has been significantly influenced, mainly after the 
reporting date for last year’s accounts, by COVID-19 and the impact on service costs 
and income for the Council. Government emergency funding and income loss 
compensation scheme have largely mitigated the additional net costs for the Council, 
but additional funding from reserves is needed in 2020/21. SMT and the S151 Officer 
have prudently strengthened reserves in view of this immediate risk and also with the 
aim of supporting the budget over the next 2-3 years. The MTFP assumptions and 
forecasts have been updated with reasonable estimates of the ongoing impact of COVID 
on costs and income, however this remains an area of uncertainty that builds risk into 
the accuracy of those forecasts. 

5.4 The Council’s updated Financial Strategy, agreed by the Executive in October 2020, 
Page 84



highlights significant medium term financial pressures, and the financial plan looks to 
reduce these pressures by using reserves in 2021/22 and 2022/23. Despite this, the 
challenge in 2022/23 in particular will require action to manage costs and grow income 
in order to achieve a balanced budget.  

5.5 Despite the forecast included in the MTFP, financial forecasting in respect of funding 
carries a high degree of uncertainty, making medium-long term financial planning 
extremely difficult. The full Comprehensive Spending Review due in 2019 was deferred 
(due to UK exiting the EU) with only a 1-year finance settlement provided by Government 
for 2020/21. The CSR and Autumn Budget have also been delayed in 2020, together 
with anticipated reviews of business rates retention funding and New Homes Bonus 
grant, (due to UK exiting the EU and COVID) so funding estimates in our MTFP are 
currently prepared on a ‘roll-forward’ basis in the absence of any certainty around 
possible changes.  

5.6 Despite the uncertainty, the current financial position is underpinned by healthy reserves, 
providing a good degree of financial resilience in the short to medium term. The Council 
has absorbed the in-year pressures from COVID and also provided additional funding to 
support economic recovery. The Council is holding healthy general reserve balances, 
and also prudent reserves to mitigate volatility in business rates funding and property 
investment income.  

5.7 The prospect of structural change for local government in Somerset is likely, with the 
districts in Somerset and the County each presenting proposals for unitarisation. 
Implementing any change will require up-front investment, and would be expected to 
offer financial savings in the longer term. No assumptions for costs and income related 
to structural change are currently included in the MTFP pending any decision by 
Government. 

6 The Council’s Year End Position 

General Fund 

6.1 The financial performance in 2019/20 resulted in a net underspend of £1.836m (8.2% of 
Net Budget) for the year. As at 31 March 2020 the Council held a General Reserves 
Balance of £4.522m (minimum level is set at £2.4m) and held Earmarked Reserves 
totalling £20.586m. The Earmarked Reserves balance increased in 2019/20 by 
£2.344mduring the year mainly due to monies set aside for Economic Development 
Initiatives and the Investment Risk Reserve. The adequacy of reserves, and the ongoing 
requirement for specified earmarked reserves, is reviewed on a regular basis. It is 
recommended that £1.2m from earmarked balances is returned to General Reserves in 
2021/22, together with £3.9m from NHB earmarked reserve and £1m from Business 
Rates earmarked reserve. This reflects the leadership team’s objectives for providing 
resilience and additional resources to mitigate COVID costs and support economic 
recovery, and provide flexibility to soften the project budget gap in the MTFP in the next 
2-3 years.  

Housing Revenue Account  

6.2 The financial performance in 2019/20 resulted in a small net underspend of £8k (0.03% 
of Gross Income Budget). As at 31 March 2020 the Council held an HRA Reserve 
Balance of £2.701m (minimum level is set at £1.8m). In addition there are HRA 
Earmarked Reserves totalling £1.648m to support specific issues. The level of adequate 
reserves, and the ongoing requirement for specified earmarked reserves, is reviewed on Page 85



an annual basis. 

Table 1 – Revenue Reserves Summary 

 General Fund HRA 

Total 
£m 

 General 
£m 

Earmarked 
£m 

General 
£m 

Earmarked 
£m 

Opening Balance 2.857 18.242 2.718 2.719 26.536 

Movement in year 1.665 2.344 -17 -1.071 2.921 

Closing Balance 4.522 20.586 2.701 1.648 29.457 

Minimum Balance 2.400  1.800   

 
7 The Council’s Projected Financial Position 

7.1 The Council has maintained a medium-term financial plan (MTFP) that is updated 
annually to reflect a five-year assessment of the Council’s spending plans and 
associated funding. It includes the ongoing implications of approved budgets and service 
levels and the revenue costs of the Council’s capital programme, as well as the 
management of debt and investments. 

7.2 A balanced budget for 2020/21 was approved in February 2020, which included 
allocating an additional £300k to general reserves.  

7.3 The 2020/21 budget has been reorganised in the early part of the financial year to reflect 
the new directorate structure. Detailed monthly monitoring is undertaken to ensure costs 
and income are accurate and up to date, and to enable effective management control 
and reporting. The directors and their management teams, supported by the finance 
team, are closely analysing base budgets to inform forecasts for the year.  

7.4 The forecast for 2020/21 has been extremely challenging and volatile through the impact 
of COVID on service costs and income. The budget is closely monitored, with updated 
forecasts reported to the SMT Performance Board monthly, and to Committee quarterly. 
An overspend is forecast for the year, however this has reduced since the initial forecasts 
at the beginning of the year. Work undertaken to ensure flexibility in reserves through 
the financial strategy review means the Council is well placed to mitigate in year 
pressures. 

7.5 The projected position in the medium term financial plan is more challenging, primarily 
due to the expected reduction in business rates and new homes bonus funding, at the 
same time as service priorities and cost inflation is projected to increase service budget 
requirements. The Budget Gap has been softened in the near term through planned use 
of reserves in 2021/22 and 2022/23 in the MTFP, enabled by the financial strategy. 
However there will be pressure to increase income further, and deliver modern efficient 
services and sharing of services, to ensure the projected budget gap is addressed.  

8 The Current Financial Position (Balance Sheet) 

8.1 The Balance Sheet shows the value at the end of the financial year of the Council’s 
assets and liabilities. The net assets (assets less liabilities) are matched by reserves 
held. For 2019/20 accounts, the final Balance Sheet position as at 31 March 2020 shows 
the Council had net assets of £258.9m. One of the main components within long term 
liabilities is the pension scheme liabilities which currently stand at £111.912m, and will 
reduced over the long term through deficit reduction payments. The other main 
component relates to external borrowing of £75.601m, which relates entirely to the 
Housing Revenue Account.  

Page 86



Table 2 – Summary Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020 

 £000 

Non-current assets (e.g. land and property, plant, equipment, vehicles) 450.8 

Net current assets (debtors, stock and cash less short term creditors and 
liabilities) -4.1 

Long term liabilities and provisions -187.8 

Net Assets 258.9 

Usable reserves 60.5 

Unusable reserves 198.4 

Total Reserves 258.9 

 
8.2 Included within the net current assets is cash and investments totalling £33.717m. The 

balance provides an appropriate level of liquidity to meet short term cash flow 
requirements.  

9 Governance Arrangements 

9.1 The Council operates within a governance framework very similar to its predecessors. A 
new senior management structure and leadership team has been established during the 
year. The political leadership was created following local elections in May 2019.  

9.2 The formation of the new Council was one of the outcomes of the transformation 
programme undertaken by the predecessor Councils, who operated a shared 
management and workforce. The organisation was fundamentally redesigned through 
transformation, and further realignment of structures has evolved during the last financial 
year.  

9.3 The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) has concluded the Council’s governance 
arrangements are effective, and whilst there has been a strong focus on stabilising and 
improving services the AGS contains an action plan identifying further plans for 
improvement during 2020/21. Some weaknesses in the control environment have been 
identified through the audit plan, reflecting disruption in workforce and business 
processes particularly in the first half of 2019/20, and action has been taken and is 
continuing to manage and mitigate these. 

10 The External Regulatory and Control Environment 

10.1 As a principal local authority councils have to operate within a highly legislated and 
controlled environment.  An example of this is the requirement for a balanced budget 
each year combined with the legal requirement for Council to have regard to 
consideration of such matters as the robustness of budget estimates and the adequacy 
of reserves. In addition to the legal framework and Central Government control there are 
other factors such as the role undertaken by the External Auditor as well as the statutory 
requirement in some cases for compliance with best practice and guidance published by 
CIPFA and other relevant bodies. 

11 Emerging Risks 

COVID and Economic Recession 

11.1 The Budget for 2020/21 was before any significant impact of COVID had emerged. 
COVID has had a significant impact this year, with the Council incurring additional costs 
to support local communities and business, as well as a large reduction in income 
particularly during the lockdown period. The Council has also reprioritised reserves to 

Page 87



support economic recovery initiatives. Overall, the additional net costs related to COVID 
is projected to be c£6m in 2020/21. Approximately 80% of these costs have been 
supported by additional funding from Government, with the balance to be met from the 
Council’s own resources. 

11.2 It is anticipated there will be ongoing financial risks due to COVID in future years. The 
MTFP reflects current estimates of the Council’s share of 2020/21 Collection Fund 
losses through reductions in business rates and council tax income, which will be 
accounted for in 2021/22. The tax base for both business rates and council tax are also 
expected to be lower than pre-COVID assumptions, for example as housing growth has 
slowed and demand for local council tax support has grown. 

11.3 The Government has supported businesses, particularly in the retail, hospitality and 
leisure sector, through £44m in grants and £28m in a business rates ‘holiday’ in 2020/21. 
This has provided more than £70m in financial assistance to businesses in the district 
during 2020/21. If the economy doesn’t recover sufficiently and financial assistance is 
not continued next year this will place an increased risk to tax collection and increased 
service costs next year. 

Funding 

11.4 Following the one-year Spending Round in 2019, the Government has delayed the 
Autumn Budget Statement until late 2020 and also confirmed there will be a one-year 
only Spending Review in 2020. It is unclear at this stage what impact this will have on 
the Finance Settlement for 2021/22, and clearly this adds inherent risk to funding 
assumptions in future years. We know the Fair Funding Review has been deferred again, 
and cannot make any realistic assumptions about the impact on the Council’s funding at 
this stage. The Business Rates funding target is due to be reset, which will remove the 
‘gain’ of business rates growth from the funding baseline. It is now anticipated this will 
also be deferred however this has not yet been confirmed by Government at the time of 
writing this report. New Homes Bonus is due to be reviewed but again this has been 
delayed, and it is unclear whether the funding will decline as anticipated in our current 
MTFP. Council Tax remains the most stable form of funding, however forecasts contain 
risk due to rate of growth, demand for council tax support, and the continuation of annual 
announcements from Government on tax increase limitations.  

Business Rates 

11.5 Business Rates funding assumptions contain material risks due to COVID and the Reset 
as referred above. In addition there are two material risks to rating income. Firstly, there 
are two challenges currently registered with the Valuation Office to the Rateable Value 
for Hinkley B power station. This is likely to see a significant reduction in business rates. 
The Council has no information to predict an outcome pending the VOA completing its 
valuation process, therefore the MTFP contains a ‘reasonable guess’ at this stage. In 
addition, the legal process regarding the NHS Foundation Trusts claims is ongoing, with 
the risk of a potentially large refund and ongoing reduction in business rates income. 
Immediate risks are mitigated through reasonable provisions for appeals, prudent 
budget estimates and the Council’s business rates volatility reserve.  

Commercial Investment and Income Generation 

11.6 Following the Council’s decision to implement a new Commercial Investment Strategy 
in December 2019, the Council is actively growing and managing an increased 
investment property portfolio. This is exposed to market risk, however this is Page 88



underpinned by robust governance and due diligence arrangements. Whilst this strategy 
diversifies the Council’s income and helps to mitigate reductions in other funding 
streams, there is a risk of volatility e.g. through voids. Budget volatility and landlord risk 
is managed through reasonable budget estimates and holding prudent risk reserves.  

Delivering Savings 

11.7 The Council is required to achieve significant savings in order to balance the medium 
term financial position, through a combination of income growth and delivering efficiency 
through modernisation and sharing of services. The budget gap is proposed to be 
softened over the next 2-3 years through use of reserves as a temporary solution, 
however longer-term sustainable income/savings will need to be delivered in future years 
to balance the long term position. Having reduced costs over many years, and now 
growing income through investment, it will not be easy to deliver the savings needed 
without potentially difficult choices being made by Members on service priorities.  

Unitarisation of Councils in Somerset 

11.8 Government has invited submissions from local authorities in Somerset to progress the 
creation of one or more unitary authorities. In terms of financial risks, there will be a need 
for upfront funding for implementation costs, and a large scale programme of change will 
inevitably be a priority focus for leadership and management capacity. There is also a 
risk that resources are focussed on delivering structural change, reducing capacity and 
focus for delivering income growth and savings and/or affecting the timing of delivery. 

12 S151 Officer Opinion 

12.1 It is considered that, having regard to the Council’s arrangement and such factors as are 
highlighted in this report, the Council remains a “going concern”. 

12.2 The Council has set a balanced budget for 2020/21, and despite the impact of COVID 
and economic challenges, the Council remains resilient to in year financial pressures 
both through additional funding provided by Government and the strength of the 
Council’s reserves position.  

12.3 The short term nature of the finance settlement from Government increases the level of 
uncertainty in financial planning. The Spending Review was for one year in 2019, and 
will be again in 2020, which is understandable due to the scale of impact of COVID on 
public spending and the national economy but makes medium term financial planning 
difficult. Funding from business rates and new homes bonus is projected to fall sharply 
in the next two years, however the funding position is not yet confirmed.  

12.4 The Council’s reserves are well-placed to mitigate net spending pressures in 2020/21, 
and are planned to be used to support the draft budget for 2021/22 in the financial 
strategy, and it is expected the Council will be able to set a balanced budget in February 
2021. The longer term picture is currently projected to be more challenging and, whilst 
greater certainty is needed to ensure budget targets are realistic, the Council’s 
leadership is encouraged to maintain a longer term perspective in financial planning to 
ensure ongoing sustainability of services. 

 
Democratic Path:   

 Audit Governance and Standards Committee – Yes 17 December 2020  

 Executive  – No Page 89



 Full Council – No 
 
Reporting Frequency: Annually 
 
Contact Officer 

Name Paul Fitzgerald 

Direct Dial 01823 217557 

Email S151@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk 

 
 

 

Page 90



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee - 17 December 

2020 
 

Somerset West and Taunton District Council Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

 

This matter is the responsibility of Executive Councillor Henley, Corporate 

Resources  

 

Report Author: Martin Henwood, Corporate Finance Advisor  

 

1 Executive Summary / Purpose of the Report  
 

1.1 The Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 is required to be approved by the Audit 
Governance and Standards Committee and signed by the S151 Officer and the 
Chair of the Audit Governance and Standards Committee.  The Statement of 
Accounts document is attached to this report.   
 

1.2 As the audit is still work in progress at the time of writing, there may be changes 
between this and the final document.  It is not anticipated that there will be 
significant changes, and in order to complete the process, it is requested that the 
formal sign off is delegated to the Chair of the Audit Governance and Standards 
Committee and the S151 Officer in the event the auditor is not in a position to 
finalise testing and confirm his opinion by the date of the Committee.  If there are 
significant changes, the Committee will be notified and consideration will be given 
to a further, special meeting of the Committee in the near future. 
 

1.3 This report also links to and reflects the Audit Findings Report which was prepared 
by and will be presented by the Council’s external auditors – Grant Thornton UK 
LLP.  
 

1.4 As part of the overall process for approving the Statement of Accounts, a 
Management Letter of Representation has to be signed by the Council.  A draft 
letter of representation is attached.  
 

1.5 Our external auditors have also asked that from this year the Management 
Assurance risk assessment document is brought to this Committee for approval, 
and this is attached with this report. 

 

2 Recommendations  
 

2.1 The Committee is recommended to:  
 

a) Note the Auditor’s unqualified opinion on the Statement of Accounts.  

 

b) Approve the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts as attached to this report.  

Page 91

Agenda Item 9



c) Delegate to the Chairman of the Committee and S151 Officer approval to sign 

the Statement of Accounts, subject to the caveat identified in paragraph 1.2. 

above.  

 

d) Endorse the Chairman of the Committee signs the management letter of 

representation in respect of the financial statements for the year ended 31 

March 2020.  

 

e) Approve the Management Assurance document. 

 

3 Background and Full details of the Report  
 

3.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the audited Statement of 
Accounts to be approved by a resolution of a nominated committee. The current 
constitutional arrangements devolve this responsibility to the Audit Governance and 
Standards Committee.  
 

3.2 The S151 officer is usually required to sign off the unaudited Draft Accounts as true 
and fair by 31 May. However this deadline was extended to 31 August due to the 
coronavirus.  The unaudited accounts were signed off on 13 August 2020.   
 

3.3 The audited Statement of Accounts must usually be approved by Committee by 31 
July.  Once approved the Statement must be signed by the S151 Officer and the 
Chair of the Audit Governance and Standards Committee, and published on the 
Council’s website.  Due to coronavirus this deadline was extended to 30 November 
2020.   
 

3.4 As at 30 November, the Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, had not 
yet concluded the audit, and this was advised on the Council’s website.  As with 
Authorities nationally the delay has arisen due to a combination of factors, including: 

 the increased assurance work that auditors are required to carry out nationally 
with respect to pensions and asset valuations,  

 the impact of Covid-19 on both the complexity of the audit and pace at which it 
can be completed, and 

 the inherent complexity of the Council’s 2019/20 statement of accounts as the 
Council’s first year of operation. 

 
3.5 The Council’s Statement of Accounts is being audited this year by Grant Thornton 

UK LLP.  At the time of writing this report, Grant Thornton has indicated its intent to 
issue an unqualified opinion, as reported in the Audit Findings Report however this 
is subject to completion of residual work to finalise the audit testing.  

 

3.6 The Management Letter of Representation is a formal letter to the external auditors, 
Grant Thornton LLP, which is signed by the Council’s senior management. The 
letter attests to the accuracy of the financial statements that the Council has 
submitted to the auditors for their analysis.  
 

3.7 The Management Letter of Representation enables the Council to declare in writing 
that the statement of accounts and other presentations to the auditor are sufficient 

Page 92



and appropriate and without omission of material facts to the best of the 
management's knowledge. The auditors will use this letter as part of their audit 
evidence.  
 

3.8 Each year the Council has to provide a Management Assurance (ISA240) letter to 
the external auditors.  In previous years this has been signed by the Chief Executive 
and the Chair of the Audit Governance and Standards Committee.  In 2019-20, to 
improve transparency, resilience and reliability of the document, our external 
auditors have asked that this is also approved by this Committee.   

 

4 Statement of Accounts  
 

4.1 The Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 has been prepared on an IFRS 
(International Financial Reporting Standards) ‘true and fair view’ basis, in line with 
the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountancy) Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2019/20.  
 

4.2 The Statement of Accounts contain four main statements reflecting the position of 
the Council at 31 March 2020: 

 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement  

 Movement in Reserves Statement  

 Balance Sheet, and 

 Cash Flow Statement  

 

4.3 There are also supplementary statements related to the Housing Revenue Account, 
and the Collection Fund (which deals with the collection and distribution of Council 
Tax and Business Rates).  
 

4.4 The Council has no subsidiary companies and therefore there are no Group 
Accounts. 

 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement  

 

4.5 The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) shows the day to 
day revenue spending and income on the Council’s services. It also shows the 
council tax and Government grants received to help pay for those services. The 
CIES shows the net cost on an “accounting basis” which includes accounting 
adjustments such as depreciation, impairment and revaluation losses, and other 
types of accounting adjustments.  These adjustments are then reversed out in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement to show the “funding” position of the Council.  
 

4.6 As these are the accounts for the first year of the Council, there are no comparator 
values for the previous year in the CIES.  

 

 
4.7 The Financial Outturn position for 2019/20 was reported to Executive Committee 

on 28 October 2020. This included information relating to the Council’s financial 
performance for the 2019/20 financial year. The report highlighted key variances to 
the budget and provided explanations for these.  

Page 93



 

Movement in Reserves Statement  

 

4.8 This account shows the changes in the Council’s financial resources over the year 
by showing the movement on the reserves held. These are analysed into Usable 
Reserves (these can be used to fund spending) and Unusable Reserves (reserves 
that cannot be spent as they contain technical accounting adjustments that do not 
represent available funding).  
 

4.9 The total of the Council’s Usable Reserves (capital and revenue combined) has 
increased by £10.438m in year to £60.530m.  
 

4.10 The Statement shows that the General Fund Reserve balance is above the 
minimum level required in the Council’s financial strategy, with General Fund 
Reserves increasing from £2.857m to £4.522m. The recommended General Fund 
minimum balance reserve level for SWTC is £2.4m.  

 

Balance Sheet  

 

4.11 The Balance Sheet provides a snapshot of the Council’s financial position as at 31 
March 2020. An indicative opening balance as at 1 April 2019 is provided for 
comparison purposes, as this is the Council’s first year.  

 

4.12 The Balance Sheet shows that net assets have fallen slightly from £258.9m to 
£257.8m. The most significant liability on the balance sheet remains in respect of 
the Pensions Reserve deficit at £111.9m.  

 

Cash Flow Statement  

 

4.13 The cash flow statement summarises the flows of cash and cash equivalents into 
and out of the Council during the year.  
 

4.14 Cash and cash equivalents are represented by the following: cash in hand; deposits 
with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 
hours; and investments that mature in one month or less from the date of the 
balance sheet and are readily convertible into cash. 
 

4.15 During the year the Council’s cash and cash equivalents rose by £6.663m.  
 

Housing Revenue Account  

 
4.16 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Income and Expenditure Account shows the 

economic cost in year of providing housing services.  
 

4.17 The HRA for 2019/20 shows that net income for the year of (£3.978m) compared 
with net expenditure of £2.275m in the previous year.  

 

  

Page 94



Collection Fund  

4.18 The Collection Fund Statement shows the total amount the Council has collected 
from tax payers on behalf of, and distributed to, all of the precepting authorities and 
Central Government. The major precepting authorities are Somerset County 
Council, Avon and Somerset Police, Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue 
Authority, and Central Government.  The Council has a statutory obligation to 
maintain a separate Collection Fund Account.  
 

4.19 The presentation of the statement clearly separates the Council Tax and Business 
Rates (NDR) movements and balances. The statement shows that the Council has 
collected £157.475m on behalf of ourselves, the precepting authorities and Central 
Government. This comprises council tax income of £98.577m and business rates 
income of £58.898m.  
 

4.20 The statement currently shows an end of year deficit of £0.038m (SWT share is 
£3k) in respect of Council Tax and an end of year surplus of £4.338m (SWT share 
is (£1,964k)) in respect of business rates.  

 

5 Result of the Audit of the Statement of Accounts  
 

5.1 Much of the external audit review has been completed and subject to work 
outstanding being completed and queries being resolved, the auditor has indicated 
their intention to issue an “unqualified opinion” for the Statement of Accounts, as 
showing a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position and performance.  
 

5.2 The auditor has also reviewed our arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in our use of resources, and provides an opinion in the form of a value 
for money conclusion. Their report states that “the Council had proper 
arrangements in all significant respects to ensure it delivered value for money in its 
use of resources”.  
 

5.3 During the audit misstatement and disclosure changes were identified which have 
been made in the final set of financial statements. These have been identified in 
Appendix C of the Audit Findings Report by Grant Thornton included within this 
Agenda.  

 

5.4 The most significant items within Appendix C relate to valuations and classification 
of property.  The adjustments detailed here have been included in the updated 
Statement of Accounts provided to this meeting.  Changing economic conditions 
have led what might have been expected to be pure investments for financial gain 
to become PPE Land and Buildings, when assets are retained for their wider 
benefits to the community rather than being disposed of if the return is not as 
anticipated. 

 

 
6 Links to Corporate Aims / Priorities  

 
6.1 The Statement of Accounts reports the financial activities of the Council in the 

delivery of its corporate aims.  
 

Page 95



7 Finance / Resource Implications  
 

7.1 These are included within the Statement of Accounts document attached to this 
report.  
 

8 Legal Implications  
 

8.1 There is a Statement of Responsibilities within the Statement of Accounts, which 
summarises responsibilities for the Council and its S151 officer. The Accounts are 
prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom, which specifies the principles and practices of 
accounting required to give a ‘true and fair’ view of the financial position and 
transactions of the Council.  
 

8.2 The Code sets out the proper accounting practices required by section 21(2) of the 
Local Government Act 2003.  These proper practices apply to:  

  Statements of Accounts prepared in accordance with the statutory framework 

by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015  

  The audit of those accounts undertaken in accordance with the statutory 

framework established by section 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014.  

 

 

Democratic Path 

 Audit Governance and Standards Committee - 17 December 2020 

 

Reporting Frequency: Annually 

 

 

List of Additional Documents: 

 

Somerset West and Taunton Council Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Letter of Representation 

Management Assurance Letter (ISA 240) 

  

Page 96



 

Contact Officers 

 

Name Martin Henwood 

Email m.henwood@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk  

 

Name Steve Plenty 

Direct Dial 01984 600173 

Email m.henwood@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk  

 

Name Paul Fitzgerald 

Direct Dial 01823 217557 

Email m.henwood@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk  

 

Page 97

mailto:m.henwood@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk
mailto:m.henwood@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk
mailto:m.henwood@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk




 

 

 

 

SOMERSET WEST AND TAUNTON COUNCIL 

 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2019/20 

 

 

 

AUDIT GOVERNANCE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

17 December 2020 

 

 

Page 99



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

1 

Contents 

 Narrative Report.......................................................................................................................... 2 

 Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts                                                       12 

 Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Somerset West and Taunton Council........... 133 

 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement .................................................................17 

 Movement in Reserves Statement ........................................................................................... 188 

 Balance Sheet                                                                                                                              19 

 Cash Flow Statement .................................................................................................................20 

 Notes to the Core Financial Statements ................................................................................... 211 

1. Accounting Policies 21 

2. Accounting Standards issued but not yet adopted 34 

3. Critical Judgements in applying accounting policies 34 

4. Notes to the Balance Sheet 35 

5. Assumptions made about estimation uncertainty 38 

6. Material items of income and expense 38 

7. Events after the Balance Sheet date 38 

8. Expenditure and Funding analysis 38 

9. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis   42 

10. Movements in Earmarked Reserves 44 

11. Other Operating expenditure   45 

12. Financing and Investment income and expenditure 46 

13. Taxation and non-specific grant income 47 

14. Expenditure and income analysed by nature 47 

15. Property, plant and eqiupment (PPE) 48 

16. Investment Property 54 

17. Financial instruments 55 

18. Assets held for sale 59 

19. Debtors 60 

20. Cash and cash equivalents 61 

21. Creditors 61 

22. Provisions 61 

23. Usable reserves 62 

24. Unusable reserves 62 

25. Cash flow - operating activities 67 

26. Cash flow - investing activities 68 

27. Cash flow - financing activities 68 

28. Members' allowances 68 

29. Officers' remuneration 69 

30. Termination benefits 70 

31. External Audit costs 70 

32. Grant income 71 

33. Related parties 71 

34. Capital expenditure and capital financing 72 

35. Leases 73 

36. Defined Benefit pension schemes 74 

37. Contingent liabilities 79 

38. Contingent assets 79 

39. Risks arising from financial instruments 79 

 Housing (HRA) Income and Expenditure Account .................................................................... 833 

 Collection Fund ........................................................................................................................ 899 

 Glossary                                                                                                                                        91 

 

Page 100



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

2 

Narrative Report  
 
STATEMENT BY THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – FINANCE (S151 OFFICER) 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Somerset West and Taunton Council (SWTC) was formed on 1 April 2019, as a single new district council 
delivering the services and functions previously provided by its predecessor councils: Taunton Deane 
Borough Council and West Somerset Council. The two councils worked in partnership from 2013, sharing a 
single team of staff and a Chief Executive. A business case was developed and proposals made to the 
Government for the councils to create a single new council. This was approved by the Secretary of State for 
Housing, Communities and Local Government in May 2018. 

There are 59 councillors, following elections in May 2019, serving the same geographical area as the two 
former councils.  

All the assets, liabilities, rights and obligations from the former councils transferred to Somerset West and 
Taunton on 1 April, and this document presents the first annual Statement of Accounts for SWTC. 

This report highlights some of the most important matters reported in the accounts and provides a 
management commentary on the financial performance and standing of the Council. The commentary is 
focused both on the performance in the past year and on issues affecting the Council going forward.  

The COVID-19 pandemic is clearly having a major impact worldwide, and started to impact on the Council’s 
services, costs and income late in the financial year. This is expected to have a significant impact during 
2020/21 in particular. 

SOMERSET WEST AND TAUNTON COUNCIL – KEY INFORMATION 

Somerset West and Taunton is a local government district in the County of Somerset. It has an area of 469 
square miles and an estimated population of 152,300. The district includes the county town of Taunton and 
an attractive mix of urban, rural and coastal towns and villages.  

As a shire district, the Council delivers local services within a two-tier structure of principal local government 
authorities, with ‘upper tier’ services provided by Somerset County Council and ‘lower tier’ services 
provided by SWTC. The Council maintains responsibility for the management and ownership of its own 
social housing stock (more than 5,600 dwellings) transferred from Taunton Deane, with the costs and 
income for this being accounted for separately in a ring-fenced Housing Revenue Account. The Council is 
responsible for a wide range of services including (but not limited to): 

 Housing policy and enabling 

 Housing – management of own stock 

 Housing options and homelessness 

 Planning 

 Waste collection and recycling 

 Crematorium and bereavement services 

 Economic development 

 Regulatory services such as environmental 
health and licensing 

 Council tax and business rates 
administration 

 Housing benefits 

 Provision of off-street parking 

 Electoral registration and elections 

 Planning 

 Building control 

 Leisure and arts 

 
THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 
 
The governance framework consists of the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the 
Council is directed and controlled and through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. 
It enables us to monitor the achievement of our objectives and to consider whether these have led to the 
delivery of appropriate, cost effective services.  

Page 101



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

3 

In order to review the effectiveness of the governance framework, assurances are provided to, and 
challenged by, the Audit Governance and Standards, Scrutiny, and Executive Committees or Council as 
appropriate.  
 
Further information is included in the Annual Governance Statement.  
 
THE CORPORATE STRATEGY AND PLAN 
 
Following the formation of the new Council in April and the election of the new political administration in 
May 2019, the Council has developed a new Corporate Strategy which was approved in October 2019. The 
Strategy provides a clear direction for the Council to follow, with four key themes where the Council will 
concentrate its efforts and resources: 
 
Our environment and 
economy 

Outcome: A low-carbon, clean, green and prosperous district that attracts 
high quality employment opportunities and encourages heathy lifestyles. 

A transparent and 
customer focussed 
Council 

Outcome: A Council which informs and engages openly with our 
stakeholders and which consistently delivers excellent customer service. 

Homes and 
communities 

Outcome: A financially self-sufficient Council which has expanded its 
commercial activity and generated more income in order to support 
service provision. 

Clarity on the role and 
purpose of the 
Council 

Outcome: A district which offers a choice of good quality homes for our 
residents, whatever their age and income, in communities where support 
is available for those who need it. 

The Corporate Strategy is not intended to capture everything that the Council does nor does it include the 
detail of our work and projects. That is the role of the Corporate, Operational and Individual Plans which will 
flow from the Corporate Strategy. 
 
DECISION MAKING AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
The Council consists of 59 elected Members, with an Executive of Lead Members who are supported and 
held to account by Scrutiny Committees. Our Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions 
are made and the procedures for ensuring that the Council is efficient, transparent and accountable to local 
people. It contains the basic rules governing the Council’s business including responsibilities and functions 
of the Council, committees, the Exectuive and officers. It also contains the rules, protocols and codes of 
practice under which the Council, its Members and officers operate. The Constitution sets out the functions 
of key governance officers, including the statutory posts of Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and Section 
151 (Chief Finance) Officer. It explains the role of these officers for ensuring that processes are in place for 
enabling the Council to meet its statutory obligations and also for providing advice to Members, officers and 
committees on staff management, financial, legal and ethical governance issues. 
 
MANAGING RISK 
 
The Council’s Risk Management Policy is fundamental to the system of internal control.  It involves an 
ongoing process to identify the risks to our policies, aims and objectives and to prioritise them according to 
likelihood and impact. It also requires the risks to be managed efficiently, effectively and economically. All 
Members and managers are responsible for ensuring that risk implications are considered in the decisions 
they take. This is especially important as the Council goes through its Transformation programme.   
 
Senior management meet to identify the principal risks to the Council.  These risks are recorded in a 
Corporate Risk Register.  Each Service Area also keeps a separate risk register for its area. These 
registers also record the controls necessary to manage the risks. The registers are regularly reviewed and 
challenged by senior management and by the Audit Governance and Standards Committee. Specific 
assurance is sought concerning those risks associated with the key elements of the Governance 
Framework and that any necessary improvements to controls have been implemented. The Governance 

Page 102



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

4 

Framework cannot eliminate all risk of failure to meet the targets in our policies, aims and objectives and 
can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. 
 
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
The Council is financially resilient with a good level of revenue reserves. During 2019/20 the Council has 
operated with higher than normal degree of risk due to the scale of disruption within the organisation 
through the major transformation programme running alongside the creation of the new council. The 
Shadow Council for SWTC set a balanced budget for 2019/20 which reflected transitional costs needed to 
maintain services during the period whislt operating efficiencies were fully designed and delivered. 
Significant staff changes took place within the former councils during the previous financial year and this 
continued in the early months of 2019/20 as the programme of recruitment to new roles was finalised.  
 
The Council set a budget for 2019/20 based on the operating model designed through the transformation 
programme, with the budget restructured for the start of 2019/20 to fit with this new design. The operating 
model flexed during the year and the new leadership agreed the appointment of new Directors, who were 
appointed at the beginning of 2020. The leadership team and finance officers have worked through a 
process to further restructure budgets to reflect the new Directorate structure ready for 2020/21 financial 
year. Responsibility for budgets has therefore changed through the year as new staff have been recruited 
within services and within the finance team, and as budgets have been reorganised to adapt to changes in 
the management structure.  
 
Despite the challenges due to the scale of change it is pleasing to report the Council has operated within 
budget for the year, reporting an underspend against budget and an increase in general reserves of 
£1.67m. This included the net effect of a range of underspends and overspends across services, and also 
the release of surplus financial provisions set aside in the previous year for the estimated costs of staff 
exits. 
 
Looking forward, the focus remains on realising the financial benefits of modernising working practices to 
be more ‘lean’ and customer focused, as well as delivering ambitious income generation plans. The 
financial landscape within local government remains challenging, with years of ongoing reductions in grant 
funding from government driving the need to make savings and deliver income growth through other 
sources. With this in mind the Council has approved a commercial investment strategy during the year with 
the aim of prudently diversifying income sources and generating essential funds to enable local service 
priorities to be delivered. 
 
There are reasonable arrangements for effective financial control through our accounting procedures, key 
financial systems and the Financial Regulations. These include established budget planning procedures 
and regular financial performance reports to Councillors. A key focus for the leadership team and finance 
officers during 2020/21 is to stabilise responsibility for and organisation of budgets, and invest in improved, 
more regular financial reporting to leadership and management to strengthen budgetary control and 
reporting of financial performance. Our treasury management arrangements, where the Council invests and 
borrows funds to meet its operating requirements, follow professional practice and are subject to regular 
review.  
 
The Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing value for money are reviewed each year 
by our external auditor. The Council has opted in to the Public Sector Auditor Appointments framework, as 
an efficient approach to procuring external audit services. Grant Thornton UK LLP is our appointed auditor 
for 2019/20.  
 
COUNCIL’S PERFORMANCE 
 
The Council’s Annual Plan sets out the focus for 2020/21 as well as a look back at some of the highlights 
for 2019/20. This includes many achievments within the corporate strategy themes, with examplesset out 
below:  

 

Page 103



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

5 

Our Environment and Economy 

 The Council has declared a climate emergency, we have undertaken public consultation on a 
Carbon Neutrality and Climate Resilience framework for our District. 

 We have offered all parish and town councils the opportunity to apply for grants of between £500 
and £1,500 towards the installation of electric vehicle charging points in communities throughout the 
district. 

 In November 2019, working with the Somerset West Private Sector Housing Partnership and the 
Centre for Sustainable Energy we made a successful bid for more than £900k, into the Warmer 
Homes Fund. This will help Private Sector Households across Somerset access ways to improve 
energy efficiency of their homes, to improve heating systems, and energy efficiency within 175 SWT 
council-owned homes. 

 We have started the process for creating a new Local Plan for the new District. 

 There has been a great deal of progress developing feasibility studies and engaging with Network 
Rail, Great Western Railways, Mid-Devon District Council and others regarding the possibility of 
opening a railway station in Wellington. 

 In the winter, a section of the Watchet harbour wall failed. The Council promptly arranged for 
temporary repairs to be made and have approved a budget to provide a long-term solution to 
safeguard the integrity of this important harbour. 

 Throughout the year we have supported various events designed to bring people into Taunton, 
increase spend and make the town centre more vibrant. Particular highlights include supporting the 
extremely successful Cricket World Cup, held at the County Ground during May and June. We also 
enhanced Taunton’s festive offer last year by funding a real ice rink on Castle Green, which was 
also extremely popular. 

A Transparent and Customer-focused Council 

 We have created new and improved online services to report an abandoned vehicle, make a 
freedom of information request, make a compliment or complaint, Council Tax and business rates 
paperless billing requests, and report a tree, hedge or grass problem to enable our customers to do 
more with the Council from the comfort of their homes, 24/7. 

 The Council went live with a new website in April 2019 which has been independently rated by 
Sitemorse (www.sitemorse.com) 9th best local authority website in the UK; against 8 assessment 
categories, including accessibility and performance. 

 We have installed audio visual equipment in our public meeting rooms at the Deane House and 
West Somerset House. This will enable the live streaming of meetings of the Council, to enhance 
participation in the democratic process for those unable to, or who don’t wish to attend, our 
meetings in person. 

Homes and Communities 
 

 The Council approved a 30-Year Business Plan for its housing services, including a commitment to 
add 1,000 new homes for social rent. 

 We purchased 46 properties for social rent during the last year. 

 Good progress has been made on Phase A of the North Taunton regeneration project. The site has 
been cleared and an experienced contractor, capable of delivering good quality, energy efficient 
homes that the Council and community can be proud of has been appointed. 

 The Council has been using money awarded from the Government’s 'Rough Sleepers Initiative 
Fund' to pay for specialist support to settle rough sleepers into permanent homes. The Streetwise 
Team have also set up monthly visits from the award-winning charity Dogs on the Streets to provide 
veterinary care, equipment and advice to the homeless community with dogs. We have also been 
successful in bidding for Severe Weather Provision funding of £35,000 and have been able to work 
with partners to provide a night shelter over the weekends during the Winter period as well as any 
nights when the weather becomes too severe. 

 
 
 

Page 104



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

6 

An Enterprising Council 
 

 The Council has approved a Commercial Investment Strategy that will deliver essential income 
towards the cost of delivering services to our communities. 

 We have commenced a new contract with SLM (trading as Everyone Active) to deliver leisure 
services and at the same time deliver significant financial savings to the Council. 

 We have let office space at Deane House and are actively pursuing further letting to generate 
additional income to the Council. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 
Economic Environment 
 
It has been well documented that Local Government has seen major cuts over the last decade. The core 
finance settlement (adding together the 2 former councils’ positions for comparison) has reduced in real 
terms of £8.5m or 66% between 2013/14 and 2019/20. The future funding remains uncertain, making 
longer term financial planning more difficult. The funding position for SWTC was set by adding together the 
funding baseline of the two former councils. The Government’s Spending Review planned for 2019 was 
replaced with a 1-year Spending Round, with the full 3-year Review postponed until 2020, resulting in a 
one-year only settlement provided for 2020/21.  
 
Housing growth has generally had a positive impact on our funding, with New Homes Bonus (NHB) Grant 
funding of £3.8m in 2019/20 as well as a steady increase in the council tax base. The Council participates 
in the Somerset Business Rates Pool together with Somerset County Council (SCC) and other 3 District 
Councils within the SCC administrative boundary. The Pool was successful in bidding to become a one-
year only Pilot for 75% business rates retention for 2019/20, which together with a lower provision for 
appeals, provided significant increase in funding for the year.  
 
Looking ahead, the funding position remains uncertain with key funding developments to be resolved 
including: 

 The Spending Review 2020 – how much funding will be provided for local government services in 
future? 

 The Fair Funding Review – what share of the funding will each authority receive? 

 Business Rates Retention system review – how will local authorities benefit from business rates 
growth, how long for, and will there be pooling incentives? 

 Business Rates Reset – how much of historic business rates growth will be removed at the Reset? 

 New Homes Bonus – the scheme is due to be reviewed by Government during 2020, and it is 
assumed this funding will disappear over the next 3 years. How will housing growth be incentivsed 
and local authorities be funded for increased demand on services?  

 
There is significant wider economic uncertainty due to Brexit, and now what the impact of COVID-19 will 
have on the local and national economy and demand for services and welfare support.  
 
We continue to act prudently in the face of these uncertainties and risks, and have acted prudently to try 
and protect services to the local communities and businesses, as well as ensure the Council remains 
financially resilient.  
 
FINANCIAL OVERVIEW  

General Fund Revenue Budget and Reserves 

The Council’s Original Net Budget for 2019/20 was £22.378m, representing the net cost of General Fund 
services funded by business rates and council tax as shown in the following table. 

 £k 

Business Rates 9,368 

New Homes Bonus 3,809 

Council Tax 9,201 

Total 22,378 Page 105



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

7 

 
As 2019/20 is the first year of the new Council, we harmonised the council tax charges to residents so that 
these are uniform across the whole area. The rates for the former councils were similar, and the approach 
was taking to apply the lower of the two councils 2018/19 plus an increase of £5 on the Band D average. 
This meant that the Band D Council Tax rate became £159.63 including £1.75 collected on behalf of the 
Somerset Rivers Authority.  

The Council’s actual net expenditure in 2019/20 was £20.981m which together with a funding surplus of 
£438k for business rates results in a reported net underspend of £1.836m (8.2% of final Net Budget). The 
net underspend arose due to variances in several budget areas. The most significant underspends have 
been reported against homelessness, planning, leisure services, and bereavement services. The 
underspend also included accounting adjustments for the release of provisions previously set aside for 
redundancy costs, where the actual costs arising during the year were lower than previously estimated.  
These together with other smaller underspends have enabled the Council to offset budget 
overspends/shortfalls in arriving at the net position. The following table provides a summary of the financial 
results for the year compared to budget. 

General Fund Outturn 2019/20 
Budget 

£k 
Outturn 

£k 
Variance 
£k         % 

Performance and Governance 14,019 12,177 -1,842 -8.2 

Communication and Engagement 562 567 5 0.0 

Customer -3,454 -3,173 281 1.3 

Localities 4,026 4,352 326 1.5 

Commercial Investment 2,107 2,257 150 0.7 

Strategy 606 628 22 0.1 

Net Cost of Services 17,866 16,808 -1,058 -4.8 

Interest and Investment Income -473 -993 -520 -2.3 

Investment Properties -496 -514 -18 -0.1 

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves   7,124 7,529 405 1.8 

Transfers from General Reserves -171 -171 0 0 

Capital and Other Adjustments -1,471 -1,677 -206 -0.9 

Net Budget 22,379 20,981 -1,398 -6.2 

Funding -22,379 -22,817 -438 -2.0 

Variance 0 -1,836 -1,836 -8.2 

 
Further information on spending on services, and other operating costs and income is shown within the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and Notes.  

The General Fund Reserves have increased from £2.857m at the start of the year to £4.522m at 31 March 
2020. The minimum assessed balance for adequate reserves is £2.4m therefore the balance provides a 
good level of resilience against financial risks in the year ahead, which will be particularly important if 
reserves are needed to offset the impact of COVID on costs and income in 2020/21. 

The Council also carries Earmarked Reserve balances, which represent funds that have been set aside to 
support specific spending in future years. The General Fund Earmarked Reserves balance at 31 March 
2020 stands at £20.586m. This balance covers a wide variety of known planned spending commitments, 
including: Business Rates funding deficit; New Homes Bonus Growth Reserve; Creating a New Council; 
and Garden Village together with several other smaller commitments which we have prudently put aside.  

CAPITAL SPENDING AND RESERVES 

In addition to our spending on day-to-day service provision, the Council spends money on assets such as 
land and buildings, vehicles and equipment, systems and technology, and contributions to jointly-financed 
schemes. Capital expenditure in the year totalled £36.142m, comprising £20.073m on General Fund 
schemes and £16.069m on HRA capital works, as summarised in the table below. The General Fund 
capital spending related to a wide range of projects which included costs for the Coal Orchard development 

Page 106



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

8 

in Taunton. Seaward Way development in Minehead, a capital loan to the Somerset Waste Partnership for 
new vehicles, strategic purchase of land at ex-bus station site in Taunton for regeneration, and a variety of 
other projects. HRA capital works are largely related to purchase of additional properties, progressing the 
North Taunton housing regeneration scheme, maintining and improving housing standards including 
heating systems, insulation, fire safety, and other related works.  

General Fund Capital Schemes £k HRA Capital Schemes £k 

Coal Orchard work in progress 3,957 Heating improvements 916 

Waste partnership capital loan 4,125 Fasciae and soffits 770 

Investment properties 2,204 Insulation 613 

Seaward Way employment site 1,617 Asbestos works 461 

Watchet Harbourside regeneration  1,211 Accessibility adaptations 387 

Land at ex-Taunton Bus Station site 1,004 Environmental improvements 325 

Taunton Technology Park 944 Other major repairs and improvements 2,175 

Stogursey Victory Hall capital grant 663 Housing acquisitions 7,557 

Firepool infrastructure 405 North Taunton housing regeneration 2,865 

Watchet Splashpoint sea defence repairs 296   

Hinkley impact mitigation projects 765   

S106 General 855   

Various other capital projects 2,027   

Total 20,073 Total 16,069 

 
Capital expenditure is funded from a variety of sources, as shown in the table below. 

Sources of Capital Funding £k 

Revenue Funding 1,184 

Earmarked Reserves 1,050 

Capital Grants and Contributions 4,368 

Capital Receipts 2,579 

Borrowing 21,063 

Major Repairs Reserve (HRA) 5,898 

Total 36,142 

 
The General Fund Capital Programme has budgeted capital spending in future years of £146.400m. The 
HRA Capital Programme has budgeted capital spending into future years of £31.633m. 

The Council plans to support future spending largely through a combination of existing capital reserves,  
capital receipts, external funding, and borrowing. Capital reserves reflect funds set aside to fund investment 
in capital items in future years, and largely comprise grants, contributions and capital receipts that are 
committed on projects to be completed in the current approved capital programme. The Council currently 
holds £31.073m of capital reserves.  
 
Balance Sheet 
 
Below is an extract from our Balance Sheet showing the position at year end and the comparison with the 
balances transferred to the Council on 1 April 2019.  
 

Balance Sheet extract 1 April 2019 31 March 2020 
 £k £k 

Long term assets 438,026 450,766 

Net current assets – debtors, stock and cash less short term 
creditors and liabilities 6,267 -4,124 

Long term liabilities and provisions -185,407 -187,757 

Net assets 258,886 258,885 

Represented by: Usable reserves 50,092 60,530 

Represented by: Unusable reserves 208,794 198,355 

Total Reserves 258,886 258,885 
Page 107



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

9 

 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget and Reserves 
 
The Council is a major provider of social housing, working closely with housing associations and other 
social landlords to provide affordable housing for tenants in the District. The Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) only accounts for the costs and income related to provision of Council-owned accommodation. The 
Local Government Act 1989 requires that this expenditure is ring-fenced and cannot be subsidised by the 
General Fund. 

The Net Budget for the HRA is £Nil, reflecting the self-financing nature of the account. However, financial 
performance is measured against the Gross Income budget, which is £26.475m for the year. The HRA has 
reported a small net surplus of £0.008m for 2019/20.  

HRA Outturn 2019/20 Budget Outturn Variance 

£k £k £k % 

Gross Income -26,475 -26,718 -243 0.92 
Service Expenditure 14,102 14,071 -31 -0.22 
Other Operating Costs and Income 9,382 9,852 470 5.01 
Earmarked Reserve Transfers 0 26 26 0 
Capital Financing and Debt Repayment 2,991 2,761 -230 -7.69 

Net Variance 0 -8 -8 -0.03 

 
The Housing Revenue Account Reserve has increased from £2.692m at the start of the year to £2.700m at 
31 March 2020. The year-end balance is still well above the minimum level set within the Council’s financial 
strategy of £1.800m, providing some resilience for financial and service risks and opportunities. 

The HRA Earmarked Reserve balance at 31 March 2020 is £1.648m, a decrease of £1.070m in the year. 
The reserves are committed predominantly to support Social Housing Development Fund (£1.232m) to 
support new build and acquisition of additional homes, and a range of other smaller reserves. 

Treasury Management 
 
Total cash and cash equivalents plus short term investments at 31 March 2020 were £33.717m. The main 
factors that would affect cash in the future are: 

 Acquisition and disposals relating to the capital programme 

 The value of reserve balances 

 Appeals provisions 

 Grants and contributions unapplied 
 

 1 April 2019 31 March 2020 

 £k £k 

Cash and other cash equivalents 22,028 28,691 

Short term investments 17,055 5,026 

Total 39,083 33,717 

 
Pensions 
 
The Council’s share of the overall Pension Fund deficit increased from £105.7m at 1 April 2019 to £111.9m 
at 31 March 2020. The deficit has increased by 5.9%.  

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS AND OUTLOOK 
 
During 2019/20 the Council focused on stabilising and improving services following the period of disruption 
as the transformation programme was implemented. A balanced budget 2020/21 was approved in February 
2020, and the medium term financial plan projected a budget gap by 2024/25 of £1.7m. This relies on 
savings targets agreed in the Financial Strategy set in 2019 being delivered. Due to the level of uncertainty 
on future funding the financial projections will need to be monitored carefully and reviewed as new 
information becomes available.  Page 108



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

10 

 
COVID-19: The Government’s lockdown, announced on 20th March 2020, has had a significant impact 
upon the Council with significant additional costs and loss of income. These additional costs have not had a 
dramatic impact on the financial outturn for 2019/20 as the pandemic only started to make a notable impact 
on the public’s and businesses’ behaviour in the last two weeks of March. However, the true scale of its 
impact on the Council’s finances will be felt during 2020/21. There have been significant additional costs in 
supporting our most vulnerable, and also a major reduction in income in particular through fees and 
charges for car parking. 
 
It is difficult to quantify the impact with certainty at this stage, but the impact will be carefully monitored 
during 2020/21. It is highly likely that, despite the receipt of additional emergency funding from 
Government, there will be net losses that will need to be covered by the Council’s reserves. Through last 
year’s outturn and plans to be considered in the updated financial strategy this year we are strengthening 
the Council’s reserves to ensure we remain financial resilient, and can support the impact on our 
communities and the economic recovery moving forward.  
 
The Council has been instrumental to date in supporting the local community, quickly implementing the 
Government’s business rates holiday scheme for 2020/21 (estimated £28m discounts applied) and 
processing grants to small businesses and to the retail, hospitality and leisure sector (estimated £42m).   
 
The Government has announced the Fair Funding Review and Business Rates Retention review have been 
deferred and will not be implemented in April 2021 as originally planned. We will continue to engage and 
monitor developments to ensuring financial planning and decision making is based on reasonable 
assumptions and reliance information.  
  

Page 109



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

11 

 
EXPLANATION OF ACCOUNTING STATEMENTS 

The main financial statements contained within the Statement of Accounts are as follows. 

 The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (page 17) brings together details of the 
Council’s day-to-day revenue spending and income on its services, and other gains and losses in 
the year. 

 The Movement in Reserves Statement (page 18) shows the changes in the Council’s financial 
resources over the year, by showing the movement on the different reserves held, analysed into 
‘usable reserves’ (that can be used to fund spending) or other reserves 

 The Balance Sheet (page 19) provides a snapshot of the Council’s financial position at 31 March 
and sets out what is owned and what is owed. 

 The Cash Flow Statement (page 20) summarises the flows of cash into and out of the Council 
during the year. 

 The Notes to the Financial Statements (pages 21 to 82) provide supplementary information on 
some of the figures contained within the primary statements. They also include accounting policies, 
which guide the treatment of income and expenditure, and disclosures relating to the assets and 
liabilities of the Council. 

 
A more detailed explanation is included alongside each of these main statements within the Statement of 
Accounts. 
 
 
FURTHER INFORMATION 

Further information on the contents of these statements, easy to read summary versions and additional 
copies of this booklet can be obtained from: 

P Fitzgerald ACMA CGMA, Assistant Director – Finance (Section 151 Officer), Deane House, Belvedere 
Road, Taunton, TA1 1HE 
Telephoning: (01823) 217557 
E-mail to: S151@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk   
 

  

Page 110

mailto:S151@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk


Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

12 

 
The Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 

 
 
The Council is required to: 

 
 Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of 

its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Council that officer 
is the Assistant Director – Finance (S151 Officer). 

 Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its 
assets. 

 Approve the Statement of Accounts.  
 
The Strategic Finance Advisor is required to: 
 
The Assistant Director – Finance (S151 Officer) is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts which, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA (Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accounting) Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom (referred to as the Code). 
 
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Assistant Director – Finance (S151 Officer) has: 

 Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently. 

 Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent. 

 Complied with the local authority Code. 
 

The Assistant Director – Finance (S151 Officer) has also: 

 Kept proper accounting records which are up to date. 

 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
Certification of the Accounts 
 
This Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of Somerset West and 
Taunton Council at 31 March 2020 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2020. 
 

 
P Fitzgerald ACMA, CGMA 
Assistant Director Finance (S151 Officer) 
 
 To be updated 2020 
 
 
Approval of the Accounts 
 
This draft Statement of Accounts is unaudited and as published may be subject to change. The audited 
Statement of Accounts will be presented to be approved by resolution of the Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee as soon as practicable following the conclusion of the audit, under powers allocated 
by the constitutional arrangements of the Council, and signed by the Chair of the Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 111



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

13 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report  
 
The Auditor’s opinion will appear here when issued. 

 
Please see Appendix E to the Audit Findings Report from Grant Thornton.  

Page 112



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

14 

Independent Auditor’s Report  
 
The Auditor’s opinion will appear here when issued. 

 

Page 113



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

15 

Independent Auditor’s Report  
 
The Auditor’s opinion will appear here when issued. 

Page 114



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

16 

Independent Auditor’s Report  
 
The Auditor’s opinion will appear here when issued. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 115



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

17 

 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation (or rents). Councils raise 
taxation (and rents) to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the 
accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Gross Gross Net

Expenditure Income  Expenditure

£000 £000 £000

Commercial Investment 15,619 (1,398) 14,221

Communications & Engagement 763 (150) 613

Customer 42,454 (42,192) 262

Localities 9,080 (3,544) 5,536

Performance and Governance 18,155 (1,673) 16,482

Strategic Board 1,111 (1) 1,110

Strategy 1,096 (576) 520

Housing Revenue Account 22,759 (26,737) (3,978)

Cost of Services 111,037 (76,271) 34,766

Other Operating Expenditure 11 1,001

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 12 5,647

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 13 (32,995)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 8,419

(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment assets (6,705)

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (664)

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (7,369)

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 1,050

N
o

t
e
s

2019/20

 
 

Somerset West and Taunton Council came into existence on 1st April 2019. All operations were acquired 
from the predecessor councils and, therefore, there are no prior year comparative details available. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 116



Somerset West and Taunton Council     

18 

Movement in Reserves Statement 
 
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied 
to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other ‘unusable reserves’. The statement shows how the movements in year of the Council’s reserves are 
broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustments required to 
return to the amounts chargeable to council tax (or rents) for the year. The net increase / decrease line shows the statutory general fund balance and 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) balance movements in the year following those adjustments. 

 

 

 

Somerset West and Taunton Council came into existence on 1st April 2019. All operations were acquired from the predecessor councils and, therefore, 
there are no prior year comparative details available. 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

2019/20

Balance at 1 April 2019 -21,100 -5,437 -15,242 -2,712 -5,601 -50,092 -208,794 -258,886

Movement in Reserves during 2019/20

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 10,210 -1,791 8,419 -7,369 1,050

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 

basis under regulations (note 8) -14,217 2,879 -2,540 -996 -3,982 -18,856 18,856 0

Increase/(Decrease) in 2019/20 -4,007 1,088 -2,540 -996 -3,982 -10,438 11,488 1,050

Balance at 31 March 2020 -25,107 -4,349 -17,782 -3,708 -9,583 -60,530 -197,306 -257,836

T
o

ta
l 

U
s
a
b

le
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 

B
a
la

n
c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

U
n

a
p

p
li

e
d

P
age 117



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

19 

Balance Sheet 
 
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised 
by the Council. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by 
the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, 
i.e. those reserves that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent 
level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that 
may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those 
that the Council is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that 
hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only 
become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences 
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘adjustments between accounting basis and funding 
basis under regulations’.   

 

31 March 2020

Notes £000

Council Dwellings 296,914

Other Land and Buildings 105,255

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 6,402

Infrastructure Assets 12,007

Community Assets 7,876

Surplus Assets 177

Assets Under Construction 6,925

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 15 435,556

Heritage Assets 141

Investment Property 16 6,764

Intangible Assets 647

Long-term Investments 17 3

Long-term Debtors 19 6,606

Long Term Assets 449,717

Short Term Investments 17 5,026

Assets Held for Sale 18 3,260

Inventories 172

Short Term Debtors 19 13,524

Cash and Cash Equivalents 20 28,691

Current Assets 50,673

Short Term Borrowing 17 (25,507)

Short Term Creditors 21 (28,345)

Provisions 22 (945)

Current Liabilities (54,797)

Long Term Borrowing 17 (75,601)

Other Long Term Liabilities 36 (111,912)

Long Term Creditors (244)

Long Term Liabilities (187,757)

Net Assets 257,836

Usable Reserves 23 (60,530)

Unusable reserves 24 (197,306)

Total Reserves (257,836)

Page 118



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

20 

  

 

Cash Flow Statement 
 
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the 
reporting period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents 
by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows 
arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are 
funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Authority. 
Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are 
intended to contribute to the Authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities 
are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council. 

 

 

2019/20

N
o

te
s

£000

Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services (6,026)

Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non 

cash movements 24 17,429

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus on the provision of 

services that are investing and financing activities 24 (5,562)

Net cash flows from Operating Activities 5,841

Investing Activities 25 (7,678)

Financing Activities 26 8,500

Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents 6,663

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 18 22,028

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 18 28,691

Page 119



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

21 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements 
(Please be aware that there may be minor rounding differences in some of these notes). 

1. Accounting Policies 

i. General Principles 

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2019/20 financial year and 
its position at the year-end on 31 March 2020. The Council is required to prepare an annual 
Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which those Regulations require 
to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices under Section 21 of 
the 2003 Act primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2019/20, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory 
guidance issued under Section 12 of the 2003 Act.  

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 

The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

ii. Accruals of Income and Expenditure 

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received. In particular: 

 Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of goods, is 
recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in accordance 
with the performance obligations in the contract. 

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between the 
date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance 
Sheet. 

 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded 
as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made. 

 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as 
income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial 
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a 
debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be 
settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that 
might not be collected. 

iii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty 
on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in one month or 
less from the date of the balance sheet and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with 
insignificant risk of change in value. As the majority of the Council’s own bills are due in one month or 
less, the Council treats cash on deposit for more than one month (and so not immediately available to 
pay bills) as a short-term investment rather than a cash equivalent available alongside cash itself.  

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. 

Page 120



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

22 

iv. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a 
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current 
and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to prior period adjustment. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper practices or the change 
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and 
conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is 
applied retrospectively (unless otherwise stated) by adjusting opening balances and comparative 
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

v. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the 
cost of holding non-current (fixed) assets during the year: 

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

 Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated 
gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off 

 Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service. 

The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment 
losses or amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards 
the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis 
determined by the Council in accordance with statutory guidance. Depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses and amortisation are therefore replaced by the contribution (Minimum Revenue 
Provision, MRP) in the General Fund balance and Housing Revenue Account balance, by way of an 
adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for 
the difference between the two. 

The Council’s adopted Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy is the Equal Instalment Method 
whereby MRP is linked to weighted asset life. This is considered to be a prudent approach as it takes 
into account the materiality of each asset and its remaining useful life. MRP in respect of Capital 
Grants is calculated on a straight-line basis over 25 years. 

vi. Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates 

Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of the 
major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting council tax and NDR 
for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the 
Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and NDR. 
Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors and 
central government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax and 
NDR collected could be less or more than predicted.  

Accounting for Council Tax and NDR  

The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
(CIES) is the council’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the 
amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the authority’s General Fund. Therefore, the 
difference between the income included in the CIES and the amount required by regulation to be 

Page 121



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

23 

credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a 
reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  

The Balance Sheet includes the authority’s share of the end of year balances in respect of council tax 
and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, overpayments and 
prepayments and appeals. 

Where debtor balances for the above are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a 
past event that payments due under the statutory arrangements will not be made, the asset is written 
down and a charge made to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. 
The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the revised 
future cash flows. 

vii. Employee Benefits 

Benefits Payable During Employment 

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the year-end. 
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave, paid sick leave, and non-
monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in 
the year in which the employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of 
holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. flexi-time) earned by employees but not taken before 
the year end which the employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made 
at the wages and salary rates applicable at the end of the year, which is considered to represent a fair 
value for the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves 
Statement so that holiday entitlements are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the 
holiday absence occurs.  

Termination Benefits 

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an 

officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary 

redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accrual basis to the appropriate 

service segment or, where applicable, to a corporate service segment  at the earlier of when the 

Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Council recognises costs for a 

restructuring. 

 

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 

General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or 

pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  In 

the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve 

to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace 

them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable 

but unpaid at the year-end. 

 
Post-Employment Benefits 

Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by 
Somerset County Council (SCC). The Local Government Scheme provides defined benefits to 
members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees while working for the Council.  

 

 

 

Page 122



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

24 

The Local Government Pension Scheme 

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:  

 The liabilities of the SCC pension scheme attributable to the Council are included in the Balance 
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future 
payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on 
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and projections of future earnings 
for current employees. 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.35% (based on 
the annulaised Merrill Lynch AA rated corporate bond yield curve, where the spot curve is assumed 
to be flat beyond the 30 year point). 

 The assets of the SCC pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at 
their fair value: 

 quoted securities – current bid price 
 unquoted securities – professional estimate 
 unitised securities – current bid price 
 property – market value. 

The change in the net pension liability is analysed into the following components: 

Service cost comprising: 

 current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this 
year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services 
for which the employees worked 

 past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or 
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

 net interest on the net defined benefit liability – i.e. net interest expense for the Council – 
the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage 
of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this is calculated by applying the 
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period 
to the net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the period – taking into account any 
changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and 
benefit payments.  

Remeasurements comprising: 

 the return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 

 actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pension liability that arise because events 
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the 
actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

Contributions paid to the SCC pension fund – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the 
pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance and Housing 
Revenue Account balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund 
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the 

Page 123



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

25 

Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the Pensions 
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits 
for the cash paid to the pension fund and any amounts payable to the fund but unpaid at the year-end. 
The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to 
the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account of being required to account for retirement benefits 
on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees. 

Discretionary Benefits 

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the 
event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of 
staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same 
policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 

viii. Events After The Reporting Period 

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur 
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised 
for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the 
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events 

 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the Statement of 
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a 
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated 
financial effect. 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 
Accounts. 

ix. Financial Instruments 

Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried 
at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the 
carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The 
effective rate of interest is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life 
of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.  

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance 
Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to 
the loan agreement. 

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund balance to be spread over future years. 
The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was remaining on the loan 
against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation 
of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge 
required against the General Fund balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial 
Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

 

 Page 124



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

26 

Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the 
business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics. There are three 
main classes of financial assets measured at: 

 amortised cost 

 fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and 

 fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial 
assets are, therefore, classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments are 
not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows do not take the form of a basic 
debt instrument).  

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at 
fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES for interest receivable are based on the 
carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective interest rate for the instrument. For most of the 
financial assets held by the Council, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the 
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the 
amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.  

Expected Credit Loss Model 

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost (or 
where relevant FVOCI), either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also 
applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade 
receivables (debtors) held by the Council.   

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take 
place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in 
assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, 
losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, 
losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses.  

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and 
carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services. 

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques: 

 instruments with quoted market prices – the market price 

 other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis 

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three 
levels: Page 125



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

27 

 Level 1 inputs - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the 
Council can access at the measurement date. 

 Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset, either directly or indirectly. 

 Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.  

x. Government Grants and Contributions 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, Government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance 
that: 

 The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

 The grants or contributions will be received. 

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. 
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential 
embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the 
recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the 
transferor. 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried 
in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited 
to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-
Specific Grant Income and Expenditure (non-ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance or Housing Revenue Account balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to 
the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital 
Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.  

xi. Business Improvement District 

A Business Improvement District (BID) scheme applies to the town of Minehead within the West 

Somerset district. The scheme is funded by a BID levy paid by non-domestic ratepayers within 

Minehead. The Council acts as principal under the scheme, and accounts for income received and 

expenditure incurred (including contributions to the BID project) within the relevant services within the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

xii. Community Infrastructure Levy 

The Council has elected to charge a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The levy will be charged on 
new builds (chargeable developments for the Council) with appropriate planning consent. The Council 
charges for and collects the levy, which is a planning charge. The income from the levy will be used to 
fund a number of infrastructure projects to support the development of the area.  

Page 126



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

28 

CIL is received without outstanding conditions; it is therefore recognised at the commencement date 
of the chargeable development in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 
accordance with the accounting policy for Government grants and contributions as set out above. CIL 
charges will be largely used to fund capital expenditure. However, a small proportion of the charges 
may be used to fund revenue expenditure. 

xiii. Intangible Assets 

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 
Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future 
economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council. 

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the 
assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no 
intangible assets held by the Council meet this criterion and they are, therefore, carried at amortised 
cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant 
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for 
impairment whenever there is an indication the asset might be impaired – any losses recognised are 
posted to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any 
gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on 
the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and 
(for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

xiv. Investment Property 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. 
The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or 
production of goods or is held for sale.  

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the price 
that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date. As a non-financial asset, investment properties are measured at highest and 
best use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at 
the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment 
is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment 
Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund balance. However, revaluation and disposal 
gains are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund balance. 
The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any proceeds greater 
than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.   

xv. Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risk 
and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. 
All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 
separately for classification.  

Page 127



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

29 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return 
for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on 
the use of specific assets. 

The Council as Lessee 

Operating Leases 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from the use of the leased property, plant or 
equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, even if this does not 
match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).  

The Council as Lessor 

Operating Leases 

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line 
basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a 
premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and 
arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an 
expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 

xvi. Overheads and Support Services 

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance with the 
authority’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance. 

xvii. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during 
more than one financial year are classified as property, plant and equipment. 

Recognition 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future 
economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when 
it is incurred. The Council has a discretionary de minimis level for recognising property, plant and 
equipment of £10,000. 

Measurement 

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 

 The purchase price 

 Any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by management 

 The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which 
it is located. 

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction. 

Page 128



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

30 

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of 
the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition 
is the carrying amount of an asset given up by the Council.  

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any 
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made 
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. Where 
gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of 
the General Fund balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

 Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated historical cost 

 Dwellings – current value, determined using the existing use value for social housing (EUV-SH) 

 Surplus assets – the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and best 
use from a market participant’s perspective  

 All other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its 
existing use (existing use value – EUV). 

Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an 
asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value. 

Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost 
basis is used as a proxy for current value. 

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that 
their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but as a 
minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve 
to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a 
service. 

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 

 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 
gains) 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of 
its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 

Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the 
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 

 

Page 129



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

31 

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 

 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 
gains) 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service 
line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original 
loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic allocation 
of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a 
determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain community assets) and assets that are not 
yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 

 Dwellings - the Major Repairs Allowance is used as a reasonable estimate for depreciation 

 Other buildings – straight-line allocation over the life of the property as estimated by the valuer  

 Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – a percentage of the value of each class of assets in the 
Balance Sheet, as advised by a suitably qualified officer 

 Infrastructure – straight-line allocation over 25 years (or the life of the asset if less). 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment asset has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 

Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale 

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The 
asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and 
fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the 
loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised 
losses in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on assets held 
for sale. 

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified back 
to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as 
held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised 
had they not been classified as held for sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision 
not to sell.  

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale. 

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance 
Sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the Other Page 130



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

32 

Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. 
netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains 
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account.  

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion 
of capital receipts relating to housing disposals is payable to the government. The balance of receipts 
remains within the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or 
set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). 
Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets 
is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to 
the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 

xviii. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities  

Provisions 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive 
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the Council may be 
involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of 
compensation.  

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and are 
measured at the best estimate at the Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the 
obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.  

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. 
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than 
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than 
anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be met by another party 
(e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income in the relevant service if it is virtually 
certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles the obligation. 

Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances 
where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 

Contingent Assets 

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Council. 

Page 131



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

33 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts 
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 

xix. Reserves 

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund Balance or 
Housing Revenue Account balance. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is 
charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 
of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred 
back into the General Fund balance or Housing Revenue Account balance so that there is no net 
charge against council tax for the expenditure. 

Separate reserves are maintained for capital and revenue spending; in line with legislation and 
accounting practice, capital reserves cannot be used to support general revenue spending although 
revenue reserves may be used to support capital spending. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, local taxation, and retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable 
resources for the Council – these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 

xx. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does 
not result in the creation of a non-current asset is charged as expenditure to the relevant service in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Council has 
determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a 
transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital 
Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of 
council tax. 

xxi. VAT 

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s 
Revenue & Customs (HMRC). VAT receivable is excluded from income. 

xxii. Fair Value Measurement of non-financial assets 

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as investment properties and some of its 
financial instruments such as Money Market Funds at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is 
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:  

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.  

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest. 

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use 
of unobservable inputs.  

Page 132



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

34 

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the Council’s financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as 
follows: 

 Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
authority can access at the measurement date  

 Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly  

 Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.  

2. 2.  Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted 

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires the 
disclosure of information relating to the expected impact of an accounting change that will be required by 
a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. This applies to the adoption of the new or 
amended standards within the 2020/21 Code. 
 
At the balance sheet date, the following new standards and amendments to existing standards have been 
published but not yet adopted by the Code: 
 

 Amendments to IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures: Long Term Interests in 
Associates and Joint Ventures 

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle 

 Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement 

 IFRS16 Leases - This standard will require local authorities that are lessees to recognise most 
leases on their balance sheets as right-of-use assets with corresponding lease liabilities rather 
than expense the rental charge through the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
CIPFA/LASAAC have deferred implementation of IFRS16 for local government to 1 April 2021.  An 
estimated impact of this standard will need to be reported in the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts, 
so the authority is continuing to assess the potential impact. At the time of writing, its currently not 
possible to estimate the likely impact as we are still in the process of identifying the lease 
arrangements most likely to be affected. 

 
None of these changes are expected to have a material impact on the Council’s statements. 
 

3. 3.  Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 

In applying the accounting policies the Council has had to make judgements about complex transactions 
or those involving uncertainty about future events.  
 
The main critical judgements made in this Statement of Accounts are: 
 

 There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. This was 
already the case before the Covid-19 pandemic due to the one year financial settlement for 
2020/21 and the government review into local government funding – the Fair Funding Review. 
However, the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not sufficient to indicate that any of its 
assets might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities or reduce levels of service 
provision. The Covid-19 pandemic impacted from March 2020 therefore the full impact is not 
reflected in the Statement of Accounts. The Council is expecting significant challenges and cost 
pressures in the year ahead as it deals with the ongoing crisis, and has received additional grant 
funding from Government to reduce the impact on Council reserves, but is reviewing its reserves 
strategy to identify mitigations. 

 

 A Business Rates provision has been made in the accounts for £0.925m. The Council has 
included its best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation based on the 
appeals put in by ratepayers. 

Page 133



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

35 

 
4. Notes to the Balance Sheet 

2019/20 is the first year of Somerset West and Taunton Council which came into existence on 1st April 
2019. All operations were acquired from the predecessor councils and, therefore, there are no prior year 
comparative details available. 
 
However, in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Practice, this note shows the opening 
balance sheet on the creation of Somerset West and Taunton Council on 1st April 2019. 

 

 
 
  

1 April 2019

£000

Council Dwellings 286,386

Other Land and Buildings 89,758

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 7,352

Infrastructure Assets 12,640

Community Assets 7,775

Surplus Assets 1,046

Assets Under Construction 7,715

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 412,672

Heritage Assets 141

Investment Property 20,063

Intangible Assets 728

Long-term Investments 2,161

Long-term Debtors 2,261

Long Term Assets 438,026

Short Term Investments 17,055

Assets Held for Sale 1,290

Inventories 156

Short Term Debtors 13,549

Cash and Cash Equivalents 22,028

Current Assets 54,078

Short Term Borrowing -13,501

Short Term Creditors -30,792

Provisions -3,518

Current Liabilities -47,811

Long Term Borrowing -79,105

Other Long Term Liabilities -105,732

Long Term Creditors -570

Long Term Liabilities -185,407

Net Assets 258,886

Usable Reserves 50,092

Unusable reserves 208,794

Total Reserves 258,886

Page 134



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

36 

 

5. 5.  Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

The Statement of Accounts necessarily contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made 
by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account 
historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be 
determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. 

The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2020 for which there is a significant risk of material 
adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 

Item Significant Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from 
Assumptions 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment (PPE) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Property, Plant and 
Equipment (PPE) 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, our 
valuers have indicated that there may 
be a material uncertainty with the 
valuations provided. However, they are 
of the view that as at the valuation 
date the valuations produced are 
appropriate based on the comparable 
and cost data available at the valuation 
date. 
This material uncertainty applies to 
all property assets - General Fund 
PPE and Investment properties, the 
HRA (Housing Revenue Account) 
and Pension Fund. 
 
PPE assets are depreciated over 
useful lives that are chosen based on 
assumptions about the level of repairs 
and maintenance that will be incurred 
in relation to individual assets. If the 
working lives change significantly as a 
result of the Council’s review of its 
services then those useful lives may 
lengthen or shorten. 

If valuation assumptions are different 
to actual results, this will result in 
either a revaluation upwards or 
impairment charge being applied to the 
assumptions currently included within 
long term assets on the balance sheet. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Depreciation is calculated to spread 
the cost of an asset over its estimated 
working life. If the working life is 
reduced, depreciation goes up and 
carrying-value goes down; if the 
working life is extended, depreciation 
goes down and so carrying value goes 
up. For example, with vehicles costing 
approximately £1.4 million and an 
average working life of around five 
years, extending the life by 1 year 
would reduce annual depreciation by 
£47k. 
 

The carrying values of assets such as 
council houses depend very much on 
outside factors; for example, the 
significant revaluation in 2016/17 was 
due to a change in the discount factor 
applied nationally to social housing. 
This factor depends on market 
conditions such as the value of similar 
properties in an open market and rent 
yields for the private sector. The 
discount factor for the south-west in 
2015/16 was 31%; in 2019/20 it is 
35%. 

 

With council housing having a 
balance-sheet value of around £297m, 
each 1% change in the social housing 
discount factor moves the valuation up 
or down by £3.0m while having no 
effect on the actual housing stock 
itself. 

Page 135



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

37 

Item Significant Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from 
Assumptions 

Pensions Liability Estimates of the net liability to pay 
pensions depends on a number of 
complex judgements relating to the 
discount rate used, the rate at which 
salaries are projected to increase, 
changes in retirement ages, mortality 
rates and expected returns on pension 
fund assets. The Council works in 
partnership with other local authorities 
to engage a firm of consulting 
actuaries to provide expert advice 
about the assumptions to be applied, 
and reviews those assumptions in 
discussion with its partner Councils. 
Part of the annual accounts process is 
to review previous assumptions and 
test them against what actually 
happened, to provide further data for 
future assumptions. 

The effects on the net pension liability 
of many changes in individual 
assumptions can be measured. For 
example, if the discount rate were to 
change by plus or minus 0.1% from its 
assumed 2.35%, then the projected 
service cost would be between 
£4.958m to £5.248m. A similar change 
of 1 year in the mortality age range 
assumption means the projected 
service cost could be from £4.948m to 
£5.258m. 

With so much national debate and 
change in pension provisions, the 
assumptions are both difficult to 
predict from historical data and likely to 
change significantly in the short to 
medium term. The pension liability and 
its underlying data is therefore very 
much a carefully-reasoned estimate of 
the most likely combination of factors, 
but by its very nature is significantly 
uncertain. 

However, the assumptions interact in 
complex ways; for example, pension 
membership may fall, the proportion of 
commutable pension exchanged by 
members for cash on retirement may 
go up while members live longer and 
equity yields improve. 
 

Business Rates 
Appeals Provision 

Estimates have been made for the 
provision for refunding ratepayers who 
have successfully appealed against 
the rateable value of their properties. 
This includes the current and previous 
financial years. The estimate is based 
on those ratepayers who have 
appealed. 

There is uncertainty and risk 
surrounding the calculation of the 
provision as future events may affect 
the amount required to settle an 
obligation. 

Arrears At 31 March 2020 the Council had a 
balance of Council Tax debtors of 
£9.1m, this level of debtor is to be 
expected when collecting Council Tax 
of around £98m each year. The 
Council has made an impairment 
provision within the collection fund of 
£4.8m to cover debts that are not 
collectible for a variety of reasons; this 
Council’s share of this is 11.5% of the 
total. However, in the current 
economic climate the level of unpaid 
debts could change significantly at 
short notice. 

The Council is confident that the 
current levels of provision present a 
true and fair estimate of likely unpaid 
debts. However, the figures are large; 
with council tax income of nearly £98m 
this year from approximately 73,000 
households, a 0.1% change in the 
collection rate changes the amount 
collected by circa £98k in a full year 
(the Council’s risk would be 11.5% of 
this amount). The Council’s collection 
rate for 2019/20 was 97.35%. 

Page 136



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

38 

6. 6.  Material Items of Income and Expense 

During the year, there have been 45 sales of Council dwellings to Council tenants; this has resulted in a 
gain shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement of £1.449m.  

The Council incurs a significant proportion of spend on benefit payments, which is funded predominantly 
by Government grant. Housing Benefit and subsidy payments are included within Customer on the face of 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and payments amounted to £30.261m 2019/20. 
Housing Benefit subsidy amounted to (£30.128m) in 2019/20. 
 
 

7. 7.  Events After the Balance Sheet Date 

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Assistant Director – Finance (S151 Officer) on 
13 August 2020. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. 
Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 
2020, the figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to 
reflect the impact of this information. 
 
Britain leaving the Eurpoean Union - There is a level of uncertainty about the implications of Britain’s 
departure from the European Union. At the current time it is not possible to predict the agreement that will 
be reached at the end of the transition period in December 2020, therefore it is not possible to predict 
whether non-current asset values, investments or the discount rate of the pension fund liability will 
consequently change. Since 31 March 2020 there has been no impact on the value of these balances 
which would affect the understanding and financial position of the Council’s balance sheet. 
 
There have been no other events after the balance sheet date of 31 March 2020 that require the financial 
statements or notes to be adjusted for 2019/20.  

8.  

9. 8.  Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources 
(government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by Councils in comparison with those 
resources consumed or earned by Councils in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. 
It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the council’s 
portfolios. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is 
presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 137



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

39 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Net Expenditure 

Chargeable to the 

General Fund and 

HRA Balances

Adjustments 

between the 

Funding and 

Accounting Basis

Net Expenditure in the 

Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure 

Statement

£000 £000 £000

Commercial Investment 3,631 10,571 14,203

Communications & Engagement 604 9 613

Customer (2,298) 2,560 262

Localities 3,443 2,049 5,492

Performance and Governance 11,648 4,834 16,482

Strategic Board 1,110 1,110

Strategy 511 9 520

Housing Revenue Account (11,239) 7,261 (3,978)

Net Cost of Services 7,410 27,293 34,704

Other Income and Expenditure (10,331) (18,347) (28,678)

(Surplus) or Deficit (2,921) 8,946 6,026

Opening General Fund and HRA Balance (26,537)

Less/Plus Surplus or (Deficit) on General 

Fund and HRA Balance in Year (2,920)

Closing General Fund and HRA Balance at 

31 March * (29,457)

*For a split of this balance between the General Fund and the HRA - see the Movement in Reserves Statement 

2019/20

Page 138



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

40 

 

Notes to Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 

 

 

Adjustments for capital purposes - Note 1 

Adjustments for capital purposes – this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation 
gains and losses in the services line, and for:  

 Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal 
of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.  

 Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital financing 
i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted from other income 
and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.  

 Taxation and non-specific grant income – capital grants are adjusted for income not chargeable 
under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in 
the year to those receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the 
year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income line is credited with capital grants receivable in the 
year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year.  

Net change for the pensions adjustments - Note 2 

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits 
pension related expenditure and income:  

 

 For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the 
authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past service costs.  

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement amounts

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes

Net Change for 

Pensions 

Adjustments

Other 

Statutory 

Differences

Total 

Statutory 

Adjustments

Note 1 Note 2 Note 3

£000 £000 £000 £000

2019/20

Commercial Investment 10,553 14 4 10,571

Communications & Engagement 2 7 9

Customer 2,416 89 55 2,560

Localities 1,998 69 (18) 2,049

Performance and Governance 1,256 3,919 (342) 4,833

Strategic Board 7 (6) 1

Strategy 8 1 9

Housing Revenue Account 7,133 103 25 7,261

Net Cost of Services 23,356 4,211 (274) 27,293

Other Income and Expenditure from the 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (21,504) 2,633 524 (18,347)

Difference between General Fund Surplus or 

Deficit and Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on 

the Provision of Services 1,852 6,844 250 8,946

Page 139



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

41 

 For financing and investment income and expenditure –- the net interest on the defined benefit 
liability is charged to the CIES.  

Other statutory adjustments - Note 3 

Other statutory adjustments between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:  

 

 For Financing and investment income and expenditure the other statutory adjustments column 
recognises adjustments to the General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts.  

 The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income represents the difference between 
what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and NNDR that was projected to be 
received at the start of the year and the income recognised under generally accepted accounting 
practices in the Code. This is a timing difference as any difference will be brought forward in future 
Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund.  

 

Segmental Income 

 Fees, charges and other service income received on a segmental basis is analysed below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2019/20

£000

Commercial Investment (703)

Communications & Engagement (149)

Customer (9,496)

Financing & Investment Income (27)

Localities (3,371)

Performance and Governance (1,088)

Strategic Board (1)

Strategy (11)

Housing Revenue Account (26,234)

Income analysed on a segmental Basis (41,080)

Page 140



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

42 

 

9. Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure 
recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that 
are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue 
expenditure. 

The following sets out a description of the reserves that the adjustments are made against. 

General Fund Balance 

The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of the Council are required to be paid 
and out of which all liabilities of the Council are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might 
provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments should 
impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting 
practice. The General Fund Balance therefore summarises the resources that the Council is statutorily 
empowered to spend on its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of resources that the Council is 
required to recover) at the end of the financial year, however the balance is not available to be applied to 
fund Housing Revenue Account (HRA) services. 

Housing Revenue Account Balance 

The Housing Revenue Account Balance reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue account for 
local authority council housing provision in accordance with Part VI of the Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989. It contains the balance of income and expenditure as defined by the 1989 Act that is available to 
fund future expenditure in connection with the Council’s landlord function or (where in deficit) that is 
required to be recovered from tenants in future years. 

Major Repairs Reserve 

The Council is required to maintain the Major Repairs Reserve, which controls the application of the Major 
Repairs Allowance (MRA). The MRA is restricted to being applied to new capital investment in HRA 
assets or the financing of historical capital expenditure by the HRA. The balance shows the MRA that has 
yet to be applied at the year-end. 

Capital Receipts Reserve 

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets which are 
restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to 
finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be 
applied for these purposes at year-end. 

Capital Grants Unapplied 

The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants and contributions received towards 
capital projects for which the Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of 
the monies, but which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms 
as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which this can 
take place.

Page 141



Somerset West and Taunton Council     

43 

The table below shows the adjustments that have been made between the accounting basis and funding basis:  

General Housing Capital Major Capital

Fund Revenue Receipts Repairs Grants

Balance Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied

2019/20 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory requirements

Pension costs (transferred to or from the Pensions Reserve) 5,924 919

Financial Instruments (transferred to the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account) 1,491

Council Tax and NNDR (transfers to or from the Collection Fund) (967)

Holiday Pay (transferred to or from the Accumulated Absences Account) (299) 25
Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in relation to capital 

expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account) 9,768 11,001 3,982

Total Adjustment to Revenue Resources 15,917 11,945 0 0 3,982

Adjustment between Revenue and Capital Resources

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve 0 (5,562) 5,562

Administrative costs of non-current asset disposals (funded by a contribution form the Capital Receipts 

Reserve) 59 (59)

Payments to the government housing receipts pool (funded by a transfer from the Capital Receipts 

Reserve) 382 (382)

Posting of HRA resources from revenue to the Major Repairs Reserve (6,894) 6,894

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the capital adjustment account) (455) (1,821) (334)

Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (1,245) (988)

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources (1,700) (14,824) 4,787 6,894 0

Adjustments to Capital Resources 

Use of the Capital Receipts reserve to finance capital expenditure (2,581)

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance capital expenditure (5,898)

Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure

Deferred Debtors repaid 334

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 0 0 (2,247) (5,898) 0

Total Adjustments 2019/20 14,217 (2,879) 2,540 996 3,982

P
age 142



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

44 

10. Movements in Earmarked Reserves 

The table below shows the amounts set aside from the General Fund and HRA balances in capital or 
revenue earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans. It also shows the 
movement in each major earmarked reserve where amounts have either been posted to the reserve or 
back to meet General Fund and HRA expenditure in 2018/19. Reserves indicated with an asterisk (*) are 
held for capital purposes. 

 

Balance at Transfers Transfers  Balance at

01/04/2019 Out In 31/3/2020

Earmarked Reserves £000 £000 £000 £000

General Fund

Asset Maintenance & Compliance 233 233

Asset Management - Leisure 137 (62) 62 136

Brewhouse Refurbishment 150 150

Business Rates Smoothing Reserve 3,547 (4,254) 4,010 3,303

Capital Financing Reserve * 650 (482) 288 456

Carry Forwards 1,135 (1,135) 61 61

CEO Initiatives 50 (50) 0

Contingency (Negative RSG) 0 (20) 128 108

Corporate Training 99 99

DLO Vehicle Replacement Reserve * 239 239

Eco Towns Projects 238 (90) 90 238

Economic Development & Growth Initiatives 193 (125) 1,200 1,268

Elections Reserve 156 (136) 20

Enterprising Minehead 64 (46) 7 25

Garden Village 944 (827) 697 814

Homelessness Prevention 44 120 164

Housing Enabling 20 (137) 147 30

Hurlestone Bothy 50 (50) 50 50

Investment Risk Reserve 0 3,500 3,500

Local Plan Development and Inspection Costs 311 (166) 33 178

Minehead Esplanade 59 (64) 50 45

Monkton Heathfield 347 (357) 199 189

Neighbourhood Planning Grant 122 (87) 41 76

New Homes Bonus Reserve 6,168 (2,425) 3,117 6,860

Parking 243 (75) 168

Performance & Client Consultancy 40 (40) 0

Planning Policy 84 84

Planning Reserve 50 50

Resources Service Costs 33 33

Rough Sleepers Initiative 0 81 81

Self Insurance Fund 200 200

Strategic Housing Market Area Assessment 576 (7) 569

Strategy - Future High Street 0 80 80

Steam Coast Trail 93 93

Sustainability Reserve 78 78

SWP Recycle More 55 (55) 0

Transformation Reserve 564 (402) 164 326

Transition 262 (507) 386 141

Travel Plan 192 (30) 30 192

Waste Earmarked Reserve 106 (129) 89 66

Other Earmarked Reserves 710 (635) 108 183

Total General Fund 18,242 (12,393) 14,737 20,586
Page 143



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

45 

 
 
 
The purposes for which individual reserves with balances in excess of £1 million are held are as follows:- 

 Business Rates Smoothing Reserve – to smooth the effect of successful business rates appeals  

 Economic Development & Growth Initiatives Reserve – monies set aside from the business rates 
pooling gain to aid economic development and growth initiatives 

 Investment Risk Reserve –  to manage commercial investment net income volatility 

 New Homes Bonus Reserve - to receive and distribute the New Homes Bonus Grant 

 Social Housing Development Fund – to provide funding towards Social Housing Development 

 

11. Other Operating Expenditure 

The note below details what is included in the ‘Other Operating Expenditure’ line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Balance at Transfers Transfers  Balance at

01/04/2019 Out In 31/3/2020

Earmarked Reserves £000 £000 £000 £000

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Carry Forwards 186 (186) 0 0

Electrical Testing 474 (474) 0 0

Employment & Skills 102 0 0 102

Asbestos Surveys 0 (68) 170 102

One Teams 50 (13) 0 37

Social Housing Development Fund 1,339 (107) 0 1,232

Transformation Reserve 379 (204) 0 175

Transition 178 (178) 0 0

Other Earmarked Reserves 10 (10) 0 0

Total HRA 2,718 (1,240) 170 1,648

2019/20

£000

Parish Council precepts 2,072

Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool 382

Pension Administration Costs 92

(Gains)/Losses on the disposal of non-current assets (1,545)

Total 1,001

Page 144



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

46 

12.  Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

The note below details what is included in the ‘Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure’ line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

 

2019/20

£000

Interest payable and similar charges 2,486

Net interest on the net defined liability (asset) 2,541

Interest receivable and similar income (855)

Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and changes in 

their fair value

(33)

Bad Debt Impairment Allowance (27)

Investment Expected Credit Losses 1,535

Total 5,647

Page 145



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

47 

13.  Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 

The note below details what is included in the ‘Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income’ line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

More details of grants the Council has received can be found in Note 31 Grant Income. 

14. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 

The Council’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows: 

 

2019/20

£000

Council tax income (11,091)

Non domestic rates income and expenditure (10,956)

Non-ringfenced Government grants (3,809)

Capital grants and contributions (7,139)

Total (32,995)

2019/20

£000

Expenditure

Employee Benefits Expenses 29,786

Other Services Expenses 57,592

Depreciation, Amortisation, Impairment and Revenue Expenditure funded 

from Capital under Statute

23,418

Loss / (Gain) on the Disposal of Assets (1,545)

Interest Payments 6,562

Precepts and Levies 2,072

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool 382

Total Expenditure 118,267

Income

Fees, Charges and Other Service Income (40,987)

Income from Council Tax, Non-Domestic Rates, District Rate Income (22,047)

Government Grants and Contributions (45,926)

Income and Expenditure in relation to investment properties and changes in 

their fair value

(33)

Interest and Investment Income (855)

Total Income (109,848)

(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 8,419

Page 146



Somerset West and Taunton Council     

48 

 

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 

The table below details the movement on the Council’s assets shown on the Balance Sheet as property plant and equipment. 

 

`

Council 

Dwellings

Land and 

Buildings

Vehicles, 

Plant and 

Equipment

Infrastructure 

Assets

Community 

Assets

Surplus 

Assets

Assets Under 

Construction Total

2019/20 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2019 286,386 89,302 13,548 17,564 7,852 1,046 7,715 423,413

Adjustment to Opening Balance 1,608 1,608

Additions 16,625 1,980 309 2 6,292 25,208

Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in the 

Revaluation reserve

-132 -110 -189 -238 -669

Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in the 

Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

-7,819 -124 -211 -8,154

Derecognition - Disposals -3,233 -91 -3,324

Assets reclassified within Property, Plant and 

Equipment

7,122 380 -420 -7,082 0

Assets reclassified (to)/from Investment Property 14,981 32 15,013

Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale -2,732 -2,732

At 31 March 2020 296,914 106,973 13,857 17,564 7,953 177 6,925 450,363

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

At 1 April 2019 0 -1,152 -6,196 -4,924 -77 0 0 -12,349

Depreciation charge -6,805 -1,240 -1,259 -633 -9,937

Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 6,805 663 7,468

Depreciation written out to the Surplus/Deficit on the 

Provision of Services

10 10

Derecognition - Disposals 1 1

At 31 March 2020 0 -1,718 -7,455 -5,557 -77 0 0 -14,807

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2020 296,914 105,255 6,402 12,007 7,876 177 6,925 435,556

P
age 147



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

49 

Depreciation 
 
The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation: 

 Council Dwellings – Various components over useful lives of between 15-100 years 

 Other Land and Buildings – Straight Line allocation over a useful life of up to 60 years 

 Vehicles Plant and Equipment – Straight line basis over a useful life of up to 20 years 

 Infrastructure – Depreciation on a straight line basis over 25 years 
 

The major commitments on the Council’s General Fund and Housing Revenue Account Capital 
Programme in 2019/20 are shown below. 

General Fund 

The Council is currently under contract for the development of the site at Coal Orchard in Taunton, and 
the Seaward Way site in Minehead. The total commitment on these sites at 31st March 2020 is £11.1m 

The Council has also entered into a contract to commit a contribution of £1.5m towards the M5 Junction 
25 Capacity Improvement Scheme.  

Some sites were reviewed as to whether they should be categorised as Land and Buildings within PPE or 
as Investments, depending on whether their prime use is towards the benefit of the community or as 
income generators.  One of these, Thales, was found to have changed to PPE on 28 March 2019, so the 
opening balance in 2019/20 has been amended to reflect this.  The others were recatogorised or 
confirmed as PPE in 2019/20.  These sites were: Firepool, Land at Ash Meadows, Blenheim Gardens 

Café, Watchet West Pier (Sea Scouts Changing Facilities), Goodlands Gardens, Taunton, The 
Shed Café, Minehead Kiosk on Harbour, and Harbour Studios (Formerly Marina Office on the 
East Wharf). 
 

Housing Revenue Account 

Housing Revenue Account capital works are largely related to purchase of additional properties, 
progressing the North Taunton housing regeneration scheme, for which there is an approved budget of 
£14.1m as at 31st March 2020, maintining and improving housing standards including heating systems, 
insulation, fire safety, and other related works.  

Revaluations 

The Council carries out a rolling programme of asset valuations to ensure that all property, plant and 
equipment required to be measured at fair value is revalued at least every five years.  

Valuations at 31 March 2020 have been carried out by Wilks Head & Eve, Chartered Surveyors. 
Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for 
estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). 
Valuations of vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment are based on current prices where there is an active 
second-hand market or latest prices adjusted for the condition of the asset. 

The significant assumptions applied by the Valuers in estimating the current values of property, plant and 
equipment are as follows: 

 Planning Proposals 

o We have not made formal written enquiries of the Local Authority Planning Departments to 
ascertain if there are any adverse proposals likely to affect specific properties. We are 
instructed, however, that for the purposes of this Valuation Certificate, we should assume 
that there are no planning proposals that are likely to have an effect on the value of the 
properties unless these were specifically notified to us 

Page 148



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

50 

 Construction and State of Repair 

 Structural / Condition surveys have not been undertaken of the properties nor have the 
service installations been tested. 

 We have not carried out a structural survey nor have we inspected those parts of the 
properties that are covered, unexposed or inaccessible and such parts have been assumed 
to be in good repair and condition. We cannot express an opinion about or advise upon the 
condition of uninspected parts and this report should not be taken as making any implied 
representation or statement about such parts. 

 No allowances have been made for rights, obligations or liabilities arising from the 
Defective Premises Act 1972. 

 Unless we are aware that a specific property has a limited economic life, we have assumed 
that the assets are at a suitable level of condition for service provision, and that all internal 
and external repairs and maintenance have been carried out. We have assumed that these 
repairs do not constitute improvement to the properties and do not have a material effect 
on asset value 

 Hazardous or Deleterious Materials 

 We have not arranged for any investigation to be carried out to determine whether or not 
any deleterious or hazardous material has been used in the construction of these 
properties or has since been incorporated and we are therefore unable to report that the 
properties are free from risk in this respect. For the purpose of this report we have 
assumed that such investigation would not disclose the presence of any such material in 
any adverse condition  

 Contaminated Land 

 We are not aware of the content of any environmental audit or other environmental 
investigation or soil survey which may have been carried out on the property and which 
may draw attention to any contamination or possibility of any such contamination. In 
undertaking our work, we have been instructed to assume that no contaminative or 
potentially contaminative uses have ever been carried out on the property. We have not 
carried out any investigation into past or present uses either of the properties or of any 
neighbouring land to establish whether there is any potential for contamination from these 
sites to the subject property and have therefore assumed that none exists 

 Should it however be established subsequently that contamination exists at any of the 
properties or any neighbouring land or that the properties have been or are being put to a 
contaminative use this might reduce the values now reported 

 Plant and Machinery 

 Any plant and machinery that has been considered to form part of the property or service 
installations is included in the valuation. Where there is doubt as to the correct 
classification, assets installed primarily to provide services to the properties have been 
valued with the land and buildings and assets primarily serving the commercial or industrial 
process have been excluded. Any departure from this is stated on the relevant Valuation 
Statement.  

 Lotting 

 Where applicable, properties have been lotted. No allowance or discount has been made 
for any flooding of the market which might, in practice, happen if several properties were 
offered for sale simultaneously. The figure reported is the aggregate of the values on 
separate properties. 

 Taxation 

 No allowance has been made for liability for taxation which may arise on disposal, whether 
actual or notional. Where possible VAT and Capital Gains Tax are specifically excluded, Page 149



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

51 

and our valuation does not reflect costs of realisation unless specifically requested by the 
client. No additions have been made for Stamp Duty Land Tax (SDLT). 

 Acquisition and Disposal Costs 

 No notional directly attributable acquisition costs or selling costs have been applied to or 
deducted from the Current Value and Fair Value figures provided within this report. 

 For indicative purposes only, the Valuer would expect purchaser’s cost to be in the region 
of 0.5% and 5.0% (plus or minus) dependant on the overall value of the asset and property 
type on an acquisition or disposal respectively. 

 The Valuer has made no allowance for any vendor’s costs or taxation (actual or notional) 
nor has any allowances been made for any capital or annual grants or incentives to which a 
purchaser may be entitled. 

 The Valuer has not been asked by the client to specifically reflect these costs separately. 

 Guidance on this matter is provided within UKVS 1 Paragraph 1.7 Costs to be excluded of 
the Red Book: 

 The valuer must not include directly attributable acquisition or disposal costs in the 
valuation. When asked by the client to reflect costs, these must be stated 
separately. 

 In determining the figure to enter into the balance sheet (the ‘carrying amount’), 
FRS 15 requires the addition of notional, directly attributable acquisition costs, 
where material, to the EUV. Likewise, where property is surplus to the entity’s 
requirements and valued on the basis of market value, there should be a deduction 
for expected, directly attributable selling costs, where material. If requested to 
advise on these costs, the Valuer should report them separately and not 
amalgamate them with either the EUV or market value. The valuation should reflect 
the Valuer’s opinion of the consideration that would appear in the hypothetical sale 
and purchase contract. 

 FRS 15 states that directly attributable costs can include stamp duty, import duties 
and non refundable purchase taxes, as well as professional fees, the Valuer is 
alerted to a potential problem with a property that would, or would potentially, be 
subject to VAT in any transaction but the entity may not be able to reclaim the VAT. 
The decision whether or not to treat this as a directly attributable acquisition cost 
should be determined by the entity, together with its auditors. Even if this is the 
case the Valuer should state clearly in the report what assumptions have been 
made and the likely impact of VAT in any transaction. 

 In the case of surplus properties, directly attributable selling costs that are material 
may need to be itemised separately. If this is the case, they will include not only the 
transaction costs but also any marketing costs that can be reasonable anticipated. 

 Energy Performance Certificates 

 In England and Wales, the Energy Performance of Buildings Directive requiring Energy 
Performance Certificates (EPC) is relevant. 

 This directive re quires all properties to have an Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) 
covering the residential and commercial sectors. The Certificate is valid for ten years and 
includes an Energy Efficient Rating of between A and G. 

Page 150



Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
  

52 

 Since 26th March 2015 the minimum energy efficiency standard (MEES) has been 
introduced. 

 This minimum standard applies to both domestic and non domestic property and from 1st 
April 2018 Landlords have been unable to let an F or G rated commercial property on a 
new or renewed tenancy / lease. 

 From 1st April 2020, the regulations apply to all property leases, initially for domestic 
properties, and then in 2023 non domestic properties too. 

 Exceptions include leases of less than six months and leases of longer than 99 years as 
well as listed buildings. 

 For these purposes we have assumed that all properties valued within the portfolio meet 
the E or higher required rating for letting purposes. 

 Deminimis Levels of Value 

 Only those properties the value of which is considered likely to exceed the “deminimis” 
level of value determined by The Authority are included separately in this valuation. In all 
cases, we have included the valuation within the main body of the report as well as 
summarising them in letter format even if the Authority chooses not to include these within 
their financial statements.  

 

 

Page 151



Somerset West and Taunton Council     

53 

 

The table below shows the values against the latest valuation dates for each group of assets: 

Council 

Dwellings

Other Land 

and Buildings

Vehicles, 

Plant and 

Equipment

Infrastructure 

Assets

Community 

Assets

Surplus 

Assets

Asset Under 

Construction Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Valued at Fair Value 0 0 0 0 0 177 0 177

Valued at Historic Cost 0 0 6,402 12,007 7,876 0 6,925 33,210

Valued at:

31 March 2017 304 180 0 0 0 0 0 484

31 March 2018 0 36,852 0 0 0 0 0 36,852

31 March 2019 32 12,102 0 0 0 0 0 12,134

31 March 2020 296,578 56,121 0 0 0 0 0 352,699

Total Net Book Value 296,914 105,255 6,402 12,007 7,876 177 6,925 435,556

P
age 152



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

54 

16. Investment Property 

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

 

There are no restrictions on the Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or 
on the Council’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The Council has no 
contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or repairs, maintenance or 
enhancement. 

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year: 

 

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Property 

Details of the Council’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy are as 
follows: 

 

 

Significant Unobservable Inputs – Level 2  

The commercial land and buildings located in the Council’s area are measured using the income 
approach, by means of the discounted cash flow method, where the expected cash flows from the 
properties are discounted (using a market-derived discount rate) to establish the present value of the net 
income stream. The approach has been developed using the Council’s own data requiring it to factor in 
assumptions such as the duration and timing of cash inflows and outflows, rent growth, occupancy 
levels, bad debt levels, maintenance costs, etc.  

The Council’s commercial land and buildings are, therefore, categorised as Level 3 in the fair value 
hierarchy as the measurement technique uses significant unobservable inputs to determine the fair 
value measurements (and there is no reasonably available information that indicates that market 
participants would use different assumptions).  

 

2019/20

£000

Rental income from investment property 525

Costs of servicing investment prperties tbc

Total 525

2019/20

£000

Balance at start of the year 20,064

Additions 2,205

Disposals 0

Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments -492

Transfers:

(To)/from Property, Plant & Equipment -15,013

Balance at end of the year 6,764

Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 2) 2019/20

£000

Commercial Buildings 5,376

Commercial Land 1,388

Investment Property 6,764

Page 153



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

55 

Highest and Best Use of Investment Properties  

In estimating the fair value of the Council’s investment properties, the highest and best use of the 
properties is their current use.  

Valuation Techniques  

There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment properties. 

17.  Financial Instruments 

The definition of a financial instrument is: ‘Any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity 
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity’. 

The term ‘financial instrument’ covers both financial assets and financial liabilities. These range from 
straightforward trade receivables and trade payables to more complex transactions such as financial 
guarantees, derivatives and embedded derivatives. The Council’s borrowing, finance leases and 
investment transactions are also classified as financial instruments.  

Financial Liabilities 

A financial liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Council and can be 
represented by a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets or an obligation to exchange 
financial assets and liabilities with another entity that is potentially unfavourable to the Council. 
 
The Council’s non-derivative financial liabilities held during the year are measured at amortised cost and 
comprised: 

 Long-term loans from the Public Works Loan Board and commercial lenders 

 Short-term loans from other local authorities 

 Trade payables for goods and services received 
 
Financial Assets 

A Financial Asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Council that is represented by 
cash, equity instruments or a contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets or a right to 
exchange financial assets and liabilities with another entity that is potentially favourable to the Council. 
The financial assets held by the Council during the year are accounted for under the following 
classifications: 
 
Amortised cost (where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest and the Council’s 
business model is to collect those cash flow) comprising: 

 Cash in hand 

 Bank current and deposit accounts with NatWest Bank 

 Fixed term deposits with banks and building societies 

 Loans made to Somerset CCC, Somerset Waste Partnership and others for service purposes 

 Trade receivables for goods and services delivered 
 

Fair value through profit and loss (all other financial assets) comprising: 

 Money market funds and other collective investment schemes 

 Covered bonds issued by building societies 

 Property funds managed by fund managers 
 

Financial assets held at amortised cost are shown net of a loss allowance reflecting the statistical 
likelihood that the borrower or debtor will be unable to meet their contractual commitments to the 
Council. 
 

Page 154



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

56 

Financial Instruments - Balances 

The financial liabilities disclosed in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the following categories: 
 

 
 
 
The financial assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the following categories: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Financial Liabilities Long Term Short Term

£000 £000

Loans at amortised cost:

   Principal sum borrowed (75,500) (25,500)

   Accrued interest (101) (7)

Total Borrowing (75,601) (25,507)

Liabilities at amortised cost:

   Trade payables 0 (3,683)

Included in Creditors 0 (3,683)

Total Financial Liabilities (75,601) (29,190)

31 March 2020

Financial Assets Long Term Short Term

£000 £000

At amortised cost

   Principal 3                       2,931                 

   Accrued interest 0 3                       

   Loss Allowance 0 0

At fair value through profit & loss

   Fair value 0 2,092                 

Total Investments 3                       5,026                 

At amortised cost

   Principal 0 4,286                 

   Accrued interest 0 4                       

   Loss Allowance 0 0

At fair value through profit & loss

   Fair value 0 24,401               

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 0 28,691               

At amortised cost

   Trade receivables 0 1,245                 

   Loans made for service purposes 6,606                 0

Included in Debtors 6,606                 1,245                 

Total Financial Assets 6,609                 34,962               

31 March 2020

Page 155



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

57 

Soft Loans 

Soft loans are those advanced at below market rates in support of the Council’s service priorities. The 
Council has no material outstanding soft loans and has made no material soft loans in 2019/20. 

 

Financial Instruments - Gains and Losses 

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation 
to financial instruments consist of the following: 

 

 

Financial Instruments – Fair Values 

Financial instruments, except those classified at amortised cost, are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair 
value. For these assets, including bonds, treasury bills and shares in money market funds and other 
pooled funds, the fair value is taken from the market price.  

Financial instruments classified at amortised cost are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost.  
Their fair values have been estimated by calculating the net present value of the remaining contractual 
cash flows at 31st March 2020, using the following methods and assumptions: 

• Loans borrowed by the Council have been valued by discounting the contractual cash flows over the 
whole life of the instrument at the appropriate market rate for local authority loans. 

• The fair values of other long-term loans and investments have been discounted at the market rates for 
similar instruments with similar remaining terms to maturity on 31st March. 

• No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument. 

• The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and receivables, is assumed to 
approximate to the carrying amount given the low and stable interest rate environment. 

Fair values are shown in the table below, split by their level in the fair value hierarchy: 

Financial Total

Liabilities Fair Value

Amortised Amortised through

Cost Cost Profit & Loss

£000 £000 £000 £000

Interest expense 2,486            0 0 2,486               

Losses on derecognition 0 0 0 0

Interest payable and similar charges 2,486            0 0 2,486               

Interest income 0 137                 718                 855                 

Gains from changes in fair value 0 4                     -                  4                     

Interest and investment income 0 141                 718                 859                 

Net impact on surplus/deficit on 

provision of services 2,486            141                 718                 3,345               

Losses on revaluation 0 0 (1,487) (1,487)

Impact on other comprehensive income 0 0 (1,487) (1,487)

Net Gain/(Loss) for the year 2,486            141                 (769) 1,858               

2019/20

Financial Assets

Page 156



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

58 

 Level 1 – fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities, e.g. bond prices 

 Level 2 – fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the 
asset or liability, e.g. interest rates or yields for similar instruments 

 Level 3 – fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market data such as cash flow 
forecasts or estimated creditworthiness 

 

 

* The fair value of short-term financial liabilities held at amortised cost, including trade payables, is 
assumed to approximate to the carrying amount. 

Financial Liabilities Carrying Amount Fair Value

£000 £000

Financial Liabilities held at Amortised Cost

Long Term Loans from PWLB 3 76,063 86,383

LOBO Loan 3 3,038 5,199

Other Short Term Loans 3 22,007 22,007

Total 101,108 113,589

Liabilities for which fair value is not disclosed * 3,683

Total Financial Liabilities 104,791

Recorded on Balance Sheet as:

Short Term Creditors 3,683

Short Term Borrowing 25,507

Long Term Borrowing 75,601

 104,791

31 March 2020

Fair 

Value 

Level

Financial Assets Carrying Amount Fair Value

£000 £000

Financial Assets held at Fair Value

Bond Funds 1 16,632 16,632

Covered Bonds 1 2,092 2,092

Deposit Fund 1 1,000 1,000

Money Market Funds 1 6,769 6,765

Financial Assets held at Amortised Cost

Bank Accounts * 2,393 2,385

Term Deposits * 4,834 4,840

Loans made for Service Purposes 3 6,606 6,606

Total 40,326 40,320

Assets for which fair value is not disclosed * 1,245

Total Financial Assets 41,571

Recorded on Balance Sheet as:

Long Term Investments 3                       

Long Term Debtors 6,606

Short Term Investments 5,026                 

Short Term Debtors 1,245

Cash & Cash Equivalents 28,691               

Total Financial Liabilities 41,571

Fair 

Value 

Level

31 March 2020

Page 157



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

59 

The fair value of financial liabilities held at amortised cost is higher than their balance sheet carrying 
amount because the authority’s portfolio of loans includes a number of loans where the interest rate 
payable is higher than the current rates available for similar loans as at the Balance Sheet date. 

* The fair value of short-term financial assets held at amortised cost, including trade receivables, is 
assumed to approximate to the carrying amount. 

The fair value of financial assets held at amortised cost is higher than their balance sheet carrying 
amount because the authority’s portfolio of loans includes a number of loans where the interest rate 
payable is lower than the current rates available for similar loans as at the Balance Sheet date. 

18.        Assets Held for Sale 

The table below details the balances of Assets Held for Sale at 31 March. For an asset to be classified 
as held for sale it must meet the following criteria:  

 Be available for sale in its present condition 

 The sale must be highly probable and have Member approval 

 The asset must be actively marketed for sale at a  price that is reasonable in relation to its 
current fair value 

 The sale must be expected to be completed within one year of classification (in some 
circumstances if it is expected to take longer than a year to complete but still meets the other 
criteria it may be included as a non-current asset held for sale). 

 
Also included as assets held for sale are Right-To-Buy (RTB) applications where it is highly probable the 
Council Dwelling will be sold through the RTB process. 

Assets Held for Sale are revalued every year at 31 March and are recognised at the lower of carrying 
value and fair value less costs to sell. The maximum amount at which an asset is carried is the amount 
at which it was initially recognised as Held for Sale. All valuations were carried out in accordance with 
standards set out by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).  

 

  

Current

31 March 2020

£000

Balance outstanding at start of the year 1,290

Assets newly classified as held for sale:

    Property, Plant and Equipment 2,732

Assets declassified as held for sale:

    Property, Plant and Equipment 0

    Surplus assets not held for sale 0

    Downward Revaluation (127)

    Assets sold (635)

Balance outstanding at year end 3,260

Page 158



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

60 

19.  Debtors 

The table below details the Council’s debtors at 31 March. Debtors are amounts owed to the Council but 
remain unpaid at 31 March. Included in the figures per classification is an allowance for the impairment 
of the debts. 

Current Debtors:  

 

Long term Debtors: 
 
Long term debtors are debtors that are due in over 12 months. 
 

 
 

 
Debtors for Local Taxation: 
 
The past due but not impaired amount for local taxation (council tax and non-domestic rates) can be 
analysed by age as follows: 

 

 
  

31 March 2020

£000

Trade receivables 1,245

Prepayments 402

Other receivable amounts 11,877

Total 13,524

31 March 2020

£000

Sundry Mortgages 183

Car/Bike Loans to Employees 3

Somerset CCC Loan 675

Somerset Waste Partnership Loan 4,901

COACH Loan 33

Hestercombe Loan 79

YMCA Loan 716

Sundry Debtors 50

Expected Credit Losses (34)

Total 6,606

31 March 2020

£000

Less than one year 1,140

One to two years 504

Two to three years 323

More than three years 874

Total 2,841

Page 159



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

61 

20. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The table below shows how the balance of cash and cash equivalents held by the Council at 31 March is 
made up. Cash and cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into 
known amounts of cash. The details of what is included in as cash and cash equivalents is detailed in 
(iii) of Accounting Policies. 

 

21. Creditors 

The table below details the Council’s creditors at 31 March. Creditors are amounts owed by the Council 
at 31 March in respect of goods and services received before the end of the financial year.  

 

 

Long Term Creditors 

 

 

22. Provisions 

 

31 March 2020

£000

Cash held by the Council 53

Bank current accounts 537

Call Accounts 1,800

Bond Funds 16,632

Deposit Funds 1,000

Debt Management Office 1,906

Money Market Fund 6,769

Unpresented Cheques / BACS (6)

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 28,691

31 March 2020

£000

Trade payables (3,683)

Other payables (24,662)

Total (28,345)

31 March 2020

£000

Capital Grants Receipts in Advance (244)

Total (244)

NNDR Appeals Other Provisions Total

£000 £000 £000

Balance at start of year 2,805 713 3,518

Additional provisions made in year 281 281

Amounts used in year (223) (693) (916)

Unused amounts reversed in year (1,938) (1,938)

Balance at year-end 925 20 945

31 March 2020

Page 160



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

62 

 

Business Rates Appeals 

The Local Government Finance Act 2012 introduced changes to the accounting arrangements for 
Business Rates. These changes require the Council to put in a provision for appeals for refunding 
ratepayers who have appealed against the rateable value of their properties on the rating list. The 
Council has to put in its best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation which 
totals £2.104m in respect of the Business Rates Collection Fund. There has not been any significant 
increase in the number of appeals during 2019/20 but the Council continues to take a prudent approach 
to evaluating the risk. 

Other Provisions 

The balance of £20k is in respect of the Deposit Protection Scheme run by the Council to enable tenants 
to obtain private sector rented accommodation. 

 

23. Usable Reserves 

The table below details the Council’s usable reserves which can be applied to fund expenditure or 
reduce local taxation. Further detail can be found with the Movement in Reserves Statement on page 
18. 

 

24. Unusable Reserves 

The table below details the Council’s unusable reserves. These are reserves that cannot be applied to 
fund expenditure or reduce local taxation – they are not usable resources. 

 

 

 

31 March 2020

£000

General Fund Balance 4,523

General Fund Earmarked Reserves 20,586

Housing Revenue Account Balance 2,700

Housing Revenue Account Earmarked Reserves 1,648

Capital Receipts Reserve 17,782

Major Repairs Reserve 3,708

Capital Grants Unapplied Account 9,583

Total Usable Reserves 60,530

2019/20

£000

Revaluation Reserve 125,398

Capital Adjustment Account 183,433

Pensions Reserve -111,912

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 1,959

Accumulated Absences Account -82

Available-for-sale Financial Instruments Reserve -1,490

Total Unusable Reserves 197,306

Page 161



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

63 

Revaluation Reserve 

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of 
its Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 

 Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost 

 Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation 

 Disposed of and the gains are realised. 
 
The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, this is the date which the 
reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before this date are consolidated into the balance on 
the Capital Adjustment Account. 

The table below shows the transactions that have gone through the revaluation reserve: 

 

 

Capital Adjustment Account 

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements 
for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction 
or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of 
acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The account is credited with 
amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the cost of acquisition, construction and subsequent 
costs.  

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on 
donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Council. 

The Account also contains revaluation gains and losses on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 
2007 - the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.  

Note 8 – Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations, provides details 
of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving the Revaluation 
Reserve. 

2019/20

£000

Balance as at 1 April 119,129

Upward revaluation of assets 14,693

Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged to the 

Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services -7,988

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not posted to the 

Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 6,705

Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation -403

Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped -33

Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account -436

Balance as at 31 March 125,398

Page 162



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

64 

 

 

Pensions Reserve 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory 
provisions. The Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the 
liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns in any resources 
set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as 
the Council makes employer’s contributions to the pension fund or eventually pays any pensions for 
which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a 
substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Council 
has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that the funding will have been set 
aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.  

 

 

 

Balance as at 1 April 194,761

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Charges for Depreciation and impairment of non current assets -9,936

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment -10,510

Amortisation of intangible assets -269

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute -5,034

Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the 

gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement

-3,958

-29,707

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 436

Net written out amount of the cost of non current assets consumed in 

the year

-29,271

Capital financing applied in the year:

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 2,581

Use of Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 5,899

Capital grants and contributions credited to Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing
2,713

Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants Unapplied 

Account
403

Direct Revenue Financing 0

Capital Grant Applied

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against 

the General Fund and HRA balances
2,610

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA balances 2,232

16,438

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
1,839

Deferred Debtors repaid -334

Balance as at 31 March 183,433

2019/20

£000

Page 163



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

65 

 

Transactions in the pension reserve are as shown in the table below: 

 

 

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of 
Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
as it falls due from Council Tax payers and business ratepayers compared with the statutory 
arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund. 

The balance shown on the Collection Fund Adjustment Account represents the Council’s share of the 
Collection Fund surplus or deficit.  

 

  

2019/20

£000

Balance as at 1 April (105,732)

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/(assets) 664

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement (12,112)

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners 

payable in the year 5,268

Balance as at 31 March (111,912)

Council Tax Business Rates Total

£000 £000 £000

Balance as at 1 April 215 777 992

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic 

rates income credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and expenditure Statement is different 

from council tax and non-domestic rates income 

calculated for the year in accordance with 

statutory requirements

(218) 1,185 967

Balance as at 31 March
(3) 1,962 1,959

2019/20

Page 164



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

66 

Accumulated Absences Account 

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise in the General 
Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year e.g. annual 
leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the 
General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.  

 
 
 
Available for Sale Financial Instrument Reserve 
 

 
 
  

£000 £000

Balance as at 1st April (356)

Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding 

year 356

Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (82)

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement  on an accruals basis is different from 

remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements. 274

Balance as at 31st March (82)

2019/20

2019/20

£000

Balance as at 1st April 0

Balance transferred to General Fund on adoption of IFRS 9

Downward revaluation of investments not charged to the 

Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services (1,490)

Balance as at 31st March (1,490)

Page 165



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

67 

 

25. Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities 

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:  

 

The surplus/deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following non-cash 
movements: 

 

 

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following items that are 
investing and financing activities: (Note 25):  

 

  

2019/20

£000

Interest received 785

Interest paid (2,483)

(1,698)

2019/20

£000

Depreciation 9,936

Impairment and downward valuations 8,116

Amortisation 81

Movement in fair value of investment property (1,839)

Increase/(decrease) in impairment for bad debts 521

(Decrease)/increase in creditors (2,432)

(Increase)/decrease in debtors (4,841)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (16)

Movement in pension liability 6,844

(Decrease)/Increase in Capital RIA (326)

Carrying amount of non-current assets sold or derecognised 3,958

Increase/(decrease) in provisions (2,573)

Other Adjustments

17,429

2019/20

£000

Proceeds from the sale of property plant and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets
(5,562)

(5,562)

Page 166



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

68 

26. Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities 

 

27. Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities 

 
 
 
 Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising From Financing Activities  

 

 
 

 
28. Members’ Allowances 

The table below shows the amounts payable to Members of the Council as allowances and expenses 
during the year. More details of what was paid to our Members is available on our website: 
www.somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk 

 
 
 

2019/20

£000

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and 

intangible assets
(27,414)

Purchase of short-term & long-term investments (22,128)

Other payments for investing activities 0

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets
5,562

Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 36,302

Other receipts from investing activities 0

Net cash flows from investing activities (7,678)

2019/20

£000

Cash receipts of short-term and long-term borrowing 22,000

Repayment of short-term and long-term borrowing (13,500)

Net cash flows from financing activities
8,500

2019/20

£000

As at 1 April

Long Term Borrowings 79,000

Short Term Borrowings 13,500

92,500

Financing Cash Flows

As at 31 March 92,500

Long Term Borrowings 75,500

Short Term Borrowings 25,500

Total 101,000

2019/20

£000

Allowances 399

Expenses 24

Allowances paid in the year 423

Page 167

http://www.somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk/


Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

69 

29. Officers’ Remuneration 

 
The remuneration of those senior officers on the payroll of Somerset West and Taunton Council were as 
follows: 
 
 

 
 

 
The table below shows the number of other employees, (excluding the senior employees in the table 
above) whose remuneration, (excluding employer’s pension contributions) was £50,000 or more for the 
year in bands of £5,000 were: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Post holder information (Post 

Title)

S
a
la

ry
, 
F

e
e
s
 a

n
d

 

A
ll
o

w
a
n

c
e
s

C
o

m
p

e
n

s
a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 

L
o

s
s
 o

f 
O

ff
ic

e

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s
 

A
ll
o

w
a
n

c
e
s

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

P
e
n

s
io

n
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

A
n

n
u

a
li
s
e
d

 S
a
la

ry
 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Chief Executive 2019/20 117,300 0 0 117,300 18,064 135,364 117,300

Deputy Chief Executive and 

Director of Operations
2019/20 46,008 97,827 0 143,835 7,405 151,240 92,016

Director for Housing & 

Communities
2019/20 91,069 0 310 91,379 14,025 105,403 91,069

Head of Communications & 

Engagement
2019/20 85,982 0 0 85,982 0 85,982 81,600

Head of Localities 2019/20 66,116 0 0 66,116 10,182 76,298 86,603

Head of Customer 2019/20 78,030 0 310 78,340 12,017 90,357 78,030

Head of Strategy 2019/20 78,030 0 315 78,345 12,017 90,362 78,030

Head of Performance & 

Governance
2019/20 64,929 0 0 64,929 9,999 74,928 81,600

Assistant Director & S151 

Officer
2019/20 70,155 0 1,851 72,006 10,804 82,810 70,155

2019/20

Number of 

employees

Total

£50,000 - £54,999 19

£55,000 - £59,999 3

£60,000 - £64,999 1

£65,000 - £69,999 1

Remuneration Band

Page 168



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

70 

30. Termination Benefits 

The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other 
redundancies are set out in the table below: 

 

 

31. External Audit Costs 

The Council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Number of Other 

Departures 

Agreed

Number of 

Compulsory 

Redundancies

Total Number of 

Exit Packages 

By Cost Band

Total Cost of 

Exit Packages In 

Each Band (£)

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

£000

£0 - £20,000 10 0 10 127,461

£20,001-£40,000 3 0 3 89,388

£60,001-£80,000 1 0 1 67,500

Total included in the CIES 14 0 14 284,349

Exit Package Cost Band 

(including special payments)

2019/20

£000

Fees payable to external auditors with regards to external audit services 

carried out by the appointed auditor for the year

61

Fees paid to external auditors for the certification of grant claims and 

returns for the year

41

Total 102

Page 169



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

71 

32. Grant Income 

The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement in 2019/20: 

 

33. Related Parties 

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that 
have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. 
Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have 
been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another 
party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council. 

UK Central Government 

UK Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council – it is 
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides the 
majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the 
Council has with other parties (e.g. Council Tax bills, housing benefits). Grant income is shown in Note 
30. 
 
Transactions to and from the Pension Fund are detailed in Note 34.  
 
Members 

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. The total 
of Members’ allowances paid in 2019/20 is shown in Note 26.  

During 2019/20, works and services to the value of £18,218 were commissioned from an organisation in 
which one Member had an interest. Contracts were entered into in full compliance with the Council’s 
standing orders. In addition, the Council paid grants totalling £294,253 to voluntary organisations in 
which five Members held positions of trustees within the various organisations. In all instances, the 
grants were made with proper consideration of declarations of interest. Details of all these interests are 
recorded in the Register of Members Interests, open to public inspection at the Council office during 
office hours. 

2019/20

£000

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

Revenue Support Grant 0

New Homes Bonus (3,809)

Other Non Specific Government Grants 0

Capital Grants (7,139)

Total (10,948)

Credited to Services

Rent Allowances (20,949)

Rent Rebates (9,180)

Housing Benefit Admin (371)

Other Grants and Contributions (4,479)

Total (34,979)

(45,927)

Page 170



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

72 

The Council also purchased a private property owned by a Councillor as part of acquiring additional 
Housing Revenue Account dwellings for social rent, in order to increase the Council’s stock of affordable 
housing. 
 
Officers 

During 2019/20 works and services to the value of £31,263 were commissioned from an organisation in 
which one senior officer held a position. Contracts were entered into in full compliance with the Council’s 
standing orders. 
 
The Council is a member of South West Audit Partnership Limited, a company limited by guarantee 
which provides internal audit services to its twenty four members (including this Council). During the 
year the Governance Manager replaced the Head of Performance and Governance as a Director of 
South West Audit Partnership Limited. 
 

34. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with 
the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future 
years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in 
the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) which is a measure of the capital expenditure incurred 
historically by the Council that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of the 
note. 

 

 

2019/20

£000

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 123,483

Capital investment

Property, Plant and Equipment 23,647

Loans made for service provision 4,125

Intangible Assets 188

Investment Properties 3,149

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 5,033

36,142

Sources of finance

Capital receipts (2,579)

Government Grants and Other Contributions (4,368)

Major Repairs Allowance (5,898)

Sums set aside from revenue

Direct revenue contributions (2,234)

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP / VRP) (2,610)

(17,689)

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 141,936

Explanation of movements in the Capital Financing Requirement in year:

Increase / (Decrease) in underlying need to borrowing (unsupported by 

Government financial assistance) 18,453

Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 18,453

Page 171



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

73 

35. Leases 

The Council has leased a number of vehicles for its own use (lessee) and, as lessor, has leased some of 
its own property to third-party users. IAS17 Leases (the relevant International Accounting Standard) sets 
out a range of factors to decide whether a lease is an operating lease or a finance lease. The factors are 
simple in principle but can be complex in practice; in summary, a lease is classified as a finance lease if 
it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership while a lease is classified as an 
operating lease simply if it is not a finance lease. 

The accounting treatment is quite different. Finance leases are in effect a way of transferring ownership, 
assets leased under finance leases are shown in the Council’s balance sheet as assets, and the cost of 
the lease is shown as a liability. Operating leases are in effect a way of obtaining the use of an asset, so 
the lease costs are charged directly to services and the asset is not shown in the balance sheet. 

Council as Lessor 

Operating Leases 

As part of its work to support local communities, the Council has granted leases in respect of a number 
of its properties (principally commercial premises and business units) which are treated as operating 
leases.  

Due to the nature of leases granted by the Council, and in particular its aim of tackling community 
deprivation and sustainable community deprivation mixed with its commercial awareness, the gross 
investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments that will be received over the following periods 
are subject to significant and sometimes unpredictable variables such as property values at rent-review 
intervals and the subsequent change in lease payments. For example, particularly in the current 
economic climate, it is in practice impossible to reliably predict how long a new or renewing leaseholder 
may be prepared to commit to. The figures in the table below are therefore a reasoned estimate 
assuming that annual lease income remains constant. 

 

 

The minimum lease payments above do not include rents that are contingent on events taking place 
after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews. Due to the inherent 
variability of rental income in the medium to long term, the information in this note has been closed-off at 
ten years. This will be reviewed in future years if less volatile information becomes available. 

 

Council as Lessee 

 

2019/20

£000

Not later than one year 49

Later than one year and not later than five years 62

Later than five years and not later than ten years 0

Total payments due in future years 111

2019/20

£000

Not later than one year (525)

Later than one year and not later than five years (1,929)

Later than five years and not later than ten years (2,066)

Total payments due in future years (4,520)

Page 172



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

74 

36. Defined Benefit Pensions Schemes 

Participation in Pension Schemes 

As part of the terms and conditions of the employment of its officers, the Council makes contributions 
towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until 
employees retire the Council has a commitment to make the payments that need to be disclosed at the 
time that the employees earn their future entitlement.  

The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administered locally by 
Peninsula Pensions on behalf of the Somerset Pension Fund. This is a funded scheme, meaning that 
the Council and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the 
pension liabilities with the investment assets. 

The LGPS is a defined benefit statutory scheme administered in accordance with the Local Government 
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 and is contracted out of the State Second Pension Scheme and 
currently provides benefits based on career average revalued salary and length of service on retirement, 
with various protections in place for those members in the scheme before the changes took place. 

The Somerset Pension Fund is operated under the regulatory framework of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme and the governance of the Scheme is the responsibility of the Pensions Committee of 
Somerset County Council. Policy is determined in accordance with the Pension Fund Regulations. 

The principal risks to the Council of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the 
scheme (i.e. largescale withdrawals from the scheme, changes to inflation, bond yields and the 
performance of the equity investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by 
the statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) the 
amounts required by statute described in the accounting policies note. 

Transactions relating to post-employment benefits 
 
The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are 
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the 
charge we are required to make against Council Tax is based on cash payable in the year, so the real 
cost of post-employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund and the HRA via the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions shown in the table have been made in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund / HRA Balance via the 
Movement in Reserves Statement during the year: 

Page 173



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

75 

 

 

Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Authority’s obligation in respect of its defined 
benefit plans is as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2019/20

£000

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES)

Cost of Services

    Current service cost 9,479

    Administration expenses 92

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:

    Net interest expense 2,541

Total Post Employment Benefits charged to the Surplus on the Provision of 

Services 12,112

Remeasurement of the net defined liability comprising:

    Return on assets (excluding the amount included in the net interest expense) 10,477

    Other Actuarial gains and losses on assets 414

    Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions (18,465)

    Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in demographic assumptions 1,611

    Experience gain and loss on defined benefit obligation 5,299

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Income and Expenditure 

Statement (664)

Movement in Reserves Statement 

Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for the Provision of 

Services for post employment benefits in accordance with the Code (12,112)

Actual amount charged against the General Fund balance for pensions in 

the year:

    Employers contributions payable to scheme 5,268

2019/20

£000

Present value of the defined obligation (225,076)

Fair value of plan assets 116,540

Sub-total (108,536)

Present value of unfunded obligation (3,376)

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (111,912)

Local Government Pension Scheme

Page 174



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

76 

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation): 

 

 

Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2019/20

£000

Opening balances as at 1 April (233,266)

Current service cost (5,599)

Interest cost (5,566)

Contributions from scheme participants (1,034)

Remeasurement (gains) and losses

Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions (1,611)

Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 18,465

Experience loss n defined benefit obligation (5,299)

Past service cost (3,880)

Benefits paid 9,112

Past service costs

Entity combinations

Unfunded Pension Payments 226

Closing balance as at 31 March (228,452)

Funded liabilities: Local Government Pension Scheme

2019/20

£000

Opening fair value of scheme assets 127,534

Interest income 3,025

Remeasurement (gain/loss):

The return on plan assets, excluding the amount in the net interest 

expense (10,477)

Actuarial gains and losses (414)

Contributions from employers 5,268

Contributions from scheme participants into the scheme 1,034

Benefits paid (9,338)

Administration expenses (92)

Closing balance as at 31st March 116,540

Local Government Pension Scheme

Page 175



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

77 

Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised: 

 

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate 
of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependant on assumptions about mortality rates, 
salary levels etc. The Local Government Pension Scheme has been assessed by Barnett Waddingham, 
an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Council Fund being based on the latest full valuation 
of the scheme as at 31 March 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2019/20

£000

Equities 78,603

Gilts 7,638

Other bonds 11,679

Property 11,050

Cash 7,570

Total 116,540

Fair Value of Scheme Assets

Local Government Pension Scheme 2019/20

Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme:

Mortality assumptions:

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners

 - Men 23.3

 - Women 24.7

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners

 - Men 24.7

 - Women 26.2

Rate of inflation - CPI 1.90%

Rate of increase in salaries 2.50%

Rate of increase in pensions 1.90%

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.35%

Page 176



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

78 

Sensitivity Analysis: 

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the 
table above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible 
changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change 
that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The 
assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and 
women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be 
interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the 
scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of 
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the 
previous period. 

Sensitivity Analysis £000 £000 £000 
          

          

Adjustment to discount rate +0.1% 0  -0.1% 

  Present Value of total obligation 224,051  228,452  232,944  

  Projected service cost 4,958  5,101  5,248  
          

Adjustment to long term salary increase +0.1% 0  -0.1% 

  Present Value of total obligation 228,752  228,452  228,156  

  Projected service cost 5,103  5,101  5,099  
          
Adjustment to pension increases and deferred 
revaluation +0.1% 0  -0.1% 

  Present Value of total obligation 232,660  228,452  224,324  

 Projected service cost 5,246  5,101  4,960  

      

Adjustment to life expectancy assumptions +0.1% 0  -0.1% 

 Present Value of total obligation 238,466  228,452  218,884  

 Projected service cost 5,258  5,101  4,948  

 

Impact on the Council’s Cash Flows 

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long run to pay post-
employment (retirement) benefits. The total liability of £89.484m has a substantial impact on the net 
worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet. However, statutory arrangements for funding the 
deficit mean that the financial position of the Council remains healthy. 

The deficit on the Local Government scheme will be made good by increased contributions over the 
remaining working life of employees (i.e. before payments fall due), as assessed by the scheme actuary. 

The total of contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the Council 
in the year to 31 March 2021 is £4.695m. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 177



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

79 

37. Contingent Liabilities 

Business Rates payable by hospitals 

Along with other local authorities we have received claims from a local trust hospital to receive 
mandatory charitable relief (under Section 47 of the LGFA 1988) in relation to their Business Rates bills, 
including backdating the relief to 2012. If these claims are successful this would result in an 80% 
mandatory award being applied per application. Currently Trusts or Foundation Trusts are not 
considered charitable organisations but rather public funded organisations with boards of directors and 
not trustees.  

The original judgement for the case found the claim was not successful, however the claimant has been 
granted leave to appeal. The matter therefore continues to be subject of a legal process nationally, and 
local government stand by the stance that relief is not applicable. We have therefore not provided for 
any settlement in our accounts.  

SWTC General Fund would be liable for a proportion of any refund under the Business Rates Retention 
(BRR) system, with the actual loss of funding value dependent on the rules of the BRR system and the 
whole total of business rates income reported in the financial year that the matter is concluded. Due to 
uncertainty it is not possible to provide a reliable estimate of this loss. 

 

38. Contingent Assets 

Hinkley Point C  
 
There are two s106 agreements in place, one in relation to the site preparation works planning 
permission granted by West Somerset Council in January 2012 and the other in relation to the 
development consent order granted by the Secretary of State in March 2013. Thus far, all contributions 
have been paid on time and in full. A total of £0.146m is due in June 2020.  
 
The income which is due to be paid to West Somerset is largely triggered by ‘transition’ or anniversaries 
of ‘transition’. The transition from the site preparation works planning permission to the development 
consent order took place in June 2016. 
 
The Council will receive a minimum of £4.744m (maximum £5.432m) in total from the s106 relating to 
the development consent order. The payments are due over a number of years with the last one due in 
2023. 

  
 
39. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising From Financial Instruments 

The Council has adopted CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management (and subsequent 
amendments) and complies with The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (both 
revised in December 2017). 

As part of the adoption of the Treasury Management Code, the Council approves a Treasury 
Management Strategy before the commencement of each financial year. The Strategy sets out the 
parameters for the management of risks associated with Financial Instruments. The Council also 
produces Treasury Management Practices specifying the practical arrangements to be followed to 
manage these risks. 

The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Annual Investment Strategy in compliance with the 
Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government Guidance for Local Authorities. This guidance 
emphasises that priority is to be given to security and liquidity, rather than yield. The Council’s Treasury 

Page 178



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

80 

Management Strategy, together with its Treasury Management Practices, are based on seeking the 
highest rate of return consistent with the proper levels of security and liquidity. 

The Council’s treasury management activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including: 

 Credit Risk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council. 

 Liquidity Risk - the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its 
commitments to make payments. 

 Market Risk - the possibility that financial loss may arise for the Council as a result of changes in 
such measures as interest rates and stock market movements. 

Credit Risk: Treasury Investments 

The Council manages credit risk by ensuring that investments are placed with organisations of high 
credit quality as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy. These include commercial entities with a 
minimum long-term credit rating of A-, and other local authorities without credit ratings. Recognising that 
credit ratings are imperfect predicators of default, the Council has regard to other measures including 
credit default swap and equity prices when selecting commercial organisations for investment. 

A limit of up to £9.0m is placed on the amount of money that can be invested with a single counterparty. 
The Council also sets a total group investment limit for institutions that are part of the same banking 
group. No more than £40.0m in total can be invested for a period of longer than a year. 

The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building 
societies of £9.0m cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest 
payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has 
shown it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies 
to all of the Council’s deposits, but there was no evidence at the 31 March 2020 that this was likely to 
crystallise.  

The Council does not hold collateral against any investments.  

 

Credit Risk Exposure 

The table below summarises the credit risk exposures of the Council’s treasury investment portfolio by 
credit rating and remaining time to maturity:  

 

Loss allowances on treasury investments have been calculated by reference to historic default data 
published by credit rating agencies, multiplied by 150% to adjust for current and forecast economic 
conditions. A two-year delay in cash flows is assumed to arise in the event of default. Investments are 
determined to have suffered a significant increase in credit risk where they have been downgraded by 
three or more credit rating notches or equivalent since initial recognition, unless they retain an 
investment grade credit rating. They are determined to be credit-impaired when awarded a “D” credit 
rating or equivalent. At 31st March 2020, £0.001m of loss allowances related to treasury investments. 

Credit Rating Long Term Short Term

£000 £000

AAA 0 26,366

AA 0 4,834

A 0 1,800

Total 0 33,000

2019/20

Page 179



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

81 

Trade Receivables 

During 2019/20 the Council continued to carefully review historic debtor balances and has written off old 
irrecoverable debts. The Council has a policy of exploring cost effective ways to ensure debts are fully 
recovered and thus minimise exposure to credit risk. 

The following analysis summarises the Council’s trade and lease receivables, by due date. Only those 
receivables meeting the definition of a financial asset are included. 

 

Credit Risk: Loans 

In furtherance of the Council’s service objectives, it has lent money to local organisations at market 
rates. The amount recognised on the balance sheet is £6.455m and the Council’s total exposure to 
credit risk from these instruments is £7.658m.  

The Council manages the credit risk inherent in its loans for service purposes in line with its published 
Investment Strategy.  

Loss allowances on loans for service purposes total £0.034m and have been calculated by reference to 
12-month expected credit losses as there is no experience of default on such loans. 

Liquidity Risk 

The Council has ready access to borrowing at favourable rates from the Public Works Loans Board and 
other local authorities, and at higher rates from banks and building societies. There is no perceived risk 
that the Council will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments. It is however exposed to the 
risk that it will need to refinance a significant proportion of its borrowing at a time of unfavourably high 
interest rates. The risk is managed by maintaining a spread of fixed rate loans. 

The maturity analysis of the principal sums borrowed is as follows: 

 

31 March 2020 

Trade Debtors

£000

Past due less than 3 months 1,168

Past due over 3 months up to 12 months 232

Past due over 12 months up to 24 months 208

Past due over 24 months 129

1,737

Credit Rating Long Term Short Term

£000 £000

Loans by Type

Public Works Loan Board 72,500               3,500                 

Other Financial Institutions 3,000                 0

Other Local Authorities 0 22,000               

75,500 25,500

Loans by Maturity

Less than 1 year 0 25,500               

Over 1 but not over 2 years 10,000               0

Over 2 but not over 5 years 18,000               0

Over 5 but not over 10 years 40,500               0

Over 10 but not over 15 years 0 0

More than 20 years 7,000                 0

75,500 25,500

2019/20

Page 180



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

82 

Market Risks: 

Interest Rate Risk 
 

The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and 
investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Council. For instance, a rise in 
interest rates would have the following effects: 

 Borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense will rise 

 Borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall 

 Investments at variable rates – the interest income credited will rise 

 Investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall 

Investments classed as “loans and receivables” and loans borrowed are not carried at fair value, so 
changes in their fair value will have no impact on Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, 
changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted 
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate 
investments classed as “available for sale” will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure.  

The Treasury Management Strategy aims to mitigate these risks by setting upper limits on its net 
exposures to fixed and variable interest rates.  

 

If all interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would 
be: 

 

 

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being 
reversed. 

Price Risk 

The Council does not generally invest in equity shares and is therefore not subject to equity price risk. 

Foreign Exchange Risk 

The Authority has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, thus has no 
exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates. 

 

£000

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings 50

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments 261

Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 311

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings (5,399)

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investment assets (18)

Page 181



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

83 

Housing (HRA) Income and Expenditure Account 
 
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Income and Expenditure Statement shows the economic cost in 
year of providing housing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather 
than the amount to be funded from rents and government grants. Authorities charge rents to cover 
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The increase 
or decrease in the year, on the basis of which rents are raised, is shown in the Movement of the HRA 
Statement. 

 
 

£000 £000

Income

Dwelling Rents (24,050)

Non Dwelling Rents (672)

Charges for Services/Facilities (1,591)

Contributions Towards Expenditure (424)

(26,737)

Expenditure

Repairs and Maintenance 3,102

Supervision and Management 11,647

Rents, Rates, Taxes and Other Charges 315

Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed Assets 7,133

Movement in the Allowance for Bad Debts 333

22,530

Net Income of HRA Services as included in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement (4,207)

HRA Service Share of Corporate and Democratic Core 229

Net (Income)/Expenditure of HRA Services (3,978)

HRA Share of Operating and Expenditure included in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Pension Administration Costs 28

(Gain) or Loss on Sale of HRA Fixed Assets (1,635)

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,624

Interest and Investment Income 0

Pension Interest Cost 788

Capital grants and contributions 382

(Surplus)/Deficit for the year on HRA Services (1,791)

2019/20

Page 182



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

84 

Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Housing Revenue Account Notes  
 
A Housing Stock 

The Council was responsible for managing 5,744 dwellings during 2019/20. The stock at 31 March was 
made up as follows: 

 

£000 £000

Balance on the HRA at the end of the previous year 2,718

Surplus or the year on the HRA Income and Expenditure Account 1,791

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding under Statute (see 

analysis in Notes to the Supplementary Statements) (2,879)

Net Increase or (Decrease) before transfers to or from Reserves (1,088)

Transfers (to) or from Reserves 1,070

Increase or (Decrease) in the Year on the HRA (18)

Balance on the HRA at the end of the current year 2,700

2019/20

2019/20

£000

Houses 2,833

Bungalows 847

Flats and Maisonettes 2,061

5,741

Shared Equity 3

5,744

Page 183



Somerset West and Taunton Council     

85 

B Value of Assets 

The balance sheet value of HRA assets at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020 is shown below. 

Movement in

Council 

Dwellings

Other Land 

and 

Buildings

Vehicles, 

Plant and 

Equipment

Infra-

structure 

Assets

Total Property, 

Plant and 

Equipment

Assets Held 

For Sale

Intangible 

Assets Total

2019/20 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2019 286,386 8,810 333 1,987 297,516 635 776 298,927

Additions 16,625 16,625 16,625

Revaluation increases / (decreases) 

recognised in the Revaluation Reserve (132) (36) (168) (168)

Revaluation increases / (decreases) 

recognised in the Surplus/deficit on the 

Provision of Services (3) (3) (3)

Derecognition - Disposals (3,233) (3,233) (635) (3,868)

Derecognition - Other 0 0

Reclassified within Property, Plant and 

Equipment 0 0

Reclassified (to)/from Held From Sale (2,732) (2,732) 2,732 0

At 31 March 2020 296,914 8,771 333 1,987 308,005 2,732 776 311,513

Accumulated Depreciation and 

Impairment

At 1 April 2019 0 0 (183) (563) (746) 0 (752) (1,498)

Depreciation charge (6,805) (90) (43) (79) (7,017) (5) (7,022)

Depreciation written out to the 

Revaluation Reserve 6,805 1 6,806 6,806

Depreciation written out to the Surplus / 

Deficit on the Provision of Services

0 0

At 31 March 2020 0 (89) (226) (642) (957) 0 (757) (1,714)

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2020 296,914 8,682 107 1,345 307,048 2,732 19 309,799

P
age 184



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

86 

C Value of Dwellings at 31 March 2020 
 
The open market value of dwellings within the HRA at 31 March 2020 is £848.327m compared with the 
balance sheet value of £296.914m. The difference of £551.413m represents the economic cost to the 
Government of providing Council housing at less than open market rents. 

D Rent Arrears 
 
Rent arrears as at the end of the financial year were as follows: 

 

E Rent Rebates 

Assistance with rents is available under the Housing Benefits scheme for tenants on low incomes.  The 
rent shown in the HRA is the gross rent before rent rebates are granted. 

F Gross Rent Income 
 
This is the total rent income due for the year after allowing for voids. During the year 1.77% (1.77% in 
2018/19) of available properties were vacant. Average weekly rents were £80.87, a decrease of £0.82   
(-1.00%) over the previous year. 

G Major Repairs Reserve 
 
The Council is required to maintain a Major Repairs Reserve.  The account is credited with depreciation 
and is used to finance HRA capital expenditure. The depreciation charge for council dwellings is funded 
by the major repairs allowance, which is included within the HRA subsidy, and reflects the cost of 
keeping the stock in its current condition.  

 
 
 
 

  

31 March 2020

£000

Rent Arrears 770

Provision for Bad Debts (483)

Anticipated Collectable Arrears 287

Arrears as % of Gross Rent Income 1.08%

2019/20

£000

Balance as at 1 April 2,711

Transfer from Revenue to Major Repairs Reserve 6,894

Financing of HRA Capital Expenditure (5,898)

Balance as at 31 March 3,707

Page 185



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

87 

H Total Capital Expenditure and Receipts 
 

 
 
 
The table below shows the amount of capital receipts received by the HRA: 
 

 
 
I Pension Scheme 

Following advice issued by CIPFA regarding Accounting for Defined Benefit Retirement Benefits in the 
HRA, Somerset West and Taunton Council has concluded that neither ring-fencing nor resource 
accounting in the HRA require the HRA to be treated differently from other services on the grounds of 
proper practice. There is therefore an amount of £102,610 included within management expenditure, 
which reflects the current service costs of the Pension Scheme, in accordance with IAS 19. These costs 
are currently notional and do not represent real cash outflows. Within the Housing Revenue Account 
these costs are negated by a contribution from the pension reserve.   

  

2019/20

£000

HRA Capital Expenditure

Dwellings 16,007

Intangible Assets 62

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 0

Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute 0

16,069

Financed By

Capital Receipts 2,456

Government Grants and Contributions 0

Contribution from Revenue 940

Major Repairs Reserve 5,898

Borrowing 6,775

16,069

2019/20

£000

Dwellings 4,323

Administrative Cost of Sales (59)

4,264

Page 186



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

88 

J    Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Statute 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the surplus/deficit for the year recognised by the 
Council on the HRA Statement in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are 
specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue 
expenditure.  

 

 

 
 

 

2019/20

£000

Difference between any other item of income and expenditure determined in 

accordance with the Code and determined in accordance with statute 25

Reversal of (gain) or loss on sale of HRA non-current assets (1,635)

Capital expenditure charged against revenue (2,427)

HRA share of contributions to or from the Pensions Reserve 919

Transfer to/(from) the Major Repairs Reserve (6,894)

Transfer to/(from) the Capital Adjustment Account 7,133

Balance on the HRA at the end of the current year (2,879)

Page 187



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

89 

Collection Fund 
 
The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to 
maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in 
relation to the collection fund from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and the Government of 
Council Tax and Business Rates.  

 

Business Council Total

Rates Tax

£000 £000 £000

Income

Council Tax Receivable 0 (98,577) (98,577)

Business Rates Receivable (58,898) 0 (58,898)

Transitional Protection Payments 274 0 274

Apportionment of Previous Year's Surplus/(Deficit)

Central Government 1,665 0 1,665

Somerset County Council 300 746 1,046

Police and Crime Commissioner for Avon and 

Somerset 0 121 121

Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority 33 53 86

Somerset West and Taunton Council 1,332 116 1,448

Total Income (55,294) (97,541) (152,835)

Expenditure

Demands and Shares

Central Government 14,260 0 14,260

Somerset County Council 17,112 70,197 87,309

Police and Crime Commissioner for Avon and 

Somerset 0 12,333 12,333

Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority 570 4,899 5,469

Somerset West and Taunton Council 25,098 9,039 34,137

Parish / Town Councils 0 2,118 2,118

Costs of Collection 250 0 250

Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for Appeals (4,911) 0 (4,911)

Increase/(Decrease) in Allowance for Impairment of 

Bad and Doubtful Debts 318 976 1,294

Interest on Refunds 6 0 6

Disregarded Amounts 205 0 205

52,908 99,562 152,470

(Surplus)/Deficit for the year (2,386) 2,021 (365)

(Surplus)/Deficit Balance Brought Forward (1,952) (1,983) (3,935)

(Surplus)/Deficit Balance Carried Forward (4,338) 38 (4,300)

Attributable to:

Central Government (740) 0 (740)

Somerset County Council (1,591) 28 (1,563)

Police and Crime Commissioner for Avon and 

Somerset 0 5 5

Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority (43) 2 (41)

Somerset West and Taunton Council (1,964) 3 (1,961)

(4,338) 38 (4,300)

2019/20

Page 188



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

90 

Collection Fund Notes  
 
Council Tax 

The Council’s tax base for 2019/20, i.e. the number of chargeable dwellings in each valuation band 
(adjusted for dwellings where discounts apply), converted to an equivalent number of Band D dwelling, 
was calculated as follows: 

 
 
 

Income from Business Ratepayers 

Under the arrangements for uniform business rates, the Council collects non-domestic rates for its area, 
which are based on local rateable values multiplied by a uniform rate.  The Local Government Act 2012 
introduced a business rates retention scheme that enables local authorities to retain a proportion of the 
business rates generated in their area. Somerset West and Taunton Council were part of a Business 
Rates Pilot Area and therefore pays 25 per cent to Central Government, 30 per cent to Somerset County 
Council, 1 per cent to Devon and Somerset Fire Authority and retains 44 per cent itself. 

The total non-domestic rateable value at 31 March 2020 was £152,241,865 (31 March 2019 
£149,750,729). The standard national non-domestic multiplier for the year was £0.504 (2018/19 £0.493); 
the national non-domestic small business multiplier for the year was £0.491 (2018/19 £0.480).  

Band

Number of Taxable 

Dwellings after 

Discount

Ratio
Band D Equivalent 

Dwellings

A (Disabled Reduction) 14.08 5/9 7.82

A 6,538.26 6/9 4,358.84

B 15,695.82 7/9 12,207.86

C 12,978.75 8/9 11,536.67

D 9,855.17 9/9 9,855.17

E 7,505.04 11/9 9,172.83

F 4,554.10 13/9 6,578.15

G 2,126.81 15/9 3,544.67

H 110.75 18/9 221.50

59,378.78 57,483.51

Less adjustment for Non-Collection of Rates (860.73)

Council Tax Base 56,622.78

Page 189



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

91 

Glossary of Terms 

Local government, in common with many other specialised fields, has developed over the years its own 
unique set of terms and phrases.  This glossary helps to identify some of those terms and phrases, 
which will be found in this statement. 

Accruals 
The concept that income and expenditure are recognised in the financial records as they are earned or 
incurred, not as the money is received or paid. 

Amortisation 
The loss in value of an intangible asset due to its use by the Council. Amortisation is a non-cash item, it 
is merely an accounting assessment.  

Amortised Cost 
The amount at which a financial asset or liability is measured at initial cost minus repayments and 
impairment, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference between the initial amount and 
the maturity amount. Amortisation is worked out using the effective interest rate (EIR). 
 
Apportionment 
The sharing of costs fairly based upon usage of a service. 
 
Assets Held for Sale 
Assets held for sale are assets where it is expected that their carrying amount is going to be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than continued use.  
 
Assets under Construction 
Assets under construction are assets that are currently being developed and are not yet completed. 
They are capitalised at cost. 
 
Band D Equivalent 
A band D is the average property valuation band. This is calculated by multiplying the number of 
properties by the band D ratio to produce an equated tax base i.e. as if all properties were in band D.   
  
Billing Authority 
A local authority responsible for the collection of council tax and non-domestic rates. 

Budget Requirement 
The budget requirement is the net revenue expenditure calculated in advance each year by every billing 
authority and precepting authority.  It is important for two reasons; as a step in the valuation of council 
tax and as a basis for local authority capping.  It is calculated as the estimated gross revenue 
expenditure minus the estimated revenue income, allowing for movements in reserves. 

Capital Charges 
A charge to service revenue accounts to reflect the cost of fixed assets used in the provision of their 
services; the charges reflect notional depreciation costs only. 
 
Capital Expenditure 
Expenditure on the purchase or provision of assets, which will be of long-term value to the Council e.g. 
land, buildings, vehicle, plant and equipment. 

Capital Receipts 
The proceeds from the sale of land and other assets.  Capital receipts can be used to finance new 
capital expenditure, within rules set down by the Government, or to repay debt on existing assets. 

 
 

Page 190



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

92 

Cash Equivalents 
Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known 
amounts of cash which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
CFR measures the Council’s underlying need to borrow or finance by other long-term liabilities for a 
capital purpose.  
 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountancy (CIPFA) 
CIPFA is a privately funded professional body with charitable status, which represents accountants 
working in the public sector.  The Institute provides financial and statistical information for local 
government and other public sector bodies and advises central government and other bodies on local 
government and public finance matters. 

CIPFA/LASAAC 
This board is responsible for preparing, maintaining, developing and issuing the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.  The Board is a partnership between CIPFA England 
and the Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee. 
 
Collection Fund 
A statutory fund maintained by a billing authority, which is used to record council tax and non-domestic 
rates collected by the Council, along with payments to precepting authorities as well as into it’s own 
general fund. 

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 
The collection find adjustment account represents the Council’s share of the collection fund surplus or 
deficit. 

Community Assets 
Assets that the local authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no determinable useful life and that 
may have restrictions on their disposal.  Examples of community assets are parks and historic buildings. 

Commuted Sum 
An amount paid to the Council by a developer to cover the cost of maintaining a piece of land over a 
number of years, usually play areas. 

Componentisation 
Where an asset is split into significant components (e.g. a building could be split into 
building/windows/roof/boiler) to enable them to be depreciated over their separate useful lives. 

Council Tax 
The main source of local taxation for local authorities.  Council tax is set by local authorities and is levied 
on all domestic dwellings whether houses, bungalows, flats, maisonettes, mobile homes or houseboats, 
and whether owned or rented.  The proceeds are paid into the Council’s Collection Fund for distribution 
to precepting authorities and for use by its own General Fund. 
 
Creditors 
Amounts owed by the Council at the balance sheet date in respect of goods and services received 
before the end of the financial year. 
 
Debtors  
Amounts owed to the Council but unpaid at the balance sheet date. 
 

Page 191



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

93 

Depreciation 
Represents the reduction in useful economic life of an asset whether arising from use, the passage of 
time, or obsolescence. 

Direct Service Organisation (DSO)/Direct Labour Organisation (DLO) 
The term direct service organisation (DSO) is used to cover both direct labour organisations (DLO’s) 
established under the Local Government, Planning and Land Act 1980 and DSO’s established under the 
Local Government Act 1988.  These organisations are set up by a local authority to provide services 
subject to compulsory competitive tendering (CCT).  Although the requirements of CCT no longer apply 
to these services, the terms DLO and DSO are still commonly used. 

Earmarked Reserves 
Amounts of money set aside for a specific purpose. 

Estimates 
The amounts which are expected to be spent, or received as income, during an accounting period.  The 
term is also used to describe detailed budgets, which are either being prepared for the following year, or 
have been approved for the current year. 

Fair Value 
The amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled between knowledgeable and 
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. 

Fees and Charges 
Income raised by charging for the use of facilities or services. 

Financial Instruments  
Cash, evidence of an ownership interest in an entity, or a contractual right to receive, or deliver, cash or 
another financial instrument. 

Finance Lease 
A lease that transfers substantially all of the rewards of ownership of a fixed asset to the lessee. 

General Fund 
All district  councils have to maintain a general fund which is used to pay for day-to-day items of non-
housing revenue expenditure such as wages and salaries, heating and lighting, office supplies, etc.  
Spending on the provision of council housing, however, must be charged to a separate Housing 
Revenue Account. 

Government Grants 
Assistance by government and inter-government agencies and similar bodies, whether local, national or 
international, in the form of cash or transfers of assets to an authority in return for past or future 
compliance with certain conditions relating to the activities of the authority. 

Gross Expenditure 
The total cost of providing the Council’s services, before taking into account income from government 
grant and fees and charges for services. 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
Local authorities are required to maintain a separate account – the Housing Revenue Account – which 
sets out the expenditure and income arising from the provision of housing.  Other services are charged 
to the general fund.  Since 1990/91, local authorities have not been allowed to transfer monies between 
their General Fund and their HRA; this is known as “ring fencing”.   
 
IFRS 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS’s) are issued by the Accounting Standards Board.  
The Council’s accounts conform to IFRS’s where they are applicable to local authorities.   

Page 192



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

94 

Impairment 
A reduction in the value of fixed assets caused either by a consumption of economic benefits or by a 
general fall in prices. 

Infrastructure Assets 
Fixed assets that by their nature cannot be sold and therefore expenditure is only recoverable by 
continued use of that asset.  Examples of infrastructure assets are highways and footpaths. 

Inventories 
Inventories include goods or other assets purchased for resale, consumable stores and raw materials. 

Investments 
A long-term investment is an investment that is intended to be held for use on a continuing basis in the 
activities of the Council.  Investments are classified as such only when it is intended to hold the 
investment for more than one year or where there are restrictions on the investor’s ability to dispose of it.  
Investments which do not meet the above criteria should be classified as current assets. 
 
Investment Properties 
Investment Properties are properties which are held by the Council solely to earn rentals or for capital 
appreciation or for both. 
 
Liquid Resources 
Assets which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash. 
 
Loans and Receivables 
Loans and receivables are financial instruments that have fixed or determinable payments and are not 
quoted on the stock market. 
 
LGA 
The Local Government Association is the national voice of local government.  They work with councils to 
support, promote and improve local government. 
 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
The minimum revenue provision is the sum required to be met from revenue under current capital 
controls to provide for the repayment of outstanding borrowings; additional sums may be voluntarily set 
aside. 
 
Money Market Funds 
A money market fund is an open-ended mutual fund that invests in short term debt securities. 
 
Net Book Value 
The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet, i.e. their historical cost or current 
value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation. 
 
Net Current Replacement Cost 
The cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its existing condition and for its existing use. 
 
Net Expenditure 
Gross expenditure less specific service income, but before deduction of revenue support grant. 
 
Net Realisable Value 
The open market value of the asset in its existing use net of the potential expenses of sale. 
 
National Non-domestic Rate (NNDR) 
A levy on businesses, based on a national rate in the pound set by the government multiplied by the 
“rateable value” of the premises they occupy.  NNDR is collected by billing authorities. Also known as 
“business rates”, the “uniform business rate” and the “non-domestic rate”. 

Page 193



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

95 

Operating Lease 
A type of lease, usually for vehicles or equipment, which is similar to renting and which does not come 
within the government’s capital control system.  The risks and rewards of ownership of the asset must 
remain with the lessor for a lease to be classified as an operating lease. 

Post Balance Sheet Events 
Events, both favourable and unfavourable, which occur between the balance sheet date and the date on 
which the Council approves the financial statements. 

Precept 
The levy made by precepting authorities on billing authorities, requiring the latter to collect income from 
council taxpayers on their behalf. 

Precepting Authorities 
Those authorities which are not billing authorities i.e., do not collect the council tax and non-domestic 
rate.  County councils and police and fire authorities are “major precepting authorities” while parish, 
community and town councils are “local precepting authorities”. 

Property Plant and Equipment 
Property Plant and Equipment is the word used for a group of assets which consist of the following: 
Council Dwellings, Other Land and Buildings, Vehicles Furniture Plant and Equipment, Infrastructure 
Assets, Community Assets, Assets under Construction and Assets Held for Sale. 

Provisions 
Provisions are amounts set aside in one year for liabilities or losses which are likely or certain to be 
incurred, but uncertain in timing or value. 

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) 
A central government agency, which provides long and shorter-term loans to local authorities. 

Rateable Value 
Estimate of the value of a property which is used as a basis for local taxation. 

Re-chargeable Works 
Ad-hoc jobs, the costs of which are recoverable from third parties. 

Reserves 
Reserves are amounts set aside which do not fall within the definition of provisions and include general 
reserves (or “balances”), which every authority must maintain as a matter of prudence. 

Revenue Expenditure 
This can be defined as expenditure on the day-to-day running of the council. 

Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute 
Legislation in England and Wales allows some expenditure to be classified as capital for funding 
purposes when it does not result in the expenditure being carried on the Balance Sheet as a fixed asset. 
The purpose of this is to enable it to be funded from capital resources rather than be charged to the 
General Fund and impact on that year’s council tax. 

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 
This is the grant which the government pays to the Council to bridge the gap between income raised by 
the council tax and NDR and the total assessment of the authority’s need to spend (as measured by its 
standard spending assessment).  The payment of RSG attempts to ensure that differences in spending 
needs and resources between authorities are equalised, in order to permit each authority to support a 
standard level of spending. 

 
 

Page 194



Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
 
  

96 

Support Service Recharges 
The allocation of the costs of back office functions such as Accountancy, HR or ICT etc. to front line 
services. 

Tangible Assets 
Tangible assets that yield benefits to local authority and the services it provides for a period of more than 
one year. 

Useful Life 
The period over which the local authority will derive economic benefits from the use of a fixed asset. 

Work in Progress 
The value of work on an uncompleted project at the balance sheet date, which has yet to be recovered 
from the client. 

 

Page 195





 

 

 Somerset West and Taunton, PO Box 866, Taunton TA1 9GS 
www.somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 
Our Ref:  Letter of Representation 
Your Ref:  
Date:    

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
Somerset West and Taunton Council 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
 
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial 
statements of Somerset West and Taunton Council for the year ended 31 March 
2020 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements 
are presented fairly, in all material respects in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 and applicable law. 
  
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries 
as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 
 
Financial Statements 
 

i. We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s 
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 ("the Code"); in particular the 
financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

 
ii.  We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting 

the Council and these matters have been appropriately reflected and 
disclosed in the financial statements 

 
iii. The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that 

could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-
compliance. There has been no non-compliance with requirements of any 
regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements in the event of non-compliance. 
 

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

 

 
 
 
 
Grant Thornton UK LLP 
2 Glass Wharf 
Temple Quay 
Bristol 
BS2 0EL 
 

Page 197



v. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including 
those measured at fair value, are reasonable. We are satisfied that the 
material judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are 
soundly based, in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the 
financial statements. 

 
vi. We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the 

valuation of pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee 
Benefits disclosures are consistent with our knowledge.  We confirm that all 
settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for.  
We also confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have been 
identified and properly accounted for.  

 
vii. Except as disclosed in the financial statements: 
 
 a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent 
 b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or 

mortgaged 
 c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or 

non-recurring items requiring separate disclosure. 
 
viii. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately 

accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code. 

 
ix. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which 

International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment 
or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

 
x. We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and 

disclosures changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The 
financial statements have been amended for these misstatements, 
misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material 
misstatements, including omissions. 

 
xi. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed 

in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting 
Standards. 

 
xii. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or 

classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 
 
xiii. The adjustments to the opening balances disclosed in the ‘Notes to the 

Balance Sheet’ note are accurate and complete. There are no other prior 
period errors to bring to your attention. 

 
xiv. We have updated our going concern assessment and cashflow forecasts in 

light of the Covid-19 pandemic. We continue to believe that the Council’s 
financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have 
not identified any material uncertainties related to going concern on the 

Page 198



grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more 
than adequate for the Council’s needs. We believe that no further disclosures 
relating to the Council's ability to continue as a going concern need to be 
made in the financial statements. 

 
Information Provided 
 
xv. We have provided you with: 
 
 a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 

preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation 
and other matters; 

 b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose 
of your audit; and 

 c. access to persons within the Council via remote arrangements, in 
compliance with the nationally specified social distancing requirements 
established by the government in response to  the Covid-19 pandemic 
from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

 
xvi. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which 

management is aware. 
 
xvii. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are 

reflected in the financial statements. 
 
xviii. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the 

financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 
 
xix. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected 

fraud that we are aware of and that affects the Council, and involves: 
 
 a. management; 
 b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
 c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 

statements. 
 
xx. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or 

suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by 
employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others. 

 
xxi. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or 

suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be 
considered when preparing financial statements. 

 
xxii. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council's related parties and all 

the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 
 
xxiii. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims 

whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 
 

Page 199



 
Annual Governance Statement 
 
xxiv. We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects 

the Council's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that 
we are not aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the 
AGS. 

 
Narrative Report 
 
xxv. The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of 

the Council's financial and operating performance over the period covered by 
the financial statements. 

 
Approval 
 
The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit, 
Governance and Standards at its meeting on 17 December 2020 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
Name…………………………… 
 
Position…………………………. 
 
Date……………………………. 
 
 
Name…………………………… 
 
Position…………………………. 
 
Date……………………………. 
 
Signed on behalf of the Council           
 

Page 200



Informing the audit risk assessment 
– Somerset West and Taunton 
Council 2019/20

Jackson Murray
Director
T 0117 305 7859
E Jackson.Murray@uk.gt.com

Aditi Chandramouli
Engagement Manager
T 0117 305 7643
E Aditi.Chandramouli@uk.gt.com

P
age 201



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which 

we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a comprehensive 

record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot 

be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect your business or any 

weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and 

should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the 

basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any 

other purpose.

P
age 202



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Table of Contents

Section Page

Purpose 4

General Enquiries of Management 6

Fraud 7

Fraud Risk Assessment 8

Laws and Regulations 13

Impact of Laws and Regulations 14

Going Concern 16

Going Concern Considerations 17

Related Parties 21

Accounting Estimates 23

Appendix A Accounting Estimates 25 

P
age 203



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between Somerset West and Taunton Council’s external 

auditor and the Audit Governance and Standards Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of the 

auditor risk assessment where we are required to make enquiries of the Committee under auditing standards.   

Background

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISA(UK)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Audit Governance and 

Standards Committee. ISA(UK) emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Audit Governance and Standards 

Committee and also specify matters that should be communicated.

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Audit Governance and Standards Committee in understanding matters relating to the 

audit and developing a constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Audit 

Governance and Standards Committee and supports the Audit Governance and Standards Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the 

financial reporting process. 

Communication

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Audit Governance and 

Standards Committee's oversight of the following areas:

• General Enquiries of Management

• Fraud

• Laws and Regulations

• Going Concern

• Related Parties

• Accounting Estimates

P
age 204



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Purpose

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from Somerset West and Taunton Council’s 

management. The Audit Governance and Standards Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with its understanding and 

whether there are any further comments it wishes to make. 

P
age 205



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

1. What do you regard as the key 

events or issues that will have a 

significant impact on the financial 

statements for 2019/20?

This is the first year of operation of the Council, which incorporates the responsibilities of two previous district Councils – Taunton 

Deane Borough and West Somerset. The assets, liabilities, rights and obligations of these predecessors were transferred to 

SWTC on 1 April 2019. SWTC accounting policies and estimation techniques are similar to its predecessors’, however moving to 

a consistent approach may result in some adjustments (e.g. assessment of aged debt impairment).  

2. Have you considered the 

appropriateness of the 

accounting policies adopted by 

Somerset West and Taunton 

Council?

Have there been any events or 

transactions that may cause you 

to change or adopt new 

accounting policies?

Yes. The accounting policies have been reviewed to ensure consistency with the 2019/20 Code of Practice. No significant changes 

have been made and no events or transactions require new or altered accounting policies. 

The Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus)(Amendment) Regulations 2020 were introduced in response to COVID-19, however this 

has extended the deadlines for completing the accounts. CIPFA and Government considered options for reducing the reporting 

burden however no changes to the Code requirements were subsequently made.

3. Is there any use of financial 

instruments, including 

derivatives? 

The Council has used a range of financial instruments including treasury investments and borrowing. No derivatives have been 

used.

4. Are you aware of any 

significant transaction outside the 

normal course of business?

No.

P
age 206



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

5. Are you aware of any changes in circumstances that 

would lead to impairment of non-current assets? 
The impact of COVID-19 on the economy and financial markets has been considered when valuing 

assets.

6. Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? In March 2013, new governance arrangements were approved with the formation of a new company limited 

by guarantee to replace the previous Joint Committee. Taunton Deane, at its Full Council meeting on 4 

March 2013, and West Somerset Council, at its Full Council meeting on 27 February 2013 elected to 

become Members of the Company – South West Audit Partnership Ltd – with effect from 1 April 2013. At the 

TDBC Full Council meeting on 4 March 2013 the Council offered to guarantee to the Somerset Pension 

Fund the level of deficit funding related to ex-TDBC employees, estimated at £268k

7. Are you aware of the existence of loss contingencies 

and/or un-asserted claims that may affect the financial 

statements?

Contingent assets and liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements in respect of a Low Cost Affordable 

Housing scheme, Municipal Mutual Insurance, and SWAP pension fund deficit (see above), and Hinkley 

Point C S106 agreements. 

8. Other than in house solicitors, can you provide details 

of those solicitors utilised by Somerset West and 

Taunton Council during the year. Please indicate where 

they are working on open litigation or contingencies 

from prior years?

Somerset West and Taunton has no in-house solicitors. From the 1 April 2015 the former TDBC legal 

function, now SWT, was devolved to Mendip District Council under an inter authority agreement for the 

provision of a shared legal service hosted by Mendip. External legal services have also been used for 

projects including: Grant Thornton LLP (Corporate Management), Clarke Willmott (various projects), 

Ashfords (Regeneration/other projects), Womble Bond Dickinson (transformation programme), Thrings LLP 

(heritage project), No5 Chambers (planning), Porter Dobson LLP (asset management). 

9. Have any of Somerset West and Taunton Council’s 

service providers reported any items of fraud, non-

compliance with laws and regulations or uncorrected 

misstatements which would affect the financial 

statements?

No

10. Can you provide details of other advisors consulted 

during the year and the issue on which they were 

consulted?

The Council engaged the services of a range of advisors through the year. For example, Mace Ltd (project 

and cost management), Bruton Knowles (Estate Management), Stantec UK Ltd & Environment Agency 

(planning and environment strategy support, Jubb Clews Ltd (Heritage and risk), BH Compliance Ltd 

(Asbestos/Fire/Water compliance strategy), etc. Further details provided to auditor in working papers.

P
age 207



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Fraud
Issue

Matters in relation to fraud

ISA (UK) 240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Audit, Governance, and Standards Committee and management. Management, 

with the oversight of the Audit, Governance, and Standards Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and deterrence and 

encourage a culture of honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Audit, Governance, and Standards Committee should consider the 

potential for override of controls and inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As Somerset West and Taunton Council’s external auditors, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free 

from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, considering the potential for 

management override of controls.

As part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements management has 

put in place with regard to fraud risks including: 

• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud,

• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks, 

• communication with the Audit, Governance, and Standards Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, and

• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour. 

We need to understand how the Audit, Governance, and Standards Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries of 

both management and the Audit, Governance, and Standards Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These areas 

have been set out in the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from Somerset West and Taunton Council’s management. 

P
age 208



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response

1. Have Somerset West and Taunton Council assessed 

the risk of material misstatement in their financial 

statements due to fraud?

How has the process of identifying and responding to 

the risk of fraud been undertaken and what are the 

results of this process? 

How do Somerset West and Taunton Council’s risk 

management processes link to financial reporting?

The Council places reliance on its Financial Procedure Rules, and internal controls and audit functions to 

minimise the risk of fraud and error. The risk of material misstatement is considered to be low.

Key decision reports and financial reports incorporate risk assessments including financial risks. Any fraud 

and error losses will be reflected in the reported income and expenditure for the authority, and material 

losses reflected in budget monitoring reports as well as report to Audit Governance and Standards 

Committee.

2. What have you determined to be the classes of 

accounts, transactions and disclosures most at risk to 

fraud? 

A fraud prevention and detection service is operated in partnership with Powys Council, which includes 

transactional areas assessed as higher risk e.g. Right to Buy sales and benefit payments / council tax 

discounts. 

3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected 

or alleged fraud, errors or other irregularities either 

within Somerset West and Taunton Council as a whole 

or within specific departments since 1 April 2019?

As a management team, how do you communicate risk 

issues (including fraud) to those charged with 

governance?                                                                                         

No formal reports were made to the AGS Committee during 2019/20, however this will be added to the 

forward plan for 2020/21 including an ‘annual report’ for the year to August 2020 (the contract for the 

counter-fraud service operates August-August). 

P
age 209



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

4. Have you identified any specific fraud risks?

Do you have any concerns there are areas that are at risk of fraud?

Are there particular locations within Somerset West and Taunton Council 

where fraud is more likely to  occur?

There are known areas of risk, and these are managed through the operation of appropriate 

controls as well as targeted reviews through internal audit and counter-fraud processes. A 

number of areas are reviewed each year. Specific higher risk locations have not been 

identified.

5. What processes do Somerset West and Taunton Council have in 

place to identify and respond to risks of fraud?

Management controls, business processes and procedures, internal and external audit 

functions, and fraud prevention and detection function.

6. Would you assess that the overall control environment for Somerset 

West and Taunton Council, including:

• the process for reviewing the effectiveness the system of internal 

control;  and 

• internal controls, including segregation of duties

exist and work effectively?

If not where are the risk areas and what mitigating actions have been 

taken?

What other controls are in place to help prevent, deter or detect fraud?

Are there any areas where there is a potential for override of controls 

or inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process (for 

example because of undue pressure to achieve financial targets)? 

A proportionate approach has been adopted to the internal control environment. Some risk has 

been accepted whilst the Council has adapted to organisational changes e.g. through the 

implementation of some lower value purchase transactions being input and approved by one 

officer. Wrap around controls are in operation such as exception reports to provide 

management assurance that controls are not being bypassed or manipulated. 

During 2019/20 the Internal Auditor has provided Partial Assurance overall, with some key 

control reports also assessed as Partial Assurance. The Council has now tightened its process 

for addressing and monitoring internal audit recommendations. There is an action plan within 

the Annual Governance Statement identifying areas where controls need to be strengthened 

and the AGS Committee will keep this under regular review. 

Staff and customers may report suspected fraud via the Council’s website.

There are no known or expected areas where there is potential for override of controls or 

influence over financial reporting.

P
age 210



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

7. Are there any areas where there is potential for 

misreporting? 

Controls in place should mitigate any risk of misreporting. 

8. How does Somerset West and Taunton Council 

communicate and encourage ethical behaviours and 

business processes of its staff and contractors? 

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns 

about fraud?

What concerns are staff expected to report about 

fraud? Have any significant issues been reported? 

The Council operates within a governance framework that includes a range of policies and Codes of 

Conduct, including Whistleblowing Policy and Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy. Staff work within a 

behaviours framework, and conduct and performance matters are covered in team/line management 

arrangements. 

Fraud reporting is available on the website, and staff can raise concerns with their managers or report 

directly to the fraud team. 

No significant issues have been reported last year, however suspected fraud / error cases have been 

considered and investigated by the fraud team or audit team. 

9. From a fraud and corruption perspective, what are 

considered to be high-risk posts?

How are the risks relating to these posts identified, 

assessed and managed?

No specific new assessment of ‘high risk posts’ has been undertaken. Financial controls are in place as part 

of the internal control framework that seek to minimise risk of fraud and error. Business processes include 

management / supervision checks and separation of duties on a proportionate basis. Adequacy of controls 

is reviewed through implementation of the internal audit plan, which is agreed with SMT on a risk-based 

approach. SMT monitor the delivery of the action plan in response to internal audit recommendations.

10. Are you aware of any related party relationships 

or transactions that could give rise to instances of 

fraud?

How do you mitigate the risks associated with fraud 

related to related party relationships and 

transactions?

Related party transactions are disclosed in the accounts as appropriate. Elected Members and officers with 

a position of significant influence (e.g. CEO / Directors / S151 Officer) complete the register of interests and 

also complete a related parties return annually for the annual accounts reporting process. Relevant Codes 

are in place and communicated. Staff have employment contracts and are supported with access to 

relevant policies and training. 

P
age 211



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

11. What arrangements are in place to report fraud 

issues and risks to the Audit, Governance, and 

Standards Committee? 

How does the Audit Governance and Standards 

Committee exercise oversight over management's 

processes for identifying and responding to risks of 

fraud and breaches of internal control?

What has been the outcome of these arrangements 

so far this year?

The Governance Manager has a standing agenda item to update the Committee on governance matters. 

The Internal Auditor reports on a quarterly basis on delivery of the audit plan and will highlight significant 

fraud issues or risks identified. In future, a specific fraud risk update report will be added to the Forward 

Plan to provide a focussed report in this area.

12. Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential 

or complaints by potential whistle blowers? If so, 

what has been your response?

Yes. The Council’s whistleblowing policy has been followed and investigation undertaken where 

assessed as appropriate. Significant matters to bring to the attention of those charged with governance 

is included in the Monitoring Officer update the AGS Committee.

13. Have any reports been made under the Bribery 

Act?

No

P
age 212



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Law and regulations

Issue

Matters in relation to laws and regulations

ISA (UK) 250 requires us to consider the impact  of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Audit, Governance, and Standards Committee, is responsible for ensuring that Somerset West and Taunton 

Council’s operations are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations including those that determine amounts in the financial statements. 

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or 

error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make 

inquiries of management and the Audit, Governance, and Standards Committee as to whether the entity is in compliance with laws and regulations. 

Where we become aware of information of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance 

and the possible effect on the financial statements.

Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management.

P
age 213



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

1. How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws 

and regulations have been complied with?

What arrangements do Somerset West and Taunton Council 

have in place to prevent and detect non-compliance with laws 

and regulations? 

Are you aware of any changes to Somerset West and 

Taunton’s Council’s regulatory environment that may have a 

significant impact on their financial statements?

We have a Constitution which sets out our legal and procedural framework and includes the 

Financial Rule and Contract Standing Orders.

We have an Officer Scheme of Delegation which means that the appropriate level of 

professional officer ensures that all relevant laws and regulations are complied with.

Statutory post of the Monitoring Officer – who is able to report to Members any areas where 

she feels laws and regulations aren’t complied with. If appropriate

Both MO and S151 Officer had access to SMT last year, and are now formal members of 

SMT from August 2020, to give professional advice re laws and regulations as appropriate.

The Council uses SHAPE Legal if there are any legal queries.

All Committee reports contain a section on Legal implications and reports now have to be 

discussed and signed off by SMT before going forward through the democratic process

Professionally qualified officers ensure that all relevant laws and regulations are followed.

Job Descriptions and Person Specifications specify requirements to ensure recruitment and 

selection of appropriately qualified professional officers.

We are not aware of any changes to the regulatory environment that may have a significant 

impact on the financial statements.

2. How is the Audit, Governance, and Standards Committee 

provided with assurance that all relevant laws and regulations 

have been complied with?

The AGS Committee receives reports on matters such as compliance and health & safety, 

with higher risk areas included on the Audit Plan. There is also a standing item on the 

committee agenda for the Monitoring Officer to provide an update on governance/legal 

matters. 

3. Have there been any instances of non-compliance or 

suspected non-compliance with laws and regulation since 1 

April 2019 with an on-going impact on the 2019/2020 financial 

statements? 

No

4. Is there any actual or potential litigation or claims that would 

affect the financial statements?

The only such matter is the claim by NHS Foundation Trusts in respect of business rates

liability. Legal representation has been commissioned through the LGA, and a relevant

contingent liability disclosure is included in the Statement of Accounts.

P
age 214



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

5. What arrangements do Somerset West and 

Taunton Council have in place to identify, evaluate 

and account for litigation or claims? 

Any litigation claims that are received should be passed on to SHAPE Legal for evaluation and

appropriate action.

6. Has there been any report from other regulatory        

bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs which 

indicate non-compliance? 

No

P
age 215



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Going Concern

Issue

Matters in relation to going concern

ISA (UK) 570 covers auditor responsibilities in the audit of financial statements relating to management's use of the going concern assumption in 

the financial statements.

The going concern assumption is a fundamental principle in the preparation of financial statements. Under this assumption entities are viewed as 

continuing in business for the foreseeable future. Assets and liabilities are recorded on the basis that the entity will be able to realise its assets and 

discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Going concern considerations have been set out below and management has provided its response.

P
age 216



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Going concern considerations

Question Management response

1. Has the management team carried out an 

assessment of the going concern basis for 

preparing the financial statements for Somerset 

West and Taunton Council? What was the outcome 

of that assessment? 

Going concern status for local government is a presumption in law. The S151 Officer completes a going 

concern assessment considering financial position and this is reported to AGS Committee alongside the 

Statement of Accounts. 

2. Are the financial assumptions in that report (e.g., 

future levels of income and expenditure) consistent 

with the budget and the financial information 

provided to the Audit, Governance, and Standards 

Committee throughout the year?

Budget and financial information is provided to the Executive and Full Council, which is scrutinised by 

the Scrutiny Committee. Assumptions are consistent with previous reports where appropriate and 

updated where necessary to reflect subsequent events and current information.

P
age 217



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Going concern considerations

Question Management response

3. Are the implications of statutory or policy 

changes appropriately reflected in Somerset West 

and Taunton Council’s financial forecasts and report 

on going concern?

Yes

4. Have there been any significant issues raised 

with the Audit, Governance, and Standards 

Committee during the year which could cast doubts 

on the assumptions made? (Examples include 

adverse comments raised by internal and external 

audit regarding financial performance or significant 

weaknesses in systems of financial control).

There are no significant issues casting doubt on assumptions made. A number of key control internal 

audits have highlight ‘partial assurance’ particularly where evidence for those audits was for the first few 

months of the year at the peak of organisational disruption through changes being implemented under 

transformation. Appropriate action has been taken to mitigate and address points raised with no 

significant impact on the underlying financial position of the authority. 

5. Does a review of available financial information 

identify any adverse financial indicators including 

negative cash flow or poor or deteriorating 

performance against the better payment practice 

code?

If so, what action is being taken to improve financial 

performance?

The Council’s cash flow position is strong and well managed. 

The number of creditor payments paid over 30 day target was above average during first three months of 

the year, reflecting organisational disruption at that time rather than any cash flow issue.

P
age 218



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Going concern considerations

Question Management response

6. Do Somerset West and Taunton Council have sufficient staff in post, 

with the appropriate skills and experience, particularly at senior manager 

level, to ensure the delivery of their objectives?

If not, what action is being taken to obtain those skills?

The Council (and its predecessors) experienced significant staff turnover as part 

of transformation. On recommendation from the CEO, the Council approved the 

creation of 4 Director posts to enhance leadership, with posts filled 

January/February 2020. The new leadership has realigned staff structure and 

resources during the latter part of the financial year, with the structure finalised in 

April. Capacity has been maintained to deliver priorities through agency and 

temporary staff in the interim.

7. Do Somerset West and Taunton Council have procedures in place to 

assess their ability to continue as a going concern? 

Yes. The Council prepares/reviews its financial strategy annually, and budgets 

are prepared for approval by Council. The Council fulfils its requirement of setting 

a balanced budget, accompanied by statements from the S151 Officer regarding 

robustness of budget estimates and adequacy of reserves. 

8. Is management aware of the existence of events or conditions that may 

cast doubt on Somerset West and Taunton Council’s ability to continue as 

a going concern? 

No. There is a high degree of uncertainty over future funding levels however 

prudent assumptions and estimates are included in the financial strategy and 

medium term financial plan. Financial planning and budgeting process will 

determine action required to ensure ongoing financial sustainability.

P
age 219



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Going concern considerations

Question Management response

9. Are arrangements in place to report the going 

concern assessment to the Audit, Governance, and 

Standards Committee? 

How has the Audit Governance and Standards 

Committee satisfied itself that it is appropriate to 

adopt the going concern basis in preparing financial 

statements? 

Yes – the S151 Officer reports the going concern assessment to the AGS Committee alongside the 

Statement of Accounts.

The Committee will review and consider the assessment presented and advice by the S151 Officer.

P
age 220



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Related Parties

Issue

Matters in relation to Related Parties

Somerset West and Taunton Council are required to comply with IAS 24 and disclose transactions with entities/individuals that would be classed 

as related parties.  These may include:

• entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by Somerset West and Taunton Council;

• associates;

• joint ventures;

• an entity that has an interest in the authority that gives it significant influence over Somerset West and Taunton Council;

• key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel; and

• post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees, or of any entity that is a related party of Somerset West and 

Taunton Council.

A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side, i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the entity’s 

perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the entity must disclose it.

ISA (UK) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that you 

have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make in the 

financial statements are complete and accurate. 

P
age 221



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Relating Parties

Question Management response

1. What controls do Somerset West and 

Taunton Council have in place to identify, 

account for and disclose related party 

transactions and relationships ?

A review of related party transactions and disclosure requirements forms part of the year end programme of 

work to complete the accounts and supporting audit pack.

P
age 222



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Accounting estimates

Issue

Matters in relation to Related Accounting estimates

Somerset West and Taunton Council apply appropriate estimates in the preparation of their financial statements. ISA (UK) 540 sets out 

requirements for auditing accounting estimates. The objective is to gain evidence that the accounting estimates are reasonable and the related 

disclosures are adequate.

Under this standard we have to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement for accounting estimates by understanding how the Council 

identifies the transactions, events and conditions that may give rise to the need for an accounting estimate.

Accounting estimates are used when it is not possible to measure precisely a figure in the accounts. We need to be aware of all estimates that 

the Council is using as part of its accounts preparation; these are detailed in appendix 1 to this report. The audit procedures we conduct on the 

accounting estimate will demonstrate that:

•  the estimate is reasonable; and

•  estimates have been calculated consistently with other accounting estimates within the financial statements.

We would ask the Audit, Standards, and Governance Committee to satisfy itself that the arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate. 

P
age 223



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Accounting Estimates

Question Management response

1. Are management aware of transactions, events, 

conditions (or changes in these) that may give rise 

to recognition or disclosure of significant accounting 

estimates that require significant judgement (other 

than those in Appendix A)?

No. Judgements will be required in relation to additional funding provided by government in terms of 

treatment as principal or agency, however this will impact on the 2020/21 accounts. Relevant items are 

disclosed in Appendix A.

2. Are the management arrangements for the 

accounting estimates, as detailed in Appendix A 

reasonable?

Yes.

3. How is the Audit Governance and Standards 

Committee provided with assurance that the 

arrangements for accounting estimates are 

adequate ?

Accounts are prepared by qualified accounting professionals in accordance with the CIPFA Local 

Authority Accounting Code of Practice and the Council’s accounting policies, and certified by the 

Council’s S151 Officer who must be a professionally qualified accountant. The external auditor presents 

and Audit Findings Report including his opinion regarding the true and fair view of the accounts.

P
age 224



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether Management have 

used an expert

Underlying 

assumptions:

- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Property, plant &

equipment

valuations

Non-current assets are valued 

in accordance with the 

guidance published by the 

Royal Institute of Chartered 

Surveyors. The valuations 

were done of the basis of 

Existing Use Value, Market 

Value or, in the case of 

specialised properties on the 

basis of, Depreciated 

Replacement Cost in 

accordance with the RICS 

Valuation Standards. 

Valuations are reviewed and 

signed off by Sally Stark (asset 

specialist).

Valuations are 

performed annually to 

ensure that the fair 

value of a revalued 

asset does not differ 

materially from its 

carrying amount. For 

land and buildings all 

material assets will be 

considered in 2019/20.

Yes, the valuer is a member of 

RICS. Valuations performed 

by Guy Harbord (Wilks Head & 

Eve) RICS qualified valuer. 

Valuations are reviewed and 

signed off Sally Stark (asset 

specialist).

Degree of uncertainty 

inherent with any 

revaluation.  We employ 

professional valuers and 

rely on expert opinion.

No

25

P
age 225



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether Management have 

used an expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of 

uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Estimated 

remaining 

useful lives of 

PPE

Each part of an item of 

property, plant and equipment 

with a significant cost in 

relation to the total cost is 

depreciated separately.  

Depreciation methods, useful 

lives and residual values are 

reviewed each financial year 

and adjusted if appropriate.

Consistent asset lives 

applied to each asset 

category. 

Yes, the valuer is a member of 

RICS. Valuations performed 

by Guy Harbord (Wilks Head & 

Eve) RICS qualified valuer. 

Depreciation is calculated on a 

straight line basis as this 

reflects consumption of assets 

and is a reasonable 

assumption.

No

26

P
age 226



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

Management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of 

uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative 

estimates

Has there been a

change in 

accounting

method in year?

Depreciation and 

Amortisation 
Depreciation is provided for 

on all assets with a 

determinable finite life (except 

for investment properties) by 

allocating the value of the 

asset in the Balance Sheet 

over the periods expected to 

benefit from their use. 

Consistent 

application of 

depreciation 

methods across all 

assets. 

See above See above No

27

P
age 227



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to make the 

estimate

Controls 

used to 

identify 

estimates

Whether 

Management have 

used an expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been a

change in 

accounting

method in year?

Impairments Review of all assets undertaken 

annually to assess whether there is 

any indication that an asset may be 

impaired. 

Where indications exist and any 

possible differences are estimated to 

be material, the recoverable amount 

of the asset is estimated and where 

this is less than the carrying amount 

of the asset, an impairment loss is 

recognised for the shortfall. 

See left Discussion with 

internal property 

team as appropriate.

N/A. No

28

P
age 228



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model 

used to make the 

estimate

Controls used to identify 

estimates

Whether 

Management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of 

uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative 

estimates

Has there been a

change in 

accounting

method in year?

Measurement of 

Financial 

Instruments

Financial instruments 

are valued at fair 

value based on the 

advice of external 

treasury consultants 

and investment fund 

managers. 

All financial instruments are 

reviewed at year end and 

advice taken from 

professional advisors. 

Yes Instruments are valued on an 

individual basis with advice from 

treasury management 

professionals and investment fund 

managers. 

No

29

P
age 229



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to make 

the estimate

Controls used to 

identify 

estimates

Whether 

Management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying 

assumptions:

- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been a

change in 

accounting

method in year?

Provisions for 

liabilities
Provisions are made whenever 

an event takes place that give 

the Council a legal or 

constructive obligation that 

probably requires settlement by 

a transfer of economic benefit or 

service potential, and a reliable 

estimate can be made of the 

amount.

Each provision is 

separately 

reviewed by 

financial 

accountants and a 

working is put 

together to support 

the calculation.

As necessary on 

an individual basis

Each provision is 

assessed on an individual 

basis to ensure that it 

meets the criteria of a 

provision per IAS 37.  The 

degree of uncertainty is 

assessed when 

determining whether a 

provision is the correct 

treatment for an item.

No

Bad Debt 

Provision / 

expected credit 

losses

Debts are reviewed monthly and 

any debts that are deemed to be 

irrecoverable are written off to 

the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Account.

Knowledge by the 

Accounts 

Receivables team 

in likelihood of 

recoverability and 

the aging of the 

debts, with 

accounting

valuations agreed 

by a qualified 

accountant.

N/A N/A No

30

P
age 230



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

Management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying 

assumptions:

- Assessment of 

degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been a

change in 

accounting

method in year?

Accruals We use standard accruals 

accounting –accruals are 

based on expenses incurred 

that have not yet been paid.

Monthly 

management 

accounts provides 

rigorous analysis so 

that any accruals are 

highlighted and 

actioned throughout 

the year.

N/A. Accruals for income and 

expenditure have been 

principally based on 

known values. Where 

accruals have been 

estimated, the latest 

available information has 

been used. 

No

Non Adjusting 

events – events 

after the balance 

sheet date 

Monthly management 

accounts prepared would flag 

any adjusting/non-adjusting 

events.

See left. N/A. N/A. No

31

P
age 231



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

Management have 

used an expert

Underlying 

assumptions:

- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been a

change in 

accounting

method in year?

Defined benefit 

pension amounts 

and disclosures

Staff are members of the 

LGPS, administered by 

Somerset County.

Rely on the 

calculations made by 

the actuary. 

Challenge any 

unusual movements 

or assumptions with 

the actuary. 

The actuary of the 

pensions scheme. 

Reliance on the expertise 

of the actuaries of the 

pension scheme. 

No

Pension Fund  

(LGPS) Actuarial 

gains/losses

The actuarial gains and 

losses figures are 

calculated by the actuarial 

expert Barnett 

Waddingham. These 

figures are based on 

making % adjustments to 

the closing values of 

assets/liabilities.  

The Council responds 

to queries raised by 

the administering 

body. 

The Council are 

provided with an 

actuarial report by 

Barnett Waddingham 

(LGPS).

The nature of these figures 

forecasting into the future 

are based upon the best 

information held at the 

current time and are 

developed by experts in 

their field.

No

32

P
age 232



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to 

one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member 

firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not 

provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 233




	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
	Minutes

	5 Audit, Governance and Standards Committee Forward Plan
	6 Annual Governance Statement 2019/20
	Appendix A - SWT Annual Governance Statement 2020
	Appendix B - AGS Action Plan

	7 External Audit Findings Report
	Somerset West and Taunton Council - External Audit Findings Report 2019-...

	8 Assessment of Going Concern Status
	9 Approval of Statement of Accounts 2019/20
	SWT SoA 2019-20 AGS 17DEC20
	SWT Council Letter of Representation 2019-20 (Headed Paper)
	SWT Mgt Assurance slides - Informing the audit risk assessment 2019-20 v2


